
 

Innovations Academy Board Agenda: June 17, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

Meeting location(s) 

Innovations Academy 

5454 Ruffin Rd 

San Diego, CA 92123 

636 Hillsborough St, Oakland, 

CA 94606 
Public call in number  425-

436-6381* 

Access code 1637013 
*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in 

number is provided as a convenience to the public. 

 

Board Attendance 

       

 

Others in Attendance 

       

 

Agenda 

Topic Minutes 

➢ Call to order / roll call Time / Date  

Board in Attendance:  

1.  

Other Present: 

1.  

 

Action Item 

Approval of current agenda 

Vote 

 

Action Item 

Approval of prior month meeting minutes 

○ Board Minutes 5/13/25 

Vote  

 

 

Public comments (3 mins per person)  

 

Action Items: 

Financial 

● Approval of FY24-25 Estimated 

Actuals & FY25-26 Preliminary 

Budget  
● Approval of FY24-25 and FY 25-26 

EPA Resolution 
The voter’s approved Proposition 30, which established 
the Education Protection Account (EPA).  All 

temporary tax revenues collected from Proposition 30 

over the next seven years for income tax and four years 
for sales tax, will be collected into the Education 

Protection Account and distributed to K-12 and Higher 

Education. 
● Approval of FY25-26 ConApp 

The Consolidated Application, often called the 

"ConApp", is a process used by the California 

Department of Education (CDE) to distribute federal 
and state categorical funds to county offices, school 

districts, and direct-funded charter schools in California. 

Vote  

 



It's a way for these entities to apply for and receive 

funding for various programs, such as Title I, Title II, 

and Title III, through a single, streamlined application.  
● ERC Received Funds Update 

The latest reconciliation from our ERC requests  
Informational Item: 

Local Indicator Self Reflection 
This is a required non-consent agenda item to be reviewed along with 

the LCAP 

 

Action Item:  

Final LCAP approval 

inclusive of the following components: 

● LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 

● Plan Summary 

● Engaging Educational Partners 

● Goals and Actions 

● Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, 

English Learners, and Low-income students 

● Action Tables 

● Instructions 

● The LCAP Federal Addendum 

Vote  

Action Item:  

Innovations Academy 25-26 Calendar and 

Instructional Minutes 

Vote  

 

Action Item: Board 

Board Positions and Training 

Discussion on board roles/positions.  

Selection of Board Secretary and Board 

Treasurer 

 

Discussion Item: 

Director succession draft plan follow up. The 

board will discuss the first draft succession 

outline. 

 

Informational Item: 

-Reminder to new board members to complete 

the Brown Act Training. 

-New Ethics Training for Board Members 
In California, charter school board members are required to complete 

at least two hours of ethics training by January 1, 2026, and then every 

two years thereafter. This requirement, mandated by Assembly Bill 

2158 (AB 2158), applies to all charter school governing board 
members, regardless of whether they receive compensation 

 

➢ Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting  

o Identify agenda items for next 

meeting 

 

Meeting adjourned   



 

The foregoing minutes were approved by the 

Board of Directors of Innovations Academy 

on ______ Secretary__________________ 



Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require 

special assistance or a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 

hours in advance. 

 

1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in 

teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are 

complied with: 

● At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate 

in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of 

California; 

● All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  

● If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all 

teleconference  

locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda 

of the  

meeting;  

● All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum 

participates in a  

meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and 

shall be listed on  

the agenda;  

● Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall 

be provided  

with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference 

location;  

and  

● The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted 

via  

teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  

● The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a 

condition of attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be 

required to identify themselves.  

 

 

mailto:Board@InnovationsAcademy.org


 

 

 

Innovations Academy Board Minutes: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

Meeting location(s) 

Innovations Academy 

5454 Ruffin Rd 

San Diego, CA 92123 

636 Hillsborough St, Oakland, 

CA 94606 
Public call in number  425-

436-6381* 

Access code 1637013 
*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in 

number is provided as a convenience to the public. 

 

Board Attendance 

Julia Stoer Faraz 

Sharafi 

Stephen 

Rosen 

Danielle 

Strachman 

   

 

Others in Attendance 
Christine 

Kuglen, 

Director 

Tom 

Marchand 

Karin Simma Tom Keliinoi public 

members via 

phone and in 

person 

  

 

Agenda 

Topic Minutes 

➢ Call to order / roll call Time/Date   5/13/25 @ 

Board in Attendance:  

Julia Stoer, Faraz Sharafi, Stephen 

Rosen, Danielle Strachman (phone) 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

● The closed session will address: 

employment changes for the 25-26 school year 
● Director succession discussion  

The Brown Act allows for closed sessions to consider 

the appointment, employment, evaluation of 

performance, discipline, or dismissal of a public 

employee. 

commenced at 6:05 pm 

Stephen (board president) announced the 

closed session and gave an informational 

explanation about a closed board portion of a 

meeting. 

The board went into closed session. 

Report on Closed Session 

 

6:29 the closed session was completed and 

moved to a different room for air and larger 

size. 

➢ Approval of current agenda Vote to approve current agenda - 

Motion to approve the current agenda was 

made by Faraz 

The motion was seconded by Julia 

Vote:  

Yes: Stephen, Danielle, Faraz, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

➢ Approval of prior month meeting minutes Vote to approve past minutes -  

Motion made by Danielle to approve the prior 

meeting minutes from March 11, 2025 

Stephen seconds 

Vote: unanimous 

https://www.google.com/search?safe=active&rlz=1C1RXQR_enUS1126US1127&cs=0&sca_esv=601b0517c7361365&q=the+appointment&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwi08u3WkIuNAxWHQzABHcpJM2oQxccNegQIBhAB&mstk=AUtExfBxd1LQwXz1O2dfEWcXDiWpWA_r_hG-ZZNMvej_l-yWzX0haHiNmcf5pHw1CXQNkR6RzHa5jJ9cBMhhpyNpLgnchkLBgBZiU9OXIxLxcH-PO44_m9sujdSC76OIqHrvoCw&csui=3


 

 

 

Innovations Academy Board Minutes: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

Yes: Stephen, Danielle, Faraz, Julia 

No:0 

Abstain: 0 

➢ Public comments (3 mins per person) Stephen shared with public the protocol for 

board responses to public comments and  asks 

for anyone on public line- nobody responded. 

 

Stephen asks for public comments in the room 

Lena Lamache daughter since 1st grade. Lena 

complains about Christine as director.  

Complaints of homophobia, racism and 

meanness to teachers. She said she is pulling 

her daughter from Innovations  

 

Selena, Aurea in 6th grade. Would like board 

meetings to be accessible and has had a few 

issues when calling in. She expressed wonder 

about a student rep on the board. 

 

Presentation and Action Item: Cariina 

Presentation (Michael Bolles) and vote on a 

proposed contract with Cariina, an organizational 

management software specifically designed for 

charter schools. 

 

Vote: Michael was introduced 

He is a rep from Cariina and shared about Cariina 

as a software platform that helps with 

organizational efficiency.  

Stephen asked about the speed of implementation 

as it was stated that it takes three days.  

Faraz asked about the purpose and use.  

Ultimately the board decided to explore this item 

more in the future. 

Action Item: Policies 
Fiscal Policy review and change: Our auditors brought 

to our attention that there are expenses that are over the 

$15,000 limit. Christine is suggesting that in our fiscal 

policy  we distinguish between capital expenses and 

operating expenses and increase the current limits. This 

item is to discuss and vote on changes. 
 

Christine shared that the auditors had an issue 

with an operational expense that did not get 

board approval. A discussion was had about 

several options for setting up new policy 

amounts.  

Stephen made a motion to amend the fiscal 

policy section 203 to have an operational 

expense cap of $50K and Capital expense cap 

of $30K.  

Faraz seconds 

Yes: Danielle, Faraz, Stephen, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Action Item: Reading Screener  
On January 1, 2025, Section 53008 was added to 

California Education Code requiring schools to 

implement the use of a reading screener. Section 53008 

requires LEAs to screen students in kindergarten 

through 2nd grade for reading delays, including 

dyslexia. It also requires that on or before June 30, 2025, 

Vote: 

Christine shared that new education code 

requires that Innovations Academy board 

approve a dyslexia reading screener for use in 

K-2. She described the process and product 

chosen by staff from a list approved by the 



 

 

 

Innovations Academy Board Minutes: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

LEAs must adopt, at a public meeting, one or more 

screening instruments from the list approved by the 

State Board appointed panel to assess students for risk 

of reading difficulties. This item is to approve the 

selected screener.  

 

board. She shared that this screener, 

Multitudes, was chosen due to ease of 

implementation, cost and access to training. 

A motion to adopt the Multitudes Screener was 

made by Julia 

Second by Stephen 

Vote: 

Yes: Stephen, Julia, Faraz, Danielle 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Action Item: Declaration of Need 
As of 1/1/2020, when credentialing laws for charters 

changed, Education Code §47605(l) was amended to 

provide charter schools the ability to request emergency 

permits or waivers from the Commission on Teacher 

Credentialing for individuals in the same manner as 

school districts. These documents include Provisional 

Internship Permits, Short-Term Staff Permits, 

Emergency Cross-cultural, Language and Academic 

Development (CLAD) permits, and Variable Term 

Waivers. These documents allow qualified individuals 

to be legally authorized to serve in their teaching 

assignment while they are working towards completing 

the credential requirements for the appropriate teaching 

credential for the educator’s assignment. IA must 

approve the DON prior to 6/20/25 

Christine reminded the board about the 

Declaration of Need submitted each year to the 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing. She 

presented the DON for the 25-26 school year.  

Danielle made a motion to approve the DON 

for 25-26 school year. 

Faraz seconds 

Vote: 

Yes: Faraz, Danielle, Julia, Stephen 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Proposed New Board Member Introduction 
Tom Marchand as parent on the board 

Kiran Simma as board member 

Tom Keliinoi as board member 

Members Leaving the Board 

Julia Stoer, Teacher Board Member 

Introductions, interview and discussion of new 

board candidates. 

Stephen shared about the need for 

board members and shared his 

community outreach in this regard.   

Tom Marchand: Parent of 3 children 

who attended for about 14 years here. 

He has a daughter in 4th grade. He 

expressed his willingness to participate, 

be fair and support the school’s 

mission. 

Kiran is a community member who 

lives in Scripps Ranch and has actively 

supported SDUSD committee work. 

She has children that are older now and 

she enjoys dedicating time to support 

education. She is interested in 

supporting Innovations Academy as a 

board member.  

Tom Keliinoi goes by TK, worked with 

Elevate Charter, worked on SDUnified 

changes in board terms and formerly 

worked at Qualcomm. He is interested 

https://www.linkedin.com/in/tom-marchand-b748b81/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/tom-keliinoi-sd/


 

 

 

Innovations Academy Board Minutes: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

in public education and charter schools. 

Faraz asked the candidates what they 

are looking to get from this 

responsibility and one thing you can 

give to the school. 

 Tom M. responded: Wishing to contribute as 

he has seen the impact the school has had on 

his kids and how his children have flourished. 

He expressed that he brings experience from 

an HOA board and understands how to make 

fiscally sound decisions and advocate for the 

school. 

TK expressed never having thought about what 

he was going to get but is interested on a 

granular level of his grandson’s education. He 

brings public policy from forming a charter to 

overseeing it. Stephen mentions that TK ran 

for the board of trustees in 2018. 

Kiran is not sure what she will get but what 

she can give is that she has been on a board 

and she knows how much it takes to run an 

institution. She thinks like an engineer and is 

thinking about how she can bring her technical 

mind to help this organization. 

 

Action Item: 

Vote on proposed new board members 

Vote on Tom Marchand as a parent board 

member 

Stephen makes a motion to approve the 

election of Tom Marchand to the board of 

Innovations Academy.  

Faraz seconds. 

Yes: Stephen, Faraz, Julia, Danielle 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

 

Faraz made a motion to elect TK (Tom 

Keliinoi) to the Innovations Academy board. 

Stephen seconds 

Yes: Faraz, Danielle, Julia Stephen 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

 

Julia made the motion to elect Kiran Simma to 

the Innovations Academy board. 

Faraz seconded the motion. 

Yes: Julia, Stephen, Danielle, Faraz 

No: 0 



 

 

 

Innovations Academy Board Minutes: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

Abstain: 0 

Discussion Item: LCAP  
Proposed Draft LCAP for public input and review. The 

draft LCAP with a summary will be reported. 

Christine presented the 25-26 draft LCAP. She 

shared about parent participation, the goals of 

the LCAP and focus areas.  

 

Discussion Item: Charter Renewal 
This summer we will be submitting our new charter. 

This item is to share out the process, invite preliminary 

discussion and discuss a meeting date for review. 

Christine informed the board that there will 

probably be a meeting this summer to present 

the charter to the board. Innovations Academy 

expects to submit its charter for renewal this 

summer. 

Informational Item: Marketing Report 
 GrowSchools was selected by the board earlier this year 

to run a marketing campaign. Stephen has met with 

them and will present about the progress of this 

campaign. 

Marketing was outsourced to a company 

“GrowSchools” and we are measuring data. 

Stephen asked for this agenda item. He is 

working on a way to follow the people who are 

calling the school. Stephen has met with 

GrowSchools team and will be sharing out data 

as we progress.  

Christine will send the most recent report to all 

board members when she receives it. 

Informational Item: Charter News 
Based on the board request made at the last meeting, 

Josh has provided information in the board packet from 

the annual CSDC conference. 

As a follow up, Josh shared the information 

that can be found in the packet about the 

CSDC conference. 

➢ Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting June 17th, next board meeting at 6 pm 

o Identify agenda items for next 

meeting 

Vote to change treasurer from Faraz and vote 

to change secretary from Julia 

Kiran asked if she could attend from a 

conference. She will be out of town. 

Meeting adjourned  7:56 pm 

 

The foregoing minutes were approved by the 

Board of Directors of Innovations Academy  

Date:          Secretary __________ ________ 

  



 

 

 

Innovations Academy Board Minutes: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

 

 

Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require 

special assistance or a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 

hours in advance. 

 

1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in 

teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are 

complied with: 

● At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate 

in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of 

California; 

● All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  

● If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all 

teleconference  

locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda 

of the  

meeting;  

● All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum 

participates in a  

meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and 

shall be listed on  

the agenda;  

● Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall 

be provided  

with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference 

location;  

and  

● The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted 

via  

teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  

● The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a 

condition of attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be 

required to identify themselves.  

 

 

mailto:Board@InnovationsAcademy.org


Innovations Academy 
Board Narrative 
June 17, 2025 
 
Approval of FY24-25 Estimated Actuals & FY25-26 Preliminary Budget 
 
There are two reports, the one labeled “2024-25 Estimated Actuals and 2025-26 Preliminary Budget - 
Innovations (Presentation Template)” is for presentation purposes, it is more detailed and more reader 
friendly. The one labeled “25-26 Preliminary Budget - Innovations (DISTRICT TEMPLATE)” contains the 
same data, just is on a template that will be submitted to the district. 
 
The purpose of this report and presentation is to get board approval on where the school projects to 
end the year fiscally and to approve the school’s initial preliminary budget for the 2025-26 year. 
For 2024-25 – under the column labeled “Estimated Actuals”, the school currently projects to end with a 
negative balance of ~<$12K> and thus a net fund balance for the year of ~$3.8M. This is an initial 
estimate and will be subject to change as the rest of the year’s actuals are completed. 
 
The 2025-26 Preliminary Budget – under the column labeled “Preliminary Budget” is based off 
enrollment of 455 with an ADA of 432.25. Net income is currently budget for 2025-26 of ~$4K, thus 
keeping the estimated fund balance around ~$3.8M. 
 
The column labeled “Variance” breaks down the difference between this years estimated to next years 
budget. 
 
Approval of 2024-25 and 2025-26 EPA Expenditures 
Attachment will have details on action item. 
 
Approval of 2025-26 Consolidated Application 
Attachment will have details on action item. 

 



Innovations Academy FY2425 FY2526
Enrollment 437                                   455                                18                                

ADA % 95.56% 95.00% (0)                                 
ADA 417.60                             432.25                          15                                

Account CodeRst Description Estimated Actuals Preliminary Budget
Variance between 
2025-26 and 2024-

25 Estimated Actuals

Revenue Limit 4,726,012                        5,075,222                     349,210                      
Total Federal Revenue 900,829                           166,059                        (734,770)                     
Other State Revenue 888,287                           1,284,884                     396,597                      
Local Revenue 256,032                           224,944                        (31,088)                       
Total Revenue 6,771,161                        6,751,109                     (20,052)                       
Certificated Salaries 2,609,000                        2,967,387                     358,387                      
Classified Salaries 909,304                           616,516                        (292,789)                     
Employee Benefits 1,028,647                        1,116,960                     88,313                        
Total Personnel Expenses 4,546,951                        4,700,863                     153,912                      
Books and Supplies 351,000                           351,000                        -                               
Services & Other Operating Expenses 1,794,875                        1,605,351                     (189,524)                     
Capital Outlay 90,000                             90,000                          -                               
Other Outgo -                                    -                                 -                               
Total Operational Expenses 2,235,875                        2,046,351                     (189,524)                     
Total Expenses 6,782,826                        6,747,214                     (35,612)                       
Net Income (11,665)                            3,895                            15,560                        

Net Income as a % of LCFF revenue -0.25% 0.08%
Net Income as a % of Total expenses -0.17% 0.06%

Beginning Balance 3,798,476                        3,786,810                     
Ending Balance 3,786,810                        3,790,705                     

Ending Balance as a % of Total expenses 55.83% 56.18%



Innovations Academy FY2425 FY2526
Enrollment 437                                    455                                 18                                 

ADA % 95.56% 95.00% (0)                                  
ADA 417.60                              432.25                           15                                 

Account CodeRst Description Estimated Actuals Preliminary Budget
Variance between 
2025-26 and 2024-

25 Estimated Actuals

8011 00 LCFF Revenue 572,287                            775,778                         203,491                       
8012 30 Education Protection Account Revenue 83,520                              86,450                           2,930                           
8019 00 Prior Year Income/Adjustments -                                
8096 00 Charter Schools Funding In-Lieu of Property Taxes 4,070,205                         4,212,994                     142,789                       
Revenue Limit 4,726,012                        5,075,222                     349,210                       

8181 65 Special Education - IDEA 56,420                              56,810                           390                               
8182 66 Special Education - Mental Health 4,997                             4,997                           
8220 47 Federal Child Nutrition Programs 40,000                              41,403                           1,403                           
8291 01 Title I Federal Revenue 43,626                              45,156                           1,530                           
8292 02 Title II Federal Revenue 7,432                                 7,693                             261                               
8293 03 Title III Federal Revenue -                                  -                                
8294 04 Title IV Federal Revenue 10,000                              10,000                           -                                
8299 00 ERC 743,351                            -                                  (743,351)                     
Total Federal Revenue 900,829                            166,059                         (734,770)                     

8792 65 Special Education - AB602 359,461                            372,071                         12,610                         
8520 47 State Child Nutrition Program 50,000                              51,754                           1,754                           
8550 00 Mandated Block Grant 8,362                                 8,582                             220                               
8560 12 State Lottery Revenue Prop 20 34,243                              35,445                           1,201                           
8560 22 State Lottery Revenue Unrestricted 79,762                              82,560                           2,798                           
8590 6770 Arts and Music Prop 28 58,821                              79,097                           20,276                         
8590 2600 ELOP 177,395                            168,112                         (9,283)                          
8590 65 SPED Mental Health 33,287                              34,455                           1,168                           
8590 7435 Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant -                                     188,000                         188,000                       
8590 6762 Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Block Grant 50,000                              233,007                         183,007                       
8590 6266 Educator Effectiveness Grant 30,144                              31,802                           1,658                           
8599 00 Prior Year State Income/Adjustments 6,813                                 -                                  (6,813)                          
Other State Revenue 888,287                            1,284,884                     396,597                       

8634 00 Student Lunch Revenue -                                
8650 00 Rental Income 133                                    -                                  (133)                             
8660 00 Interest Income 100,000                            100,000                         -                                
8682 00 Foundation Grants/Donations 10                                      -                                  (10)                                
8684 00 Student Body (ASB) Fundraising Revenue -                                  -                                
8685 00 School Site Fundraising 124,944                            124,944                         -                                
8699 00 All Other Local Revenue 30,945                              (30,945)                        
Local Revenue 256,032                            224,944                         (31,088)                       
Total Revenue 6,771,161                        6,751,109                     (20,052)                       

1100 00 Teachers'  Salaries 2,100,000                         2,277,387                     177,387                       
1120 00 Substitute Expense 40,000                              -                                  (40,000)                        
1200 00 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 157,000                            286,000                         129,000                       
1300 00 Certificated Supervisor and Administrator Salaries 237,000                            332,000                         95,000                         
1900 00 Other Certificated Salaries 75,000                              72,000                           (3,000)                          
Certificated Salaries 2,609,000                        2,967,387                     358,387                       

2100 00 Instructional Aide Salaries 390,000                            234,014                         (155,987)                     
2200 00 Classified Support Salaries (Maintenance, Food) 324,150                            208,182                         (115,968)                     
2300 00 Classified Supervisor and Administrator Salaries -                                     -                                  -                                
2400 00 Clerical, Technical, and Office Staff Salaries 170,154                            174,320                         4,166                           
2900 00 Other Classified Salaries (Noon and Yard Sup, etc.) 25,000                              -                                  (25,000)                        
Classified Salaries 909,304                            616,516                         (292,789)                     

3101 00 State Teachers' Retirement System 500,000                            566,771                         66,771                         
3202 00 Public Employees Retirement System -                                  -                                
3313 00 OASDI 112,792                            38,224                           (74,568)                        
3323 00 Medicare 51,967                           51,967                         
3403 00 Health & Welfare Benefits 340,000                            390,000                         50,000                         
3503 00 State Unemployment Insurance 30,418                              25,200                           (5,218)                          
3603 00 Worker Compensation Insurance 45,437                              44,799                           (638)                             
3703 00 Other Post Employment Benefits -                                  -                                
3903 00 Other Employee Benefits -                                  -                                
Employee Benefits 1,028,647                        1,116,960                     88,313                         
Total Personnel Expenses 4,546,951                        4,700,863                     153,912                       

4100 00 Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 13,000                              13,000                           -                                



4200 00 Books and Other Reference Materials 13,000                              13,000                           -                                
4300 00 Materials and Supplies 25,000                              25,000                           -                                
4315 00 Classroom Materials and Supplies 40,000                              40,000                           -                                
4342 00 School Sponsored Athletics -                                     -                                  -                                
4381 00 Plant/Facilities Maintenance 20,000                              20,000                           -                                
4400 00 Noncapitalized Equipment 25,000                              25,000                           -                                
4407 00 Student Educational Software 10,000                              10,000                           -                                
4410 00 Software and Software Licensing 85,000                              85,000                           -                                
4430 00 Noncapitalized Student Equipment 10,000                              10,000                           -                                
4700 47 Food and Food Supplies 110,000                            110,000                         -                                
Books and Supplies 351,000                            351,000                         -                                

5100 2600 Subagreements for Services 177,395                            177,395                         -                                
5200 00 Travel and Conferences 5,000                                 5,000                             -                                
5210 00 Training and Development Expense 30,000                              30,000                           -                                
5300 00 Dues and Memberships 12,000                              12,000                           -                                
5400 00 Insurance 75,000                              75,000                           -                                
5500 00 Operation and Housekeeping Services 85,000                              85,000                           -                                
5501 00 Utilities 210,000                            210,000                         -                                
5600 00 Space Rental/Leases Expense 120                                    120                                 -                                
5601 00 Building Maintenance 50,000                              50,000                           -                                
5602 00 Other Space Rental 1,500                                 1,500                             -                                
5605 00 Equipment Rental/Lease Expense 30,000                              30,000                           -                                
5610 00 Equipment Repair 5,000                                 5,000                             -                                
5800 00 Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 45,000                              45,000                           -                                
5803 00 Banking and Payroll Service Fees 20,000                              20,000                           -                                
5804 00 SPED AB602 Admin Fee -                                  -                                
5805 00 Legal Services 120,000                            65,000                           (55,000)                        
5806 00 Audit Services 10,500                              10,500                           -                                
5807 00 Legal Settlements 85,000                              30,000                           (55,000)                        
5809 00 Employee Tuition Reimbursement 5,000                                 5,000                             -                                
5810 00 Educational Consultants 330,000                            310,000                         (20,000)                        
5811 00 Student Transportation/Field Trips 7,000                                 7,000                             -                                
5812 00 Other Student Activities 580                                    580                                 -                                
5815 00 Advertising/Recruiting 30,000                              30,000                           -                                
5820 00 Fundraising Expense 6,000                                 6,000                             -                                
5830 00 Field Trip Expenses 110,000                            110,000                         -                                
5850 00 Scholarships Awarded -                                     -                                  -                                
5873 00 Financial Services 150,000                            80,000                           (70,000)                        
5874 00 Personnel Services-live scan, office temps 3,000                                 3,000                             -                                
5875 00 District Oversight Fee 141,780                            152,257                         10,476                         
5877 00 IT Services 8,000                                 8,000                             -                                
5890 00 Interest Expense/Fees 10,000                              10,000                           -                                
5891 00 Factoring Fees & Interest -                                  -                                
5900 00 Communications (Tele., Internet, Copies,Postage,Messenger) 32,000                              32,000                           -                                
5999 00 Expense Suspense -                                     -                                  -                                
Services & Other Operating Expenses 1,794,875                        1,605,351                     (189,524)                     

6900 00 Depreciation Expense 90,000                              90,000                           -                                
Capital Outlay 90,000                              90,000                           -                                

7310 65 Federal IDEA Indirect Fee -                                  -                                
Other Outgo -                                     -                                  -                                
Total Operational Expenses 2,235,875                        2,046,351                     (189,524)                     
Total Expenses 6,782,826                        6,747,214                     (35,612)                       
Net Income (11,665)                             3,895                             15,560                         

Net Income as a % of LCFF revenue -0.25% 0.08%
Net Income as a % of Total expenses -0.17% 0.06%
Beginning Balance 3,798,476                        3,786,810                     
Ending Balance 3,786,810                        3,790,705                     
Ending Balance as a % of Total expenses 55.83% 56.18%



Charter School Name: Innovations Academy
        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Projected Enrollment 455

   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District 37-68338 ADA Rate 95.00%
       County: San Diego Projected ADA 432.25

  SBE Charter #: 1024 Projected Unduplicated Pupil Count 195.00                         

Object Code  Unrestricted Budget  Restricted Budget Total Budget

A. REVENUES  (8000-8799)
1. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Sources - (8011-8097)

LCFF State Aid - Current Year (CY) (Res 0000) 8011 775,778                           775,778                        
Education Protection Account State Aid (EPA) - CY (Res 1400) 8012 86,450                             86,450                          
State Aid - Prior Years (LCFF State Aid and EPA) (Res 0000 and Res 1400) 8019 -                                      
Transfers to Charter Schools In Lieu of Property Taxes - CY & PY (Res 0000) 8096 4,212,994                       4,212,994                    
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 -                                      

Total, LCFF Sources 5,075,222                       -                                   5,075,222                    
2. Federal Revenues (8100-8299)

ESEA (ESSA): Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected (Res 3010) 8290 45,156                       45,156                          
ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants (Res 4035) 8290 7,693                          7,693                             
ESEA (ESSA) : Title III, English Learner Student Program (Res 4203) 8290 -                                   -                                      
ESEA (ESSA) : Title III, Immigrant Student Program (Res 4201) 8290 -                                      
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community Learning Centers Program (Res 4124) 8290 -                                      
ESEA (ESSA) Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants (Res 4127) 8290 10,000                       10,000                          
ESSA: Title IV, Part C, Public Charter Schools Grant Program (Res 4610) 8290 -                                      
Special Ed: IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3310) 8181 56,810                       56,810                          
Special Ed: IDEA Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3327) 8182 4,997                          4,997                             
Child Nutrition - Federal  (NSLP) (Res 5310 and others) 8220 41,403                       41,403                          
Maintenance and Operations (Public Law 81-874) (Res 0000) 8110 -                                      
Other Federal Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8100-8299 -                                      

Total - Federal Revenues -                                         166,059                     166,059                        
3. Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

State Special Education (Res 6500) 8792 372,071                     372,071                        
State Special Education Mental Health Services (Res 6512) 8590 34,455                       34,455                          
Mandate Block Grant (Res 0000) 8550 8,582                                8,582                             
After School Education and Safety (ASES) (Res 6010) 8677, 8590 -                                      
Common Core Standards Implementation (Res 7405) 8590 -                                      
Charter School Facility Grant Program (SB 740) (Res 6030) 8590 -                                      
COVID-19 LEA Response Funds (SB 117) (Res 7388) 8590 -                                      
Lottery, Unrestricted (Res 1100) 8560 82,560                             82,560                          
Lottery, Restricted - Prop 20 (Res 6300) 8560 35,445                       35,445                          
Proposition 39 - California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Res 6230) 8590 -                                      
Other State Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8300-8599 751,772                     751,772                        

Total - Other State Revenues 91,141                             1,193,742                  1,284,884                    
4. Local Revenue (8600-8799)

All Local Revenues 8600-8799 224,944                           224,944                        
Total - Local Revenues 224,944                           -                                   224,944                        

5. TOTAL REVENUES 5,391,307                      1,359,802                6,751,109                  
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER OUTGO (1000-7499)

1. Certificated Salaries 
Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,027,387                       250,000                     2,277,387                    
Pupil Support Salaries  1200 -                                         286,000                     286,000                        
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 332,000                           332,000                        
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 -                                         72,000                       72,000                          

Total, Certificated Salaries 2,359,387                       608,000                     2,967,387                    
2. Classified Salaries 

Instructional Salaries 2100 174,014                           60,000                       234,014                        
Support Salaries 2200 208,182                           208,182                        
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries  2300 -                                         -                                      
Clerical and Office Salaries  2400 174,320                           174,320                        
Other Classified Salaries 2900 -                                      

Total, Classified Salaries 556,516                           60,000                       616,516                        
3. Employee Benefits 

STRS 3101-3102 (41,229)                           608,000                     566,771                        
PERS 3201-3202 -                                      
OASDI/Medicare (Social Security) 3301-3302 42,809                             47,382                       90,191                          
Health and Welfare Benefits  3401-3402 330,000                           60,000                       390,000                        
Unemployment Insurance  3501-3502 25,200                             25,200                          
Workers' Compensation Insurance  3601-3602 44,799                             44,799                          
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 -                                      
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 -                                      
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 -                                      

Total, Employee Benefits 401,579                           715,382                     1,116,961                    
4. Books and Supplies 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 13,000                             13,000                          
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 13,000                             13,000                          
Materials and Supplies 4300 85,000                             85,000                          
Non-capitalized Equipment 4400 120,000                           10,000                       130,000                        
Food (Food used in food-service activities for which the purpose is nutrition) 4700 110,000                           110,000                        

Charter School Preliminary Budget
FY 2025-2026

Description



Charter School Name: Innovations Academy
        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Projected Enrollment 455

   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District 37-68338 ADA Rate 95.00%
       County: San Diego Projected ADA 432.25

  SBE Charter #: 1024 Projected Unduplicated Pupil Count 195.00                         

Object Code  Unrestricted Budget  Restricted Budget Total Budget

Charter School Preliminary Budget
FY 2025-2026

Description

Total, Books and Supplies 341,000                           10,000                       351,000                        
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

Subagreements for Services 5100 177,395                     177,395                        
Travel and Conferences 5200 35,000                             35,000                          
Dues and Memberships 5300 12,000                             12,000                          
Insurance 5400 75,000                             75,000                          
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 295,000                           295,000                        
Rentals,Leases,Repairs,and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 86,620                             86,620                          
Transfer of Direct Costs (MUST  net to zero) 5700 -                                      
Prof/Consulting Svcs and Operating Expend ( Include District Oversight ) 5800 692,337                           200,000                     892,337                        
Communications 5900 32,000                             32,000                          

Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 1,227,957                       377,395                     1,605,352                    
6. Capital Outlay 

Depreciation Expense (See Sections G.9 & F.2.a) 6900 90,000                             90,000                          
Total, Capital Outlay 90,000                             -                                   90,000                          
7. Other Outgo 

Tuition to Other Schools (Include contribution to unfunded cost of Sp Ed.) 7110-7143 -                                      
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 -                                      
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec Ed and All Others 7221-7223 -                                      
All Other Transfers 7280-7299 -                                      
Transfers of Indirect Costs ( MUST net to zero) 7300-7399 -                                      
Debt Service - Interest 7430-7439 -                                      
Debt Service - Principal  (FOR MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS ONLY) 7439 -                                      

Total, Other Outgo -                                         -                                   -                                      

8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,976,439                      1,770,777                6,747,216                  
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND. 

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 414,868                           (410,975)                   3,893                             

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (7600-7699, 8930-8999)
1. All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 -                                      
2. Other Uses 7630-7699 -                                      
3. Contributions between unrestricted and restricted accounts ( MUST net to zero) 8980-8999 (410,975)                         410,975                     -                                      

(Include contribution to the unfunded cost of Special Education)
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (410,975)                         410,975                     -                                      

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (C + D.4.) 3,893                                (0)                                 3,893                             

F. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 
1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position

a. July 1 (Projected Ending Fund Balance for FY ending 06/30/25) 9791 3,944,917                       3,944,917                    
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 -                                      
c. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position 3,944,917                       -                                   3,944,917                    

2. Projected Ending Fund Balance/Net Position, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 3,948,810                       (0)                                 3,948,810                    

Components of Ending Net Position
a. Net Investment in Capital Assets ( See Sections B.6 and G.9 ) 9796 46,983                             46,983                          
b. Restricted Net Position 9797 -                                      
c. Unrestricted Net Position 9791 -                                      



Instructions:
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy Column G " PY Estimated Actual" - manual input (data source: Est. Actual for FY ending 6/30/25)

        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Column H "Preliminary Budget" - will automatically populate (linked to Prelim Budget Template tab)
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District 37-68338 Column I "$ Change" - will automatically populate

       County: San Diego Column J "% Change" - will automatically populate
  SBE Charter #: 1024 Column K "Explanation" - provide an explanation if Column  J is highlighted in RED

Object Code
 Estimated Actual 

for FY Ending 
6/30/25            (A) 

 Preliminary 
Budget      

     (B) 

$  Change                
(B - A)        

      (C)

%  Change                
(C / A)

(D)

Explanation                                                                                                                                                                                                  
(e.g. enrollment increase; one-time purchase of 100 chrome books, etc.)                                                                                                                                                    

=>10% and =>(-10%)                                                                                                                                                          
change

A. REVENUES  (8000-8799)
1. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Sources - (8011-8097)

LCFF State Aid - Current Year (CY) (Res 0000) 8011 572,287                  775,778               203,491$                 36% Increase in enrollment. 
Education Protection Account State Aid (EPA) - CY (Res 1400) 8012 83,520                     86,450                 2,930$                      4%
State Aid - Prior Years (LCFF State Aid and EPA) (Res 0000 and Res 1400) 8019 -                             -$                          0%
Transfers to Charter Schools In Lieu of Property Taxes - CY & PY (Res 0000) 8096 4,070,205               4,212,994           142,789$                 4%
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 -                             -$                          0%

Total, LCFF Sources 4,726,012             5,075,222         349,210$               7%
2. Federal Revenues (8100-8299)

ESEA (ESSA): Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected (Res 3010) 8290 43,626                     45,156                 1,530$                      4%
ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants (Res 4035) 8290 7,432                       7,693                    261$                         4%
ESEA (ESSA) : Title III, English Learner Student Program (Res 4203) 8290 -                             -$                          0%
ESEA (ESSA) : Title III, Immigrant Student Program (Res 4201) 8290 -                             -$                          0%
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community Learning Centers Program (Res 4124) 8290 -                             -$                          0%
ESEA (ESSA) Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants (Res 4127) 8290 10,000                     10,000                 -$                          0%
ESSA: Title IV, Part C, Public Charter Schools Grant Program (Res 4610) 8290 -                             -$                          0%
Special Ed: IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3310) 8181 56,420                     56,810                 390$                         1%
Special Ed: IDEA Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3327) 8182 4,997                    4,997$                      0%
Child Nutrition - Federal  (NSLP) (Res 5310 and others) 8220 40,000                     41,403                 1,403$                      4%
Maintenance and Operations (Public Law 81-874) (Res 0000) 8110 -                             -$                          0%
Other Federal Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8100-8299 743,351                  -                             (743,351)$               -100% Less ERC funds. 

Total - Federal Revenues 900,829                 166,059             (734,770)$             -82%
3. Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

State Special Education (Res 6500) 8792 359,461                  372,071               12,610$                   4%
State Special Education Mental Health Services (Res 6512) 8590 33,287                     34,455                 1,168$                      4%
Mandate Block Grant (Res 0000) 8550 8,362                       8,582                    220$                         3%
After School Education and Safety (ASES) (Res 6010) 8677, 8590 -                             -$                          0%
Common Core Standards Implementation (Res 7405) 8590 -                             -$                          0%
Charter School Facility Grant Program (SB 740) (Res 6030) 8590 -                             -$                          0%
COVID-19 LEA Response Funds (SB 117) (Res 7388) 8590 -                             -$                          0%
Lottery, Unrestricted (Res 1100) 8560 79,762                     82,560                 2,798$                      4%
Lottery, Restricted - Prop 20 (Res 6300) 8560 34,243                     35,445                 1,201$                      4%
Proposition 39 - California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Res 6230) 8590 -                             -$                          0%
Other State Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8300-8599 373,173                  751,772               378,599$                 101% Increase usage in restricted funds. 

Total - Other State Revenues 888,288                 1,284,884         396,596$               45%
4. Local Revenue (8600-8799)

All Local Revenues 8600-8799 256,032                  224,944               (31,088)$                  -12% Not including funds unique to respective year. 
Total - Local Revenues 256,032                 224,944             (31,088)$                -12%

5. TOTAL REVENUES 6,771,161             6,751,109         (20,052)$                0%
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER OUTGO (1000-7499)

1. Certificated Salaries 
Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,140,000               2,277,387           137,387$                 6%
Pupil Support Salaries  1200 157,000                  286,000               129,000$                 82% Added one additional position and reclassifying positions from 2200. 
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 237,000                  332,000               95,000$                   40% Added one additional position. 
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 75,000                     72,000                 (3,000)$                    -4%

Total, Certificated Salaries 2,609,000             2,967,387         358,387$               14%
2. Classified Salaries 

Instructional Salaries 2100 390,000                  234,014               (155,987)$               -40% Removing a few positions. 
Support Salaries 2200 324,150                  208,182               (115,968)$               -36% Reclassifying positions to 1200. 
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries  2300 -                             -$                          0%
Clerical and Office Salaries  2400 170,154                  174,320               4,166$                      2%

Description

PY ESTIMATED ACTUALS   vs   CY BUDGET



Instructions:
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy Column G " PY Estimated Actual" - manual input (data source: Est. Actual for FY ending 6/30/25)

        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Column H "Preliminary Budget" - will automatically populate (linked to Prelim Budget Template tab)
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District 37-68338 Column I "$ Change" - will automatically populate

       County: San Diego Column J "% Change" - will automatically populate
  SBE Charter #: 1024 Column K "Explanation" - provide an explanation if Column  J is highlighted in RED

Object Code
 Estimated Actual 

for FY Ending 
6/30/25            (A) 

 Preliminary 
Budget      

     (B) 

$  Change                
(B - A)        

      (C)

%  Change                
(C / A)

(D)

Explanation                                                                                                                                                                                                  
(e.g. enrollment increase; one-time purchase of 100 chrome books, etc.)                                                                                                                                                    

=>10% and =>(-10%)                                                                                                                                                          
change

Description

PY ESTIMATED ACTUALS   vs   CY BUDGET

Other Classified Salaries 2900 25,000                     -                             (25,000)$                  -100% Reclassifying positions to 1200. 
Total, Classified Salaries 909,304                 616,516             (292,789)$             -32%
3. Employee Benefits 

STRS 3101-3102 500,000                  566,771               66,771$                   13% Based off notes above.  
PERS 3201-3202 -                             -$                          0%
OASDI/Medicare (Social Security) 3301-3302 112,792                  90,191                 (22,601)$                  -20% Based off notes above.  
Health and Welfare Benefits  3401-3402 340,000                  390,000               50,000$                   15% Based off notes above.  
Unemployment Insurance  3501-3502 30,418                     25,200                 (5,218)$                    -17% Based off notes above.  
Workers' Compensation Insurance  3601-3602 45,437                     44,799                 (638)$                        -1%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 -                             -$                          0%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 -                             -$                          0%
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 -                             -$                          0%

Total, Employee Benefits 1,028,647             1,116,961         88,314$                  9%
4. Books and Supplies 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 13,000                     13,000                 -$                          0%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 13,000                     13,000                 -$                          0%
Materials and Supplies 4300 85,000                     85,000                 -$                          0%
Non-capitalized Equipment 4400 130,000                  130,000               -$                          0%
Food (Food used in food-service activities for which the purpose is nutrition) 4700 110,000                  110,000               -$                          0%

Total, Books and Supplies 351,000                 351,000             -$                          0%
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

Subagreements for Services 5100 177,395                  177,395               0$                               0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 35,000                     35,000                 -$                          0%
Dues and Memberships 5300 12,000                     12,000                 -$                          0%
Insurance 5400 75,000                     75,000                 -$                          0%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 295,000                  295,000               -$                          0%
Rentals,Leases,Repairs,and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 86,620                     86,620                 -$                          0%
Transfer of Direct Costs (MUST  net to zero) 5700 -                             -$                          0%
Prof/Consulting Svcs and Operating Expend ( Include District Oversight ) 5800 1,081,860               892,337               (189,523)$               -18% Decrease in legal related fees. 
Communications 5900 32,000                     32,000                 -$                          0%

Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 1,794,875             1,605,352         (189,523)$             -11%
6. Capital Outlay 

Depreciation Expense (See Sections G.9 & F.2.a) 6900 90,000                     90,000                 -$                          0%
Total, Capital Outlay 90,000                   90,000                -$                          0%
7. Other Outgo 

Tuition to Other Schools (Include contribution to unfunded cost of Sp Ed.) 7110-7143 -                             -$                          0%
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 -                             -$                          0%
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec Ed and All Others 7221-7223 -                             -$                          0%
All Other Transfers 7280-7299 -                             -$                          0%
Transfers of Indirect Costs ( MUST net to zero) 7300-7399 -                             -$                          0%
Debt Service - Interest 7430-7439 -                             -$                          0%
Debt Service - Principal  (FOR MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS ONLY) 7439 -                             -$                          0%

Total, Other Outgo -                                -                             -$                          0%

8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,782,826             6,747,216         (35,610)$                -1%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND. 

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) (11,665)                 3,893                  15,558$                  -133%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (7600-7699, 8930-8999)
1. All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 -                             -$                          0%
2. Other Uses 7630-7699 -                             -$                          0%
3. Contributions between unrestricted and restricted accounts ( MUST net to zero) 8980-8999 -                             -$                          0%



Instructions:
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy Column G " PY Estimated Actual" - manual input (data source: Est. Actual for FY ending 6/30/25)

        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Column H "Preliminary Budget" - will automatically populate (linked to Prelim Budget Template tab)
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District 37-68338 Column I "$ Change" - will automatically populate

       County: San Diego Column J "% Change" - will automatically populate
  SBE Charter #: 1024 Column K "Explanation" - provide an explanation if Column  J is highlighted in RED

Object Code
 Estimated Actual 

for FY Ending 
6/30/25            (A) 

 Preliminary 
Budget      

     (B) 

$  Change                
(B - A)        

      (C)

%  Change                
(C / A)

(D)

Explanation                                                                                                                                                                                                  
(e.g. enrollment increase; one-time purchase of 100 chrome books, etc.)                                                                                                                                                    

=>10% and =>(-10%)                                                                                                                                                          
change

Description

PY ESTIMATED ACTUALS   vs   CY BUDGET

(Include contribution to the unfunded cost of Special Education)
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES -                                -                             -$                          0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (C + D.4.) (11,665)                 3,893                  15,558$                  -133%

F. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 
1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position

a. July 1 (Projected Ending Fund Balance for FY ending 06/30/25) 9791 3,923,234               3,944,917           21,683$                   1%
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 33,348                     -                             (33,348)$                  -100%
c. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position 3,956,582               3,944,917           (11,665)$                  0%

2. Projected Ending Fund Balance/Net Position, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 3,944,917               3,948,810           3,893$                      0%

Components of Ending Net Position
a. Net Investment in Capital Assets ( See Sections B.6 and G.9 ) 9796 136,983                  46,983                 (90,000)$                  -66%
b. Restricted Net Position 9797 -                             -$                          0%
c. Unrestricted Net Position 9791 -                             -$                          0%

Net Operating Profit (Revenue > Expenses) NOT MET MET
Required Unrestricted Fund Balance (3% of expenses) 203,485                  202,416               

Reserve for Economic Uncertainty MET MET



Innovations Academy (118083) 
 2022-23  2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27  2027-28  2028-29  2029-30 

General Assumptions
COLA & Augmentation 13.26% 8.22% 1.07% 2.30% 3.52% 3.63% 3.49% 3.39%
Base Grant Proration Factor 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Add-on, ERT & MSA Proration Factor 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Student Assumptions:

Enrollment Count 467 434 437 455 478 485 490 500
Unduplicated Pupil Count (UPC) 106 141 187 195 205 208 210 214
Unduplicated Pupil Percentage (UPP) 27.61% 27.68% 32.44% 39.44% 42.84% 42.86% 42.86% 42.86%
Current Year LCFF Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 440.39 416.85 417.6 432.25 454.1 460.75 465.5 475
Funded LCFF ADA 440.39 416.85 417.6 432.25 454.1 460.75 465.5 475

LCFF ADA Funding Method Current Year  Current Year  Current Year  Current Year  Current Year  Current Year  Current Year  Current Year 
Current Year Necessary Small School (NSS) ADA -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded NSS ADA -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

LCFF Entitlement Summary
Base Grant $4,095,174 $4,195,786 $4,241,325 $4,501,428 $4,896,011 $5,149,490 $5,383,299 $5,674,260
Grade Span Adjustment 192,287 188,618 196,793 202,730 215,004 222,794 236,208 255,816
Adjusted Base Grant $4,287,461 $4,384,404 $4,438,118 $4,704,158 $5,111,015 $5,372,284 $5,619,507 $5,930,076
Supplemental Grant 236,754 242,721 287,946 371,064 437,912 460,512 481,703 508,327
Concentration Grant -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Base, Supplemental and Concentration Grant $4,524,215 $4,627,125 $4,726,064 $5,075,222 $5,548,927 $5,832,796 $6,101,210 $6,438,403
Allowance: Necessary Small School -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Add-on: Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Add-on: Home-to-School Transportation -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Add-on: Small School District Bus Replacement Program -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Add-on: Economic Recovery Target -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Add-on: Transitional Kindergarten 13,727  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Allowance and Add-On Amounts $13,727  $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Total LCFF Entitlement Before Adjustments (excludes Additional State Aid) $4,537,942 $4,627,125 $4,726,064 $5,075,222 $5,548,927 $5,832,796 $6,101,210 $6,438,403

Miscellaneous Adjustments -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total LCFF Entitlement (excludes Additional State Aid) $4,537,942 $4,627,125 $4,726,064 $5,075,222 $5,548,927 $5,832,796 $6,101,210 $6,438,403 
LCFF Entitlement Per ADA (excludes Categorical MSA) $10,304 $11,100 $11,317 $11,741 $12,220 $12,659 $13,107 $13,555 
Additional State Aid -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total LCFF Entitlement with Additional State Aid 4,537,942 4,627,125 4,726,064 5,075,222 5,548,927 5,832,796 6,101,210 6,438,403

LCFF Sources Summary
Funding Source Summary

Local Revenue and In-Lieu of Property Taxes (net for school districts) $3,679,947 $3,837,638 $4,040,380 $4,212,994 $4,425,958 $4,490,774 $4,537,070 $4,629,664
Education Protection Account Entitlement (includes $200/minimum per ADA) $88,078 $83,370 $83,520 $86,450 $90,820 $92,150 $93,100 $95,000
Net State Aid (excludes Additional State Aid) $769,917 $706,117 $602,164 $775,778 $1,032,149 $1,249,872 $1,471,040 $1,713,740
Additional State Aid $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

Total Funding Sources $4,537,942 $4,627,125 $4,726,064 $5,075,222 $5,548,927 $5,832,796 $6,101,210 $6,438,403 

Funding Source by Resource-Object
State Aid (Resource Code 0000, Object Code 8011) $769,917 $706,117 $602,164 $775,778 $1,032,149 $1,249,872 $1,471,040 $1,713,740
EPA, Current Year (Resource 1400, Object Code 8012)
       (P-2 plus Current Year Accrual)

EPA, Prior Year Adjustment (Resource 1400, Object Code 8019)
          (P-A less Prior Year Accrual)

Property Taxes (Object 8021 to 8089) $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
% Change 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

In-Lieu of Property Taxes (Object Code 8096) 3,679,947 3,837,638 4,040,380 4,212,994 4,425,958 4,490,774 4,537,070 4,629,664

Entitlement and Source Reconciliation
Basic Aid/Excess Tax District Status $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Total LCFF Entitlement $4,537,942 $4,627,125 $4,726,064 $5,075,222 $5,548,927 $5,832,796 $6,101,210 $6,438,403
Additional State Aid $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Additional EPA Minimum Entitlement (excess to LCFF Entitlement) $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Excess Taxes before Minimum State Aid $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Total Funding Sources $4,537,942 $4,627,125 $4,726,064 $5,075,222 $5,548,927 $5,832,796 $6,101,210 $6,438,403

LCAP Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Calculation
Base Grant (Excludes add-ons for TIIG & Transportation) $4,301,188 $4,384,404 $4,438,118 $4,704,158 $5,111,015 $5,372,284 $5,619,507 $5,930,076
Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding in the LCAP year $236,754 $242,721 $287,946 $371,064 $437,912 $460,512 $481,703 $508,327
Projected Additional 15% Concentration Grant funding in the LCAP year $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 5.50% 5.54% 6.49% 7.89% 8.57% 8.57% 8.57% 8.57%

Necessary Small School Allowance by School
District Current Year Necessary Small School (NSS) ADA -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
District Funded NSS ADA -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
District NSS Allowance $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

 NSS #1     

NSS Funding Basis (Greater of CY, PY, or 3PY Average) Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr 
CY ADA (Actual) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded ADA for NSS -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded NSS Allowance $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

 NSS #2      

NSS Funding Basis (Greater of CY, PY, or 3PY Average) Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr 
CY ADA (Actual) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

$93,100 $95,000

$1,234  $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

$88,078 $83,370 $83,520 $86,450 $90,820 $92,150



Funded ADA for NSS -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded NSS Allowance $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

 NSS #3     

NSS Funding Basis (Greater of CY, PY, or 3PY Average) Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr 
CY ADA (Actual) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded ADA for NSS -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded NSS Allowance $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

 NSS #4     

NSS Funding Basis (Greater of CY, PY, or 3PY Average) Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr 
CY ADA (Actual) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded ADA for NSS -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded NSS Allowance $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

 NSS #5     

NSS Funding Basis (Greater of CY, PY, or 3PY Average) Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr  Current Yr 
CY ADA (Actual) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded ADA for NSS -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Funded NSS Allowance $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   

PER-ADA FUNDING LEVELS
Base, Supplemental and Concentration Rate per ADA

Grades TK-3 $10,677.77 $11,557.25 $11,786.09 $12,216.16 $12,725.26 $13,187.16 $13,647.50 $14,110.02
Grades 4-6 $9,817.77 $10,626.42 $10,837.28 $11,232.22 $11,700.37 $12,125.32 $12,548.75 $12,974.35
Grades 7-8 $10,109.01 $10,940.92 $11,157.81 $11,564.51 $12,046.71 $12,484.69 $12,920.07 $13,357.61
Grades 9-12 $12,020.01 $13,009.42 $13,268.40 $13,751.40 $14,324.46 $14,846.14 $15,364.02 $15,885.17

Base Grants
Grades TK-3 $9,166 $9,919 $10,025 $10,256 $10,617 $11,002 $11,386 $11,772
Grades 4-6 $9,304 $10,069 $10,177 $10,411 $10,777 $11,168 $11,558 $11,950
Grades 7-8 $9,580 $10,367 $10,478 $10,719 $11,096 $11,499 $11,900 $12,303
Grades 9-12 $11,102 $12,015 $12,144 $12,423 $12,860 $13,327 $13,792 $14,260

Grade Span Adjustment
Grades TK-3 $953 $1,032 $1,043 $1,067 $1,104 $1,144 $1,184 $1,224
Grades 9-12 $289 $312 $316 $323 $334 $347 $359 $371

Prorated Base, Supplemental and Concentration Rate per ADA
Grades TK-3 $10,119 $10,951 $11,068 $11,323 $11,721 $12,146 $12,570 $12,996
Grades 4-6 $9,304 $10,069 $10,177 $10,411 $10,777 $11,168 $11,558 $11,950
Grades 7-8 $9,580 $10,367 $10,478 $10,719 $11,096 $11,499 $11,900 $12,303
Grades 9-12 $11,391 $12,327 $12,460 $12,746 $13,194 $13,674 $14,151 $14,631

Prorated Base Grants
Grades TK-3 $9,166 $9,919 $10,025 $10,256 $10,617 $11,002 $11,386 $11,772
Grades 4-6 $9,304 $10,069 $10,177 $10,411 $10,777 $11,168 $11,558 $11,950
Grades 7-8 $9,580 $10,367 $10,478 $10,719 $11,096 $11,499 $11,900 $12,303
Grades 9-12 $11,102 $12,015 $12,144 $12,423 $12,860 $13,327 $13,792 $14,260

Prorated Grade Span Adjustment
Grades TK-3 $953 $1,032 $1,043 $1,067 $1,104 $1,144 $1,184 $1,224
Grades 9-12 $289 $312 $316 $323 $334 $347 $359 $371

Supplemental Grant 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%
  Maximum - 1.00 ADA, 100% UPP

Grades TK-3 $2,024 $2,190 $2,214 $2,265 $2,344 $2,429 $2,514 $2,599
Grades 4-6 $1,861 $2,014 $2,035 $2,082 $2,155 $2,234 $2,312 $2,390
Grades 7-8 $1,916 $2,073 $2,096 $2,144 $2,219 $2,300 $2,380 $2,461
Grades 9-12 $2,278 $2,465 $2,492 $2,549 $2,639 $2,735 $2,830 $2,926

Actual - 1.00 ADA, Local UPP as follows: 27.61% 27.68% 32.44% 39.44% 42.84% 42.86% 42.86% 42.86%
Grades TK-3 $559 $606 $718 $893 $1,004 $1,041 $1,078 $1,114
Grades 4-6 $514 $557 $660 $821 $923 $957 $991 $1,024
Grades 7-8 $529 $574 $680 $846 $951 $986 $1,020 $1,055
Grades 9-12 $629 $682 $808 $1,005 $1,130 $1,172 $1,213 $1,254

Concentration Grant (>55% population) 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65%
  Maximum - 1.00 ADA, 100% UPP

Grades TK-3 $6,577 $7,118 $7,194 $7,360 $7,619 $7,895 $8,171 $8,447
Grades 4-6 $6,048 $6,545 $6,615 $6,767 $7,005 $7,259 $7,513 $7,768
Grades 7-8 $6,227 $6,739 $6,811 $6,967 $7,212 $7,474 $7,735 $7,997
Grades 9-12 $7,404 $8,013 $8,099 $8,285 $8,576 $8,888 $9,198 $9,510

Actual - 1.00 ADA, Local UPP >55% as follows: 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Grades TK-3 $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Grades 4-6 $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Grades 7-8 $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   
Grades 9-12 $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-    $-   



Innovations Academy FY2526 July August September October November December January February March April May June Accruals
FY2526 Enrollment 455.00                     

ADA % 95% 5% 5% 9% 9% 9% 9% 9% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%
ADA 432.25                     6% 12% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 33% 17% 17% 17% 17%

Object Rst Description Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
8011 00 LCFF Revenue 775,778                   28,614        28,614        51,506        51,506        51,506        51,506        51,506        92,204        92,204        92,204        92,204        92,204        -              
8012 30 Education Protection Account Revenue 86,450                     20,880        20,880        22,345        22,345        -              
8019 00 Prior Year Income/Adjustments -              
8096 00 Charter Schools Funding In-Lieu of Property Taxes 4,212,994               244,212      488,425      325,616      325,616      325,616      325,616      325,616      617,425      308,712      308,712      308,712      308,712      
Revenue Limit 5,075,222               28,614        272,827      560,810      377,122      377,122      398,002      377,122      417,820      731,974      400,917      400,917      423,262      308,712      
8181 65 Special Education - IDEA 56,810                     28,405        28,405        
8182 66 Special Education - Mental Health 4,997                       -              -              -              -              2,498          2,498          
8220 47 Federal Child Nutrition Programs 41,403                     -              -              -              4,600          4,600          4,600          4,600          4,600          4,600          4,600          9,201          
8290 00 All Other Federal Revenues - CSFIG -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
8290 00 All Other Federal Revenues -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
8291 01 Title I Federal Revenue 45,156                     -              -              -              9,031          -              11,289        -              -              11,289        13,547        
8292 02 Title II Federal Revenue 7,693                       -              -              -              1,539          -              -              1,923          -              1,923          2,308          
8293 03 Title III Federal Revenue -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
8294 04 Title IV Federal Revenue 10,000                     2,500          2,500          5,000          
8295 05 Title V Federal Revenue -              
8299 00 Prior Year Federal Revenue -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Total Federal Revenue 166,059                  -              -              -              17,670        4,600          35,504        20,313        4,600          4,600          4,600          13,212        -              60,959        

8792 65 Special Education - AB602 372,071                   17,973        17,973        32,351        32,351        32,351        32,351        32,351        34,874        34,874        34,874        34,874        34,874        -              
8520 47 State Child Nutrition Program 51,754                     -              -              -              5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          5,175          
8550 00 Mandated Block Grant 8,582                       -              -              -              8,582          -              -              -              
8590 6770 Arts and Music Prop 28 79,097                     -              -              -              -              -              39,549        39,549        -              
8560 12 State Lottery Revenue Prop 20 35,445                     -              -              -              -              -              8,861          8,861          17,722        -              
8560 22 State Lottery Revenue Unrestricted 82,560                     -              -              -              -              -              20,640        20,640        41,280        -              
8590 2600 ELOP 168,112                   -              -              84,056        84,056        -              
8590 65 All Other State Revenues 34,455                     -              -              -              -              -              17,227        17,227        -              
8590 7435 Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant 188,000                   -              -              -              -              -              94,000        94,000        -              
8590 6762 Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Block Grant 233,007                   -              -              -              -              -              116,504      116,504      -              
8590 6266 Educator Effectiveness Grant 31,802                     -              -              -              -              -              15,901        15,901        -              
Other State Revenue 1,284,884               17,973        17,973        32,351        46,109        37,527        434,264      37,527        40,049        40,049        69,550        40,049        466,287      5,175          

8634 00 Student Lunch Revenue -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
8650 00 Rental Income -              
8660 00 Interest Income 100,000                   50,000        50,000        -              
8682 00 Foundation Grants/Donations -                           -              
8684 00 Student Body (ASB) Fundraising Revenue -                           -              
8685 00 School Site Fundraising 124,944                   62,472        62,472        -              
8688 00 In Kind Contributions -                           -              
8698 00 E-rate Revenue -                           -              
8699 00 All Other Local Revenue -                           -              
Local Revenue 224,944                  -              -              -              -              -              112,472      -              -              -              -              -              112,472      -              
Total Revenue 6,751,109               46,587        290,800      593,162      440,901      419,249      980,242      434,962      462,470      776,623      475,067      454,178      1,002,021   374,847      

1100 00 Teachers'  Salaries 2,277,387               207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      207,035      -              
1120 00 Substitute Expense -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
1200 00 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 286,000                   26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        26,000        -              
1300 00 Certificated Supervisor and Administrator Salaries 332,000                   27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        27,667        -              
1900 00 Other Certificated Salaries 72,000                     6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          6,545          -              
Certificated Salaries 2,967,387               27,667        267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      267,247      -              

2100 00 Instructional Aide Salaries 234,014                   21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        21,274        -              
2200 00 Classified Support Salaries (Maintenance, Food) 208,182                   18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        18,926        -              
2300 00 Classified Supervisor and Administrator Salaries -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
2400 00 Clerical, Technical, and Office Staff Salaries 174,320                   14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        14,527        -              
2900 00 Other Classified Salaries (Noon and Yard Sup, etc.) -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Classified Salaries 616,516                  14,527        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        54,726        -              

3101 00 State Teachers' Retirement System 566,771                   5,284          51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        51,044        -              
3202 00 Public Employees Retirement System -                           -              
3313 00 OASDI 38,224                     3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          3,185          -              
3323 00 Medicare 51,967                     4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          4,331          -              
3403 00 Health & Welfare Benefits 390,000                   32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        32,500        -              
3503 00 State Unemployment Insurance 25,200                     2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          2,100          -              
3603 00 Worker Compensation Insurance 44,799                     3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          3,733          -              
3703 00 Other Post Employment Benefits -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
3903 00 Other Employee Benefits -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Employee Benefits 1,116,960               51,133        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        96,893        -              
Total Personnel Expenses 4,700,863               93,327        418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      418,867      -              

4100 00 Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 13,000                     3,250          6,500          3,250          -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
4200 00 Books and Other Reference Materials 13,000                     1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          1,083          -              
4300 00 Materials and Supplies 25,000                     2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          -              
4315 00 Classroom Materials and Supplies 40,000                     3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          3,333          -              
4381 00 Housekeeping Supplies 20,000                     1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          -              
4400 00 Noncapitalized Equipment 25,000                     2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          2,083          -              
4407 00 Student Educational Software 10,000                     833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             -              
4410 00 Software and Software Licensing 85,000                     7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          -              
4430 00 Noncapitalized Student Equipment 10,000                     833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             -              
4700 47 Food and Food Supplies 110,000                   9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          -              
Books and Supplies 351,000                  31,417        34,667        31,417        28,167        28,167        28,167        28,167        28,167        28,167        28,167        28,167        28,167        -              

5100 2600 Subagreements for Services 177,395                   14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        14,783        -              
5200 00 Travel and Conferences 5,000                       417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             -              
5210 00 Training and Development Expense 30,000                     2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          -              
5300 00 Dues and Memberships 12,000                     1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          1,000          -              
5400 00 Insurance 75,000                     6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          6,250          -              
5500 00 Operation and Housekeeping Services/Supplies 85,000                     7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          7,083          -              
5501 00 Utilities 210,000                   17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        17,500        -              
5600 00 Space Rental/Leases Expense 120                          10                10                10                10                10                10                10                10                10                10                10                10                -              
5601 00 Building Maintenance 50,000                     4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          4,167          -              
5602 00 Other Space Rental 1,500                       125             125             125             125             125             125             125             125             125             125             125             125             -              
5605 00 Equipment Rental/Leasing Expense 30,000                     2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          -              
5610 00 Equipment Repair 5,000                       417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             -              
5800 00 Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenses 45,000                     3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          3,750          -              
5803 00 Banking and Payroll Fees 20,000                     1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          1,667          -              
5804 00 SPED AB602 Admin Fee to County -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
5805 00 Legal Fees 65,000                     5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          5,417          -              
5806 00 Audit Services 10,500                     875             875             875             875             875             875             875             875             875             875             875             875             -              
5807 00 Legal Settlements 30,000                     2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          -              
5809 00 Employee Tuition Reimbursement 5,000                       417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             417             -              
5810 00 Educational Consultants 310,000                   25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        25,833        -              
5811 00 Student Field Trips/Activities 7,000                       583             583             583             583             583             583             583             583             583             583             583             583             -              
5812 00 Substitutes 580                          48                48                48                48                48                48                48                48                48                48                48                48                -              
5815 00 Advertising/Recruiting 30,000                     2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          2,500          -              
5820 00 Fundraising Expense 6,000                       500             500             500             500             500             500             500             500             500             500             500             500             -              
5830 00 Field Trip Expenses 110,000                   9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          9,167          -              
5873 00 Financial Services-CSMC 80,000                     6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          6,667          -              



5874 00 Personnel Services-live scan, office temps 3,000                       250             250             250             250             250             250             250             250             250             250             250             250             -              
5875 00 District Oversight Fees 152,257                   12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        12,688        -              
5877 00 IT Services 8,000                       667             667             667             667             667             667             667             667             667             667             667             667             -              
5890 00 Interest Expense / Misc. Fees 10,000                     833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             833             -              
5899 00 CMO Management Fees -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
5900 00 Communications 32,000                     2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          2,667          -              
5999 00 Expenses Suspense -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Services & Other Operating Expenses 1,605,351               133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      133,779      -              

6900 00 Depreciation Expense 90,000                     7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          -              
Capital Outlay 90,000                     7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          -              

7310 65 Indirect Charges on Federal IDEA -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Other Outgo -                           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Total Operational Expenses 2,046,351               172,696      175,946      172,696      169,446      169,446      169,446      169,446      169,446      169,446      169,446      169,446      169,446      -              
Total Expenses 6,747,214               266,023      594,813      591,563      588,313      588,313      588,313      588,313      588,313      588,313      588,313      588,313      588,313      -              
Net Income 3,895                       (219,435)     (304,013)     1,599          (147,412)     (169,063)     391,930      (153,351)     (125,843)     188,310      (113,246)     (134,135)     413,708      374,847      

CASH FLOWS
Cash At Beginning of Period 6/30/24 Balance 3,902,452   3,817,517   3,521,004   3,530,103   3,390,191   3,228,628   3,628,057   3,482,206   3,363,863   3,559,673   3,453,927   3,327,292   3,522,096   

      Accounts Receivable (250,000)                 250,000      (374,847)     
      Accounts Payable
      Other Short Term Liabilities 354,772                  (226,405)     

      Accrued Liabilities 122,999                  (122,999)     -              
      Other Assets -              
      IntraCompany

-              
    Cash flows from investing activities (222,754)                 7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          7,500          -              

    Cash flows from financing activities

Net Assets 3,897,435               (219,435)     (304,013)     1,599          (147,412)     (169,063)     391,930      (153,351)     (125,843)     188,310      (113,246)     (134,135)     413,708      374,847      

Cash At End of Period 3,902,452               3,817,517   3,521,004   3,530,103   3,390,191   3,228,628   3,628,057   3,482,206   3,363,863   3,559,673   3,453,927   3,327,292   3,522,096   3,522,096   



Copy & Paste your MYP Budget for FY25-26 thru FY27-28 or use template provided
Include enrollment, ADA rate, and lines for each revenue and expenditure account utilitized

Object Code FY25-26 Preliminary
Budget FY26-27 FY27-28

Projected Enrollment                                      455.00 478                                         485                                         
ADA Rate 95% 95% 95%

Projected ADA                                      432.25                                      454.10                                      460.75 
Projected Unduplicated Pupil Count                                      195.00 205                                         208                                         

A. REVENUES  (8000-8799)
1. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Sources - (8011-8097)

LCFF State Aid - Current Year (CY) (Res 0000) 8011 775,778                                 1,032,149                             1,249,872                             
Education Protection Account State Aid (EPA) - CY (Res 1400) 8012 86,450                                   90,820                                   92,150                                   
State Aid - Prior Years (LCFF State Aid and EPA) (Res 0000 and Res 1400) 8019 -                                               
Transfers to Charter Schools In Lieu of Property Taxes - CY & PY (Res 0000) 8096 4,212,994                             4,425,958                             4,490,774                             
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 -                                               

Total, LCFF Sources 5,075,222                            5,548,927                            5,832,796                            
2. Federal Revenues (8100-8299)

ESEA (ESSA): Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected (Res 3010) 8290 45,156                                   47,439                                   48,134                                   
ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants (Res 4035) 8290 7,693                                      8,082                                      8,200                                      
ESEA (ESSA) : Title III, English Learner Student Program (Res 4203) 8290 -                                               
ESEA (ESSA) : Title III, Immigrant Student Program (Res 4201) 8290 -                                               
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community Learning Centers Program (Res 4124) 8290 -                                               
ESEA (ESSA) Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants (Res 4127) 8290 10,000                                   10,505                                   10,659                                   
ESSA: Title IV, Part C, Public Charter Schools Grant Program (Res 4610) 8290 -                                               
Special Ed: IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3310) 8181 56,810                                   59,150                                   62,140                                   
Special Ed: IDEA Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3327) 8182 4,997                                      5,249                                      5,326                                      
Child Nutrition - Federal  (NSLP) (Res 5310 and others) 8220 41,403                                   43,496                                   44,133                                   
Maintenance and Operations (Public Law 81-874) (Res 0000) 8110 -                                               
Other Federal Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8100-8299 -                                               

Total - Federal Revenues 166,059                                173,922                                178,593                                
3. Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

State Special Education (Res 6500) 8792 372,071                                 390,879                                 396,603                                 
State Special Education Mental Health Services (Res 6512) 8590 34,455                                   
Mandate Block Grant (Res 0000) 8550 8,582                                      9,194                                      10,008                                   
After School Education and Safety (ASES) (Res 6010) 8677, 8590 -                                               
Common Core Standards Implementation (Res 7405) 8590 -                                               
Charter School Facility Grant Program (SB 740) (Res 6030) 8590 -                                               
COVID-19 LEA Response Funds (SB 117) (Res 7388) 8590 -                                               
Lottery, Unrestricted (Res 1100) 8560 82,560                                   86,733                                   88,003                                   
Lottery, Restricted - Prop 20 (Res 6300) 8560 35,445                                   37,236                                   37,782                                   
Proposition 39 - California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Res 6230) 8590 -                                               
Other State Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8300-8599 751,772                                 449,053                                 357,396                                 

Total - Other State Revenues 1,284,884                            973,096                                889,793                                
4. Local Revenue (8600-8799)

All Local Revenues 8600-8799 224,944                                 224,944                                 224,944                                 
Total - Local Revenues 224,944                                224,944                                224,944                                

5. TOTAL REVENUES 6,751,109                            6,920,889                            7,126,125                            
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER OUTGO (1000-7499)

1. Certificated Salaries 
Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,277,387                             2,340,015                             2,404,366                             
Pupil Support Salaries  1200 286,000                                 293,865                                 301,946                                 
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 332,000                                 341,130                                 350,511                                 
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 72,000                                   73,980                                   76,014                                   

Total, Certificated Salaries 2,967,387                            3,048,990                            3,132,838                            
2. Classified Salaries 

Instructional Salaries 2100 234,014                                 241,034                                 248,265                                 
Support Salaries 2200 208,182                                 214,257                                 220,511                                 
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries  2300 -                                               
Clerical and Office Salaries  2400 174,320                                 177,481                                 182,443                                 
Other Classified Salaries 2900 -                                               

Total, Classified Salaries 616,516                                632,772                                651,219                                
3. Employee Benefits 

STRS 3101-3102 566,771                                 582,357                                 598,372                                 
PERS 3201-3202 -                                               
OASDI/Medicare (Social Security) 3301-3302 90,191                                   92,617                                   95,244                                   
Health and Welfare Benefits  3401-3402 390,000                                 399,000                                 430,000                                 
Unemployment Insurance  3501-3502 25,200                                   25,200                                   25,200                                   
Workers' Compensation Insurance  3601-3602 44,799                                   46,022                                   47,301                                   
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 -                                               
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 -                                               
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 -                                               

Total, Employee Benefits 1,116,961                            1,145,196                            1,196,117                            
4. Books and Supplies 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 13,000                                   13,260                                   13,525                                   
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 13,000                                   13,260                                   13,525                                   
Materials and Supplies 4300 85,000                                   86,700                                   88,434                                   
Non-capitalized Equipment 4400 130,000                                 132,600                                 135,252                                 
Food (Food used in food-service activities for which the purpose is nutrition) 4700 110,000                                 112,200                                 114,444                                 

Total, Books and Supplies 351,000                                358,020                                365,180                                
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

Subagreements for Services 5100 177,395                                 180,943                                 184,562                                 
Travel and Conferences 5200 35,000                                   35,700                                   36,414                                   
Dues and Memberships 5300 12,000                                   12,240                                   12,485                                   
Insurance 5400 75,000                                   76,500                                   78,030                                   
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 295,000                                 300,900                                 306,918                                 
Rentals,Leases,Repairs,and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 86,620                                   88,230                                   89,995                                   
Transfer of Direct Costs (MUST  net to zero) 5700 -                                               
Prof/Consulting Svcs and Operating Expend ( Include District Oversight ) 5800 892,337                                 915,349                                 939,693                                 
Communications 5900 32,000                                   32,640                                   33,293                                   

Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 1,605,352                            1,642,502                            1,681,389                            
6. Capital Outlay 

Depreciation Expense (See Sections G.9 & F.2.a) 6900 90,000                                   90,000                                   90,000                                   
Total, Capital Outlay 90,000                                  90,000                                  90,000                                  
7. Other Outgo 

Tuition to Other Schools (Include contribution to unfunded cost of Sp Ed.) 7110-7143 -                                               
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 -                                               
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec Ed and All Others 7221-7223 -                                               
All Other Transfers 7280-7299 -                                               
Transfers of Indirect Costs ( MUST net to zero) 7300-7399 -                                               
Debt Service - Interest 7430-7439 -                                               
Debt Service - Principal  (FOR MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS ONLY) 7439 -                                               

Total, Other Outgo -                                               -                                               -                                               

8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,747,216                            6,917,481                            7,116,743                            
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND. 

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 3,893                                      3,408                                      9,383                                      

Description



D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (7600-7699, 8930-8999)
1. All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 -                                               
2. Other Uses 7630-7699 -                                               
3. Contributions between unrestricted and restricted accounts (MUST net to zero) 8980-8999 -                                               
(Include contribution to the unfunded cost of Special Education)
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES -                                               -                                               -                                               

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (C + D.4.) 3,893                                      3,408                                      9,383                                      



2024-25 and 2025-26 Education Protection Account (EPA)  

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF  

Innovations Academy 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The voter’s approved Proposition 30, which established the Education 
Protection Account (EPA).  All temporary tax revenues collected from 
Proposition 30 over the next seven years for income tax and four years 
for sales tax, will be collected into the Education Protection Account 
and distributed to K-12 and Higher Education.  There are several 
requirements for spending determination, disclosing and reporting on 
the use of the EPA funds.  The board of directors must determine the 
use of the EPA funds in an open session of a public meeting through the 
attached resolution.  
  
The EPA funds must be accounted for separately and not used for 
administrative costs.  Increased cash management planning and 
analysis should also be emphasized with the establishment of the EPA 
due to the timing of revenues received.  Additionally, the charter is 
required to annually report on their website an accounting of the EPA 
funds received and how those funds were spent. The budget 
implication is additional revenue that cannot be spent on 
administrative expense. 
 
ACTION: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Education Protection Account funds to be 
received by Innovations Academy. 

 



FY 2025-26 in the amount of approximately $704,044 will be used on 
Certificated Teacher Salaries, thus solely for instructional, non-
administrative expenses.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Directors of 
Innovations Academy. 

In 2024-25, the school received approximately $726,823 in Education 
Protection Account (EPA) Funding. These funds were spent exclusively 
on certificated teacher salaries. 



INNOVATIONS ACADEMY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 

Action Item  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve application for the 2025-26 Consolidated Application Funds listed 
below. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

The Consolidated Application (ConApp) is used by the California Department of Education (CDE) to 
distribute categorical funds from various state and federal programs to county offices, school districts, and 
direct-funded charter schools throughout California. Annually, in June, each local educational agency (LEA) 
submits Part I of the application to document participation in these programs and provide assurances that the 
district will comply with the legal requirements of each program. Program entitlements are determined by 
formulas contained in the laws that created the programs. Therefore, the action on this document is being 
taken as a preemptive measure to apply for those funds.   

Part II of the application is submitted in the fall of each year and contains the district entitlements for each 
funded program. Out of each state and federal program entitlement, districts allocate funds for indirect costs 
of administration, for programs operated by the district office, and for programs operated at schools. 

 
CURRENT INFORMATION: 
 
Title I, Part A Basic Grant- ESSA  
Funds are used to support effective, evidence-based educational strategies that close the achievement gap and 
enable the students to meet the state's challenging academic standards. Title I-funded schools are either 
Targeted Assistance Schools (TAS) or Schoolwide Program (SWP) schools 
 
Title II, Part A, Teacher Quality  
Funds are designated to ensure compliance with professional development activities and to support teachers 
meeting state and ESSA credentialing requirements. 
 
 
Title IV. Part A, Student Support  
 
This program provides funding to improve students’ academic achievement by increasing school district 
capacity to: 

1. Provide all students with access to a well-rounded education; 
2. Improve school conditions for student learning; and 
3. Improve the use of technology in order to improve the academic achievement and digital literacy of 

all students. 
 



Quarters ERC Claim Filed Credit Awarded Interest Awarded Check Cut Date

2020 Q2 115,090.28$                   115,090.27$                       30,472.60$                   12/16/2024

2020 Q3 76,720.60$                      76,720.60$                          21,067.16$                   3/4/2025

2020 Q4 113,793.96$                   

2021 Q1 314,043.98$                   314,043.98$                       84,639.90$                   4/29/2025

619,648.82$                   505,854.85$                       136,179.66$                

Innovations Academy Charter School Employee Retention  



Actual Amount
Filed+Interest

ERCPros payment
@ XX%

IA Net

145,562.88$     17,264.00$                     128,298.88$          

97,787.76$        11,507.00$                     86,280.76$            

-$                                    -$                           

398,683.88$     47,100.00$                     351,583.88$          

642,034.52$     75,871.00$                     566,163.52$         

     n Credit (ERC)



Local Indicator Self Reflection Item on Board Agenda 

To meet this performance standard, an LEA Local Education Agency (Innovations Academy)  
must report the data that it collected and analyzed to its governing board using the SBE-
adopted self-reflection tool. This report must be presented as part of a non-consent 
item at the same meeting at which the LEA adopts its LCAP for the coming year. 

The Dashboard includes a concise set of state indicators and local indicators that are 
founded on the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) priorities but are also aligned to the 
measures required under Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). Those LCFF priorities for 
which there is no state level data collected are referred to as local indicators. The seven 
local indicators are: 

• Basic Services and Conditions (Priority 1) 

• Implementation of State Academic Standards (Priority 2) 

• Parent and Family Engagement (Priority 3) 

• School Climate (Priority 6) 

• Access to a Broad Course of Study (Priority 7) 

• Coordination of Services for Expelled Students (Priority 9, for county offices of 
education [COEs] only) 

• Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10, for COEs only) 

In addition to being a public record of progress on the Dashboard, the local indicator 
process serves to inform process and planning within the Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP). 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 1 of 80 

 

 
  

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Innovations Academy 
CDS Code: 37683380118083 
School Year: 2025-26 
LEA contact information: 
Christine Kuglen 
Director 
christine@innovationsacademy.org 
858-271-1414 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs 
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high 
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2025-26 School Year 

 
This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Innovations Academy expects to receive in the coming year 

from all sources. 
 
The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Innovations Academy is 
$6,724,118, of which $5,075,222 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $1,283,064 is other state funds, 
$200,000 is local funds, and $165,832 is federal funds.  Of the $5,075,222 in LCFF Funds, $371,064 is 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 2 of 80 

generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 
students). 
  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 3 of 80 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts 
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Innovations Academy plans to spend for 2025-26. It shows 

how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: Innovations Academy plans to spend $6,721,022 for the 
2025-26 school year. Of that amount, $3,272,900 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $3,448,122 is not 
included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the 
following: 
 
 
 

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the 
LCAP for the 2025-26 School Year 
 
In 2025-26, Innovations Academy is projecting it will receive $371,064 based on the enrollment of foster youth, 
English learner, and low-income students. Innovations Academy must describe how it intends to increase or 
improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Innovations Academy plans to spend $372,000 towards 
meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 
 
 
 
  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 4 of 80 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students in 2024-25 

 
This chart compares what Innovations Academy budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and services that 

contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Innovations Academy estimates 
it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in 

the current year. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2024-25, Innovations Academy's LCAP budgeted 
$371,064 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Innovations Academy 
actually spent $375,400 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2024-25. 
 
  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 5 of 80 

 
 

Local Control and Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Innovations Academy            Christine Kuglen           

Director 
christine@innovationsacademy.org           
858-271-1414 

 

Plan Summary [2025-26] 
 
General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. LEAs may also provide 
information about their strategic plan, vision, etc. 
 

Innovations Academy is a K-8 public charter school whose charter was written to establish a school in which hands on, experiential, 
interactive high quality learning was accessible to all learners within an environment that respects the interconnected academic and social 
emotional needs of all learners. Innovations Academy opened our doors in September 2008 and was relocated four times in our first five 
years. We remained stable for 9 years in Scripps Ranch and finally moved into our forever home in August of 2020, in the midst of the 
pandemic. Our new facility, in Kearny Mesa, was built according to our needs and goals. During the 24-25 school year the students of 
Innovations Academy were a diverse population drawing from over 50 different zip codes throughout San Diego County. The student 
population is comprised of approximately 24% special education students, 35% FRL, and many working class families of all backgrounds that 
are facing increasing economic hardship due to the high cost of living in San Diego. Many rely heavily on the support of extended family even 
when they don't qualify as low income. 
 
Following a constructivist philosophy, our community is comprised of families that see value in both interactive learning and a strong social 
emotional curriculum. The diversity of personalities, abilities, religions, family cultures and practices, world views and ethnicities creates an 
environment in which we experience a rich mix of viewpoints daily. As open minded constructivist educators, we believe that every student 
brings background, context, skills and knowledge to their education and the learning environment from which they construct their learning 
and support the learning of others. Additionally, our job is to help students construct their learning by providing experiences that provoke 
thought and invite action for learning. We believe that each person's journey is unique to them and is practically immeasurable. Our goal is to 
facilitate learning along that journey. Post pandemic and due to increasing inappropriate use of technology by children, we have added 
emphasis in helping students build focus and motivation while also developing skills of self-regulation and resilience. Our social emotional 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 6 of 80 

program, which has been an integral part of our program since 2008 has allowed us to continue to address the rise of mental health 
conditions in students. 
 
As a single school charter, we have integrated our SPSA into our LCAP.  By doing this we are better able to align the programs and services 
funded by both state and federal funds into one cohesive program that serves the needs of all our students and student groups. 
 
The testing and data culture that has been created over the past 25 years has been destructive to both schools and children and it persists. It 
comes with an underlying belief system that gathering data through standardized testing will somehow make working with children less 
complicated, provide us with accurate information about individual and groups of students or automate the learning process for all. Education 
across our country has been tasked with doing everything for everyone. Not only are we expected to provide a solid academic education, we 
are expected to feed, establish value systems, worry about how parents are parenting, provide before and after school care and according to 
our own CDE be vigilant for them from "cradle to career," something that in the past was the role of parents and extended family. We don't 
think that is the answer and we provide parent education to empower parents to be parents and not to rely on an education system for what 
should be family responsibilities and honor. Schools have always struggled with addressing the needs of children who are coming from 
diverse families, parenting skill levels, socio-economic situations etc. and the bureaucracy has not yet realized that schools can't fix all of 
that, especially in a one to three year span. Children are not data points, they are individuals, each with unique variables (such as unique 
timelines, readiness and life factors) contributing to their learning, their decisions and their educational experiences. The skills of 
collaboration and teamwork, creativity and imagination, deep critical thinking and problem solving are firmly rooted in our program, 
embedded with content learning. How we teach is profoundly different than the typical public school and is nearly impossible to measure in 
data driven ways. 
 
How we interact is also different. Our behavior management is community centered and designed to promote doing the right thing when no 
one is looking. Our social emotional program is based on Adlerian theory and is the antithesis of what you would find in a traditional school 
environment, which is typically designed from a behaviorist perspective. The lack of extrinsic motivators is based on solid research about its 
destructive tendencies. How we assess whether or not our school has achieved its goals is crucial to determining the overall effectiveness of 
our program components and structure. Frequent and varied assessments, both summative and formative, provide insight to teachers when 
planning instruction and serve as relevant data for use by school leadership when making decisions leading to program evaluation and 
improvement. Regular assessment and reporting of student outcomes also allows parents, students and teachers the information needed to 
guide and decide the paths to take on the educational journey. 
 
Innovations Academy utilizes both traditional assessments, teacher-designed assessments and observation of students to continually review 
current levels and progress. Traditional assessments such as NWEA MAP assessment, writing rubrics, published curriculum and online 
resources are utilized alongside student inquiry-based learning and project work and peer evaluation. We are very aware that no single 
assessment, especially computer based standardized, statewide or nationwide assessments can define the skills, knowledge or academic 
level of a student and that there are many very different ways that a demonstration of learning can and should look. Most important is that a 
student knows their strengths and challenges and builds fortitude for their own long educational journey. 
 
Innovations Academy students are required to learn the same content, standards and skills as all other students but how we do it is 
wonderful. At Innovations Academy we are dedicated to inquiry, deep project work, experiences and hands-on exploration. Our students 
wonder, build, discuss, debate, perform, create, interact, research, defend, cut, color, draw, paint, challenge, diagnose, interview, speak, 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 7 of 80 

determine and explore in collaboration with each other and the real world. We have stayed true to these values through recessions, a 
pandemic, four location changes and the overexposure to technology of our students. We provide the resources, guidance and expertise as 
adults who are further along in the journey. 
 
Innovations Academy is dedicated to our mission of supporting students to powerfully create their lives through self-expression, 
compassionate connection and purposeful learning. 
 
         

 
 
Reflections: Annual Performance 
 

A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

Innovations Academy's 2024 California School Dashboard reflects achievements and successes across various categories. In 2023 we were 
given status as a California Distinguished school  for our elementary program. The California Dashboard, which is based on CAASPP scores 
alone, reflects several data points: 
English Language Arts 
-- IA student test scores are higher for English Language Arts than Mathematics. 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for ELA on the CAASPP statewide testing (61.09%) is higher than the local 
district (SDUSD)scores (54.22%) 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for ELA on the CAASPP statewide testing (61.09%) is higher than the state 
scores (47.04%) 
 
Math 
--IA Math scores dropped. We need to attend to this point and determine interventions to shift this. 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Math on the CAASPP statewide testing (45.05%) is higher than the local 
district (SDUSD)scores (43.89%) 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Math on the CAASPP statewide testing (45.05%) is higher than the state 
scores (35.54%) 
 
Science 
--Only .95% (less than 1%) of IA students failed to meet standard in Science on the CAASPP statewide tests given to 5th and 8th graders 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Science on the CAASPP statewide testing (52.38%) is higher than the 
local district (SDUSD) scores (37.78%) 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Science on the CAASPP statewide testing (52.38%) is higher than the 
state scores (30.7%) 
 
English Language Learners and the ELPAC 
-- The percentage of English Language Learner students who progressed at least one level went from 8.3% to 84.6%. Two years ago 100% 
of students fell into a category of staying on the same level. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 8 of 80 

 
Chronic Absenteeism has been an issue for Innovations Academy since the pandemic. We are not unique to this post pandemic trend and 
we will be continuing to set goals to make improvement in this area. The continuing increase in our chronic absenteeism is concerning. 
Though our percentage is lower than our authorizing district and the state we intend to remain vigilant for improvement. 
Chronic Absenteeism 
Year               Innovations    District   State 
 
2023-2024 13.0%          21.4%    18.9% 
 
         

 

Reflections: Technical Assistance 
 

As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance. 
 

Innovations Academy is not required to participate in technical assistance.         
 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

Innovations Academy is not designated as a school receiving Comprehensive Support and Improvement         
 

Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

N/A         
 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

N/A         
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#CSI
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 9 of 80 

Engaging Educational Partners 
 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP. 
 
School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP. 
 
Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the 
development of the LCAP. 
 
An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the 
development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school. 
 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

Teachers/staff           Meetings: 
January 5th, 9:05am, 10:15am, 11:25am 
January 5th, 1:00pm 
January 7th, 2:15 
 
 

Administrators         Meeting: 
December 17th, 1:00pm 
May 6th, 1:00pm 
 

Parents, Families and Communities Members         Parent Advisory Committee: 
Meeting November 14th, 2:00 pm 
Meeting January 16th, 2:00 pm 
Parent LCAP and Report Card Meeting February 5th @ 7 p.m. 
Survey March 14th, May 25th 
 
LCAP Board Presentation with input: 
May 13, 2025 
 
English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) 
January 24th 
 

Students, Staff and Parents         Surveys: 
 
September 2024 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#EEP


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 10 of 80 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

School Climate Survey 
 
May 2025 
School Climate Survey 
Parent LCAP Input Survey 
Staff LCAP Input Survey 
 

 
A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners. 
 

The input of educational partners was used to revise and/or refocus actions, to make updates, and to help us decide how to break up a goal 
into more understandable parts.  
 
Teachers/staff: 

• Input from teachers included requests for a large variety of trainings including project training and how to use data from our data 
management software. 

• Areas of improvement mentioned by teachers includes parent education about how to communicate effectively with teachers and 
organization of the large and varied amount of resources on campus. 

In the 24-25 school year, teachers expressed a need to understand accountability without punishment, a desire for teacher planning time to 
be evenly distributed, to work on new ways to implement advisory time in middle school, to figure out the sound system volume adjustments 
in class and a renewed desire to decrease absences in their classes. 
 
Parents/Community: 

• Input from parents reflected an overall satisfaction with the school, the environment, and the academic successes. 
• Areas of improvement that were mentioned most often centered around: 
• attendance improvement, and the need for a notification system 
• engaging with parents to educate them about our program 
• a desire to know more about and understand academic performance, assessment results and report card/portfolio work. 
• suggestions were made about explaining the reasons for standardized testing 
• looking at alternatives such as student teachers or interns to increase staff 
• Parents are adjusting to a new report card this year and have asked for more effective communication about these changes. 

In the 24-25 school year, Parents expressed a need to understand our new report card system, to have a platform that would help them view 
their child's progress, to have phones consistently answered during the school day, to understand how fundraisers and field trip payments 
support each other, to have a payment system for field trips that is more user friendly. 
 
Students: 

• The majority of students requested more activities. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 11 of 80 

• Students like the field trips, explorations and electives. There were also comments about liking the environment and believing that 
the staff cares about the students. 

In the 24-25 school year, students expressed appreciation for the field trips, explorations and electives. They also worked effectively in 
Middle School Cafe time. Students in middle school expressed confusion about advisory.  
 
 

 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 12 of 80 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
1 Use academic assessment data to improve instruction for all students and provide targeted 

intervention for struggling students. 
 
         

Focus Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

We were in the green and blue sections on the dashboard due to academic test scores for the 22-23 school year. Due to these dashboard 
improvements from previous years, we feel it is important to have a goal that continues our focus on maintaining or slightly increasing our 
scores. We will continue to refine and implement actions that we had created previously because those actions were successful in helping 
our students achieve the metrics that we had set out to achieve. We hope to adjust the action items so that we challenge and push our 
students academically even more. 
The following actions were successful and we hope to implement with slight adjustments: 

• The cohesive assessment plan has been instrumental to the increase in student performance. We hope to adjust our in house 
assessments in order to be consistent with the type of assessments throughout the school year rather than just at the start and the 
end of the school year. We used feedback from teachers in order to address the most important of student needs so we can be 
consistent in assessing progress across our school campus. 

• We want to continue to utilize IABs and previous year's CAASPP scores to analyze progress and isolate gaps. This will lead to a 
comprehensive plan of next steps for teachers. When we're not looking at these forms of assessment, we'll have teachers utilize in-
house assessments that address the areas seen on CAASPP tests to target specific learning goals. 

• Holding one collaborative meeting a month to analyze assessments was successful in gauging where student needs are. We will 
continue to use this time to track student progress and brainstorm supports to best meet the needs of students based on these 
particular assessments. 

• Our current intervention plan has been successful but we will work on adjusting this process so that teachers utilize more whole 
class and small group interventions to best support their students. We will incorporate a more structured protocol for identifying and 
tracking student needs in one central location so that there is transparency in needs across all support providers. 

 
Our school recognizes the importance of providing targeted support to students who require support and challenge in all population groups. 
Our staff emphasized the significance of equipping our team with the knowledge and transparency in what's going on in each classroom and 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 13 of 80 

offering ample opportunities for staff to collaborate and brainstorm supports and challenges for students based on assessment data.  
 

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               1.1 % of grade 3-8 students 
meeting/ exceeding 
standards on the Math 
SBAC        

2022-2023 School Year 
Schoolwide: 57.82% 
Hispanic: 47.54% 
SED: 78.95% 
SWD: 59.70% 
White: 60.00% 
 
 

2023-2024 School 
Year 
Schoolwide: 
45.05% 
Hispanic: 40.57% 
SED: 32.97% 
SWD: 39.48% 
White: 48.51% 
 

 Schoolwide: 62% 
Hispanic: 52% 
SED: 80% 
SWD: 62% 
White: 65% 
 

Schoolwide: 
16.95% 
Hispanic: 11.43% 
SED: 47.03% 
SWD: 22.52% 
White: 16.49% 
 

1.2 % of grade 2-8 students 
meeting/exceeding 
grade level norms on 
NWEA MAP 
Mathematics 
assessment        

2023-2024 School Year 
Schoolwide: 60.4% 
Hispanic: 54.0% 
Other: 65.7% 
 
 

MAP test in 
progress. WIll 
update in June 

 Schoolwide: 65.0% 
Hispanic: 57.0% 
Other: 67.0% 
 

TBD in June 2025 

1.3 % of grade 3-8 students 
meeting/ exceeding 
standards on the ELA 
SBAC        

2022-2023 School Year 
Schoolwide: 69.28% 
Hispanic: 63.34% 
SED: 68.42% 
SWD: 68.18% 
White: 74.00% 
 
 

2023-2024 School 
year 
Schoolwide: 
61.09% 
Hispanic: 65.22% 
SED: 51.64% 
SWD: 50% 
White: 64.18% 
 

 Schoolwide: 72.0% 
Hispanic: 66.0% 
SED: 71.0% 
SWD: 71.0% 
White: 77.0% 
 

Schoolwide: 
10.91% 
Hispanic:.78 % 
SED: 19.36% 
SWD: 21% 
White: 12.82% 
 

1.4 % of grade 2-8 students 
meeting/exceeding 
grade level norms on 
NWEA MAP Reading 
assessment        

2023-2024 School Year 
Schoolwide: 74% 
Hispanic: 71% 
Other: 75% 
 
 

MAP test in 
progress. Will 
update in June 

 Schoolwide: 77.0% 
Hispanic: 75.0% 
Other: 78.0% 
 

TBD in June 2025 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 14 of 80 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Our assessment plan was carried out in full. At times it feels like an overkill in assessment, which may need to be modified over time. Our 
scores on the assessments slipped from 23-24 to 24-25 year especially in math. We will be exploring this drop in the 25-26 school year by 
improving communication with parents about math and reading, tightening up our classroom management and taking a more intentional 
approach to seeking students that need support.         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

We spent more on these goals than initially planned. We provided a significant amount of additional staff to support struggling students. We 
also spent more time than anticipated reviewing data as our scores had unpredictably dropped, especially in math. As our number of special 
education assessments increased, this created an increased demand for services as well.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

We do not have the assessment data yet from the state to determine if actions taken during the 24-25 school year were effective in improving 
test scores. Our scores dropped from the 22-23 year to the 23-24 year. We feel that we need to more closely monitor the instructional 
interventions for teachers and the learning interventions for students. We also need to support parents to be co-educators in academic 
advancement of their children (whether that be through greater interest in attendance, their child's work or motivation at home in specific 
subject areas). We also need to better leverage our high scoring teachers to support the classrooms whose overall scores are lower. For the 
24-25 year, we experienced a more calm assessment period as all teachers are working on a coordinated schedule. The assessment data 
was shared with teachers throughout the year. This guaranteed an awareness on the part of teachers about their students and an ability to 
make a plan. We also had ample staff in classrooms providing support to students.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

We have decided to acquire a software that helps with the management of interventions and the flow of work involved with those 
interventions. This will impact both instructional practice intervention support for teachers and academic intervention support for students. 
This will also help decrease interruptions due to changes in positions of support staff throughout the year. We would also like to target 
intervention for teachers using other teachers with stronger instructional strategies.         

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 15 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             1.1 Streamlined 

Assessment Plan        
2024-25 We will continue to implement our current assessment plan which 
specifies implementation of the following assessments; NWEA Map, 
CAASPP, IABs, Dibels, Spelling Inventory, Writing Assessment, Math 
Facts Fluency and our SEL survey. We will continue to assess students at 
the beginning and end of year following this plan. Teachers will be required 
to give 2 IABs per month (one for math and one for ELA) beginning in 
January to prepare students for the CAASPP - a total of 6 IABs will be 
given. We will also create benchmark mini-assessments for teachers to 
utilize in their classrooms once a month so we can monitor progress more 
closely. This plan will also include structured testing times and designate 
students to test with specified staff members. The costs associate with this 
might include NWEA, Spellography curriculum, OTUS for processing the 
SEL data, and potentially paying a staff member to develop new writing 
assessments, score assessments or manage data. 
2025-26 We will streamline the specific assessments, including their 
design, to facilitate implementation of the plan and to support the use of a 
quantity of data that is not overwhelming. We will continue to utilize 
assessments in a variety of subject areas and the same number of IABs. 
 
 
 
 
 

$16,500.00 No      
X 
 

1.2 Support for Academic 
Instruction        

2024-25 We will analyze our CAASPP and MAP data by the end of 
September for any trends. We will use our other in-house assessment data 
to find patterns and areas of need. Based on the areas of identified need, 
we will tailor professional development  in staff meetings and collaboration 
meetings to give all teachers the tools to best support their students in 
addressing these deficits. We will also seek professional development for 
teachers whose practices excel student growth to help facilitate mentorship 
within the school. The costs associated with this actions might involve 
curriculum resources, stipends, outside trainers, software for assessment 
analysis and NWEA. We will provide professional development to continue 
to unify our staff around our mission. 
2025-26 This action will stay the same. 
 
 
 

$47,500.00 No      
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 16 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
              

1.3 Data Analysis, 
Reflection and 
Tracking        

2024-25 We will hold one collaborative meeting each month (August to 
March) that will be specifically designated for analysis of student work, 
assessments, formative assessments and classroom observation data. 
Data gathered will be used to create a plan for improvement. Teachers will 
track this progress and create action items for students in a shared 
document that will be updated weekly. Teachers will have access to 
support staff, resources, trainings and other support providers in order to 
address the concerns highlighted on their tracking document. The EL and 
Title 1 coordinator will be involved and specifically tracking services and 
progress for students in these communities. Each quarter, students who 
have not made progress will be given an individual plan through the SST 
process. The associated costs for this might include staff support for 
tracking and monitoring, SST coordinator costs, support staff costs, 
developing or purchasing resources to support specific student needs. 
2025-26 We will continue this action as in the previous year. 
 
 
 

$12,200.00 Yes     
X 
 

1.4 Intervention Plans        2024-25 We will create opportunities during August professional 
development and once a month for teachers to review and learn 
intervention strategies and techniques that should be used with students 
who are not achieving at grade level. These strategies and techniques will 
be tracked in the weekly data tracker to show actions and steps taken 
towards supporting students. Students who do not meet academic goals or 
show some improvement will be recommended to start the SST process. 
The associated costs that this action item might occur will be paying the 
SST coordinator, developing and collecting resources for intervention, and 
paying outside support providers to offer professional development for 
teachers. 
2025-26 We will continue this action as in the previous year. 
 
 
 

$21,200.00 Yes     
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 17 of 80 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
2 All students will be engaged in academically challenging, inquiry-based learning within classrooms 

effectively managed by highly qualified teachers using intentionally designed behavioral 
interventions and supports. 
 
         

Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

The foundational philosophy of our school is that hands-on, interactive, inquiry is the most developmentally appropriate way for students to 
learn. We also know that teachers are at the core of student outcomes, school progress and climate. We pride ourselves on offering ample 
opportunities of support for teachers in their teaching practice in the areas of student engagement, classroom management, inquiry based 
learning and dealing with difficult behaviors by seeking solutions for developing happy and healthy students. We apply research based 
practices to interventions and thrive and grow as a community by providing opportunities for teacher, TA and other support staff  input. By 
creating  and aligning structures that are consistent across all grade levels, our students and teachers will benefit in every way.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               2.1 Percentage of teachers 
that are appropriately 
credentialed for the 
students they are 
assigned to teach.        

100% of classroom 
teachers hold a multiple 
subject teaching 
credential. 
75% of enrichment 
teachers hold a specific 
area credential 
 
 

100% of classroom 
teachers hold a 
multiple subject 
teaching credential 
or 2 single subject 
teaching 
credentials. 
85% of enrichment 
teachers hold a 

 100% of classroom 
and enrichment 
teachers hold a 
credential in their 
area of 
assignment. 

0% We are 
currently 
maintaining our 
fully credentialed 
teacher status. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 18 of 80 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               specific area 
credential. 
 

2.2 Percentage of Students 
with Disabilities who are 
in the general education 
program at least 80% of 
the instructional day.        

100% of students with 
disabilities are in the 
general education 
program over 80% if the 
instructional day 

100% of students 
with disabilities are 
in the general 
education program 
over 80% of the 
instructional day. 

 100% of students 
with disabilities are 
in the general 
education program 
over 85% if the 
instructional day 

0% We are 
currently 
maintaining our 
goal of learning 
through inclusion 
such that our 
students with 
disabilities are 
learning in the 
classroom over 
80% of the time. 

2.3 Suspension rate        0.2% schoolwide 
suspension rate 

0.2% schoolwide 
suspension rate 

 0% schoolwide 
suspension rate 

0.2% difference. 

2.4 Expulsion rate        0% schoolwide 
expulsion rate 

0% schoolwide 
expulsion rate 

 0% schoolwide 
expulsion rate 

0% We have never 
expelled a student. 

2.5 Percentage of students 
who feel connected/part 
of their school        

According to the 
September 2023 in 
house Social Emotional 
Survey: 
62% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
social awareness 
category 
57% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
responsible decision 
making category 
50% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
self awareness 
category 
51% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 

According to the 
September 2024 in 
house SEL Survey 
57% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the social 
awareness 
category 
56% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the 
responsible 
decision making 
category 
35% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the self 

 Based on SEL 
survey: 
70% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the social 
awareness 
category 
65% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the 
responsible 
decision making 
category 
60% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the self 
awareness 
category 

Social 
Awareness=-5% 
from baseline 
Decision Making= 
-1% from baseline 
Self Awareness= -
15% from baseline 
Relationship 
Skills= 6% from 
baseline 
Self Management= 
-8% from baseline 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 19 of 80 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               relationship skills 
category 
57% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
self management 
category. 
 

awareness 
category 
45% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the 
relationship skills 
category 
49% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the self 
management 
category. 
 

60% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the 
relationship skills 
category 
65% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the self 
management 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Overall, this goal was very successful in it's implementation. We were able to carry out our action items with general success and have been 
able to get the staff involved in analyzing our success and processes that surround each action item. We were able to gather a lot more data 
this year on student behaviors using our incident tracking software program. It helped with creating more transparency throughout the school 
on what is happening and where it's happening. This has allowed our administration, special education team, and general education team to 
connect and stay on the same page. We also have a document where teachers are entering the different supports and concerns that they're 
seeing both academically and behaviorally in a shared tracking tool so that we can go back and see what actions have been done in order to 
support students who are flagged as needing more support. Although this was immensely more successful than our previous year, the 
consistency with which teachers were entering this information into the software greatly decreased at the end of the year. 
We made strides with becoming more consistent in our grading policies across grade bands. All teachers have successfully implemented 
one-point rubrics that have helped their grading be more objective, allowing for more clarity for parents and students. We also have been 
consistently putting student work into portfolios where the grades can be tied directly back to student work. Although it was a difficult process 
to learn, our staff has grown more comfortable over the school year with the new system and we have experienced success in cross grade 
communication and an understanding about how grading can be more objective. We had some difficulties in figuring out how to adapt this 
method to some of our enrichment classes, but have been working with staff to develop strategies that work for their particular course that 
also meets the goal of the grading system. Parents were confused by the new report card system. We are addressing that confusion by 
providing explanations in our weekly communications and making portfolio work more clear. We also found that more work needed to be 
included to ensure that the points were not unfairly weighted for any given assignment. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 20 of 80 

Our middle school redesign has also gone incredibly well. Our teachers in our middle school took on the task of the redesign and were very 
successful in creating a system that works within our setting, while also meeting the needs of the staff and students. We were able to utilize 
cafe time to create independent students who can complete and track their own work, our teachers had less planning to do and could focus 
on two subject areas with more depth, and our students feel much more united than any other year before. This was measured by student 
complaints in middle school about students in other grade levels. A noted decrease was experienced. There have been some challenges 
along the way with this restructuring, but we were able to work through these as a team in order to adjust and shift everything to best meet 
the objectives of quality instruction for students. 
         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

On three out of the four goals we spent less than expected. We have still not found the best way to track incidences as we would like. We did 
not spend the anticipated funds on this though we did spend a lot of time on it and our tracking improved. Our report card efforts exhausted a 
lot of energy but not necessarily funds. The only category in which our spending far exceeded our anticipated expenditure was the middle 
school redesign. This was in part due to the amount of furniture and materials we purchased to create the cafe environment. The outcome 
was successful and we are celebrating success with our cafe.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Action 2.1 was effective  .We were able to gather incident data that helped us see patterns. We will continue to track this data but our plan is 
to acquire a software program that will help us capture more data and create consistent interventions for students who continue to be repeat 
offenders. The new system will be integrated with other data which will consolidate information for us. 2.2 The report card launch first 
semester informed us about the weak areas of our system but was welcomed by teachers as a system that will work for them 2.3 Our middle 
school redesign was effective. The elements of seminars, enrichment aligned with projects, cafe as well as the sharing of students between 
teachers consistently were all successful. The advisory was functional but we would like to create a specific list of topics prior to the start of 
the school year. 2.4 We have realized that changes in staff are inevitable when we work with a young staff whose journey is still unfolding for 
them. We would like to see more of our staff noticing areas in which they would like to improve, taking ownership for improving their practice, 
speaking up about their needs and taking the support to make changes to their practice. We will continue to seek ways to do that.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

For action 2.1, we will acquire a new software system that allows us to create a flow chart for interventions that helps us collect data about 
which interventions are working and track repeat offenders more effectively. 2.2. We launched our new report card system connected to 
portfolio work. We will continue to refine the grading system, the report card look and the communication with parents so they can better 
understand report card information.  2.3 We will refine the middle school redesign to make advisory topics more effective and to incorporate 
enrichment into science and social studies with more consistency and flow. 2.4 We realize that there will be more changes in teaching staff 
when we hire young teachers. We will continue to seek ways to gather data on performance and explore with teachers how to notice their 
needs and empower them to seek ongoing support and training provided to them. We will find ways to promote their own self reflection on 
the needs they have to improve instruction.         



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 21 of 80 

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             2.1 Incident Tracking 

Program        
2024-25 We will either create, purchase or utilize an already existing 
software so that staff can track behavioral incidents that occur in their 
classrooms and on the playground. We will insure that procedures for 
doing so are documented and that there is accountability for accurate and 
consistent documentation. We will provide a short period of time during 
each collaboration meeting for staff to update and communicate about any 
possible concerns. The associated costs that could accompany this action 
are paying a staff member to monitor tracking and follow up with 
teachers/staff, the potential cost of software and trainings to support staff in 
utilizing techniques and strategies for interventions. 
25-26 The tracker we used last year was not comprehensive enough. We 
will purchase a new software that in customizable, gathers data and also 
sends reminders and has analytics. We will monitor and share information 
about incidents within our organization. 
 
 
 

$14,500.00 No      
X 
 

2.2 Monitoring Student 
Work        

2024-25 This action is to align student work with report cards and to create 
a consistent school structure for portfolio assessment. We will create a 
protocol for collecting work each week (one core subject per week). Work 
will then be placed in a portfolio. Portfolio work will be used to develop 
grades on report cards, to demonstrate student growth and to track 
improvement in core subject areas throughout the year. Basic 
requirements for portfolios will be established.   With the establishment of 
this protocol, we plan to redesign our report cards into a point system that 
will identify clear designation of mastery or not. The cost associated with 
this action item might include a software system to store grades/report card 
data, a digital platform to store portfolio work, and physical supplies to 
store portfolio work. 
2025-26 Our new portfolio aligned report card drew a lot of attention, which 
we feel is beneficial. We modified the portfolio requirements and this year 
we will define and refine the alignment of work with our report cards. We 

$35,000.00 No      
XX 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 22 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             noticed that our SIS does not effectively support our report card 

management and distribution and we will explore new student information 
systems for improvement over time. 
 
 
 

2.3 Middle School 
Redesign        

2024-25 We will restructure our middle school in order to allow for more 
inquiry based learning and project based learning to take place as well as 
increase motivation and to grow academic rigor. This restructuring will 
allow for teachers to become responsible for two subject areas rather than 
all subject areas. By using this format, we hope to attract more middle 
school candidates that can  execute our projects and make them a reality. 
This restructure will also create more independent learners who are critical 
thinkers. The associated cost with this goal might include staff salaries, 
standards-based projects, field study opportunities, guest speaker fees, 
and materials needed to execute the projects. 
2025-26 The restructuring of middle school was successful. Student 
independence was markedly improved, middle school became more 
cohesive and the teacher team worked collaboratively. This year we will 
restructure the advisory, rework the schedule to give more time to ELA and 
more clearly define the roles and responsibilities of the Explorations 
teachers involved in middle school. 
 
 
 

$3,000.00 No      
X 
 

2.4 Professional 
Development        

2024-25 Educators deserve to be supported in a variety of ways and 
deserve to continually grow, learn, develop their practice, set goals and 
receive training. All students deserve teachers who are well trained and 
equipped to manage the complex dynamics of classroom learning. Training 
and professional development will be provided to  equip our staff and 
teachers with proactive techniques and methods rather than reactive 
interventions. We will utilize collaboration time and staff meetings to 
provide mentoring and share best practices. We will seek and provide 
professional development as needs arise. The associated costs for this 
action might include, stipends, curriculum, specialists/trainers, and 
conferences. 
2025-26 Training will take place prior to the start of the school year, on 
Mondays throughout the school year and will include proactive and 

$57,800.00 Yes     
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 23 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             intentional intervention strategies and supports. Teachers will be observed 

and given feedback throughout the year, new teachers will receive 
planning, curriculum expectations and school philosophy prior to the start 
of the year. 
 
 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 24 of 80 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
3 Provide high-quality, standards-aligned materials, resources and a facility to students and teachers 

to support their intellectual, physical, emotional and social well-being.         
Maintenance of Progress 
Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

We know that in order to provide an environment where students are immersed in rich inquiry-based instruction, we must provide them with 
high-quality materials and a safe space for them to learn. Maintenance of our facility is necessary in order for  our students to be safe and 
prepared to learn each day and for the overall well-being of our students and teachers. We also believe that teachers deserve to have 
autonomy, freedom and choice in order to create academic challenging learning that is hands on, interactive and developmentally 
appropriate. We know that providing teachers with a choice of high-quality resources that meet this inquiry based goal, we will have students 
that are met with rigorous and challenging learning opportunities. Teacher retention has become an issue since the pandemic.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               3.1 Students and teachers 
with access to 
standards-based 
instructional materials. 
Number of core subject 
areas with  CCSS, 
NGSS, ELD, Social 
Science standards-
aligned curricula 
        

100% of students and 
teachers have access 
to instructional 
materials that support 
high academic 
instruction 
5/5 subject areas 
curricula aligns with 
CCSS, NGSS, ELD, 
and Social Science 
standards 
 

100% of students 
and teachers have 
access to 
instructional 
materials that 
support high 
academic 
instruction 
5/5 subject areas 
curricula aligns 
with CCSS, NGSS, 

 100% of students 
and teachers have 
access to quality 
standards aligned 
resources in all 
subject areas. 

0% difference. We 
pride ourselves in 
having quality 
resources for our 
teachers and 
students. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 25 of 80 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               ELD, and Social 
Science standards 
 

3.2 All students will access 
field trips that are 
meaningfully connected 
to learning, guest 
experts and quality 
enrichment classes        

Average number of field 
trips and guest 
speakers per grade 
level are 12 in the 2023-
2024 school year 

Each class 
achieved the goal 
of 6 field trips and 
1 expert per 
project. 100% of 
students accessed 
enrichment 
classes weekly. 

 Minimum number 
of field trips tied to 
academics are 6 
per year per class 
and 1 expert per 
project. 100% of 
students access 2 
enrichment 
classes weekly. 

0%, we decreased 
the expectation for 
field trips due to 
rising costs. We 
used the funds to 
maintain our 
enrichment 
program. 

3.3 Percentage of facilities 
that are in “good repair”        

100% of facilities are in 
good repair 

100% of facilities 
are in good repair 

 100% if facilities 
are in good repair. 

0% We expend a 
lot of funds 
keeping our facility 
in quality condition. 

3.4 Social Emotional 
Support and Curriculum        

Accumulated activities 
for SEL lessons 

We added Fly Five 
as a resource for 
our SEL activities. 
A teacher website 
was created for 
easy access to 
resources. 

 An organized 
library of activities 
with a set timeline 
for implementation 
throughout the 
year. 

50% We have 
resources and now 
we need full 
organization. 

3.5 Teacher Retention Rate        78% of credentialed 
staff are staying at IA 
following the 2023-24 
school year. 

75% of 
credentialed staff 
are staying at IA 
following the 2024-
2025 school year. 

 85% of 
credentialed staff 
stay for the 
following year. 

-2% from baseline. 

 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

During the past year, our goal centered on enhancing the quality and intentionality of our instructional resources, curriculum, and student 
experiences. Overall, implementation was successful, with several key developments and areas of growth. Our original plan focused on 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 26 of 80 

expanding access to a wide variety of standards-based instructional materials and resources. This objective was met; however, as 
implementation progressed, we recognized a need for greater intentionality in how these resources were selected and used. As a result, we 
shifted mid-year to focus not just on availability, but on alignment and relevance—ensuring that the tools we invest in are truly impactful for 
both teachers and students. 
A key adjustment was the introduction of teacher feedback loops to assess curriculum usage and effectiveness. We did not initially plan for 
this data collection, but it became essential in guiding our decisions. 
One notable success was the integration of field experiences into the curriculum. Teachers made strong efforts to embed field trips and guest 
speakers into their projects, resulting in meaningful, hands-on learning opportunities for students. On average, each grade level engaged in 
approximately 12 such experiences. These real-world connections significantly enhanced student engagement and understanding. 
Additionally, we began fine-tuning our social-emotional learning (SEL) supports and curriculum. While this work is still in progress, we made 
valuable strides in expanding available resources and building teacher capacity in this area. 
Despite these successes, there were challenges. One key issue was inconsistency across grade levels in the number and quality of field trip 
and guest speaker experiences. To address this, we identified a need for dedicated planning time during monthly collaboration meetings. 
This will help streamline logistics and ensure more equitable access to these opportunities across the school. Staff retention also presented a 
challenge, with a 75% retention rate. While many of the departures were due to personal circumstances such as relocation, career changes, 
or parenting responsibilities, this turnover highlighted the importance of continued support for our educators and the need to maintain a 
strong pipeline of well-qualified teaching staff. 
         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

The biggest difference in expected expenditures and actuals was in facility costs. It may have been that I added too many zeros when writing 
the last LCAP, but that will be looked into. Otherwise, we completed the goals with the required amount of money and it was different than 
what was expected.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Action 3.1 has been highly effective in supporting progress toward our goal. We have equipped teachers across all grade levels with a wide 
range of high-quality, standards-based instructional resources. This has significantly facilitated instructional planning and delivery. We plan to 
expand the implementation of Beast Academy into 5th grade next year, building on its success in earlier grades. In middle school, the 6th–
8th grade team will begin using Desmos in addition to their IM curriculum, which offers high-quality digital manipulatives. We recognize the 
importance of teacher support and will explore professional development opportunities to ensure successful implementation and well as 
continue to help teachers take ownership of their needs as expressed in goal 2.. 
Additionally, we’ve provided ongoing structures—such as small group discussions, staff meetings, and one-on-one coaching with the 
director—for teachers to assess and reflect on the effectiveness of their project-based learning. We are also in the process of reviewing ST 
Math to determine how it can be better utilized in grade levels not using Beast Academy, aiming for consistent math support school-wide. 
Action 3.2 has been moderately effective. While grade levels averaged approximately 12 field trips and guest speakers—meeting our 
numerical baseline—the distribution of these experiences was inconsistent. Some grade levels offered significantly more opportunities than 
others. To improve in this area, we plan to provide additional support for teachers in the planning and execution of high-quality field 
experiences, including dedicated time for logistics and scheduling during collaboration meetings. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 27 of 80 

Action 3.4 showed mixed effectiveness. At the start of the year, teachers implemented our social-emotional learning (SEL) plan with 
enthusiasm and fidelity, particularly using our school-specific “First Six Weeks” curriculum and the Fly Five program in grades 3–5. However, 
consistency in SEL implementation declined over time. While we laid a strong foundation, we need to develop a more comprehensive, 
yearlong scope and sequence for SEL lessons and activities. We also need to make sure that teachers are implementing class council 
meetings that help students learn negotiation and take ownership of their own behavior. This will ensure sustained implementation and 
alignment across classrooms. 
Action 3.3 and 3.5 has been effective. We maintained our facilities in good repair, contributing to a positive learning environment. 
Additionally, our ability to offer competitive salaries and benefits has helped us attract and retain high-quality teachers, despite broader 
challenges in staffing across the education sector.  The costs in San Diego for living are increasingly difficult for us but we also stress the 
ability we have to provide benefits such as freedom in teaching practice,. strong administrative support when confronting difficult situations, 
medical benefits and a very low to no cost and ample planning time during the school day compared to other schools. 
         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Based on our effectiveness and ineffectiveness in regards to our action items, metrics and target outcomes, there are a few changes that 
need to be put in place that have been mentioned above. First, for goal 3.1 we need to build in checks throughout the year so that staff can 
truly evaluate the effectiveness of certain curriculum items. This would require some coaching and observations from administration 
throughout the year to ensure that teachers and staff are implementing high quality, standards based teaching and utilizing the resources that 
will work to improve instruction. For goal 3.2 we need to look at our field trip planning and embed more structured time, with experts present, 
to allow for teachers to look into field trip and guest speaker opportunities. This can be done during our set up time at the start of the school 
year. Additionally, using collaboration meetings, director weekly meetings and staff meetings periodically to focus on field trips and guest 
speakers could help ensure that this is being addressed consistently. Lastly, for goal 3.4, there is a need to strengthen the scope and 
sequence for our SEL curriculum to ensure that teachers are putting the lessons, ideas and activities into place with fidelity, holding class 
meetings regularly about relevant topics and helping students take ownership which will be observed by having cleaner classrooms, hallways 
and playground, by having the lunch discard area respected, by decreased destruction of items on campus and by having students take 
ownership of their resolutions in our problem solving/conflict resolution meetings.         

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             3.1 High Quality 

Curriculum 
Resources        

2024-25 Teachers will have access to at least 2 high quality, standards 
based resources for each subject area from which to create their own 
curriculum and projects for class. These will continue to build and develop 
our project library that will incorporate rigorous standards based resources 

$21,500.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 28 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             and activities so that there are ultimately four projects per grade level as 

options for future teachers.  We will continue to extend our implementation 
of the Beast Academy curriculum to our K-5 classrooms over the next few 
years. We expect that by the year 2027, all classrooms (K-5) will be using 
the Beast Academy curriculum, and online support software. Beast 
Academy staff will train, collaborate and offer feedback to teachers as they 
apply this program to their every day classrooms. The associated costs for 
this action might include paying staff to participate in extra trainings,  the 
possible purchase of curriculum and resources and any materials needed 
for Beast Academy. 
2025-26 Teachers will continue to have access to 2 high quality, standards 
based resources for each subject they teach and create their instructional 
delivery with those resources in mind. We will continue to build our project 
library. Beast Academy implementation will extend to 5th grade (so 1st-5th 
will be utilizing that math program). We will sort through the resources and 
designate the most effective and help teachers understand best practices 
with those resources. 
 
 
 

3.2 Students will access 
field trips, guest 
experts and quality 
enrichment classes        

2024-25 Interactive inquiry and projects involve extending learning outside 
the classroom. All students will have access to field trips that support their 
learning. Experts in various fields of study will be included in all projects. 
Our students will access enrichment classes each week. The costs to 
implement this action might include fees associated with experts,  costs for 
bus maintenance and use, costs of entrance to venues, materials and 
supplies for enrichment classes and salaries of enrichment teachers. 
2025-26 Teachers will intentionally plan field trips to contribute 
academically to student learning. Classroom teachers will connect each of 
their projects to a guest expert or organization. We will continue to 
implement field trips as part of our curriculum. Enrichment will continue to 
be provided to all students that includes, at a minimum, both art and 
science. 
 
 
 

$54,000.00 Yes     
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 29 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             3.3 Facility Costs        2024-25 Cost of facility maintenance: Utilities, HVAC services, filter 

changes,  landscaping, trash and recycling, building lease, oversight fee, 
cleaning, maintenance and repair, as well as upgrades. 
2025-26 We will continue to use our funds to repair  and maintain our 
quality facility. We will look into solar options and window change options 
to gather information about the possibility of lowering facility costs. 
 
 
 

$363,000.00 No      
X 
 

3.4 Social and Emotional 
Curriculum        

2024-25 Innovations Academy began implementation of our own internally 
developed SEL program in 2008. It is time to reorganize resources and 
streamline our SEL program. We will select activities that meet specific 
SEL objectives and create a timeline for the school year. The associated 
cost for this action might include staff time, resources and curriculum. 
2025-26 We will continue to assess our current curriculum and streamline 
access for teachers which we expect will improve implementation. We will 
add new resources as needed. We will take the social emotional skills to 
our playground, facility and lunch court as we improve personal 
responsibility among our students. We will seek improved ways to measure 
and track social emotional curriculum success and challenge. 
 
 
 

 No      
X 
 

3.5 Teacher Salaries and 
Benefits        

2024-25 We will continue to use our funds to offer competitive salaries in 
order to attract and retain qualified teachers. We will look at our benefit 
options each year to make sure they are competitive and address teachers' 
needs. The associated costs with this will include teacher salaries and 
costs associated with benefits. 
2025-26 We will continue this action as originally stated including all staff 
salaries. We will also explore how to maintain teacher quality while 
structuring salary increases in a way that is sustainable for the school. 
 
 
 

$2,518,000.00 No      
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 30 of 80 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
4 Provide ongoing analysis, accountability and intervention support for chronically absent and tardy 

students and their families. 
 
         

Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Student success is entirely dependent on their attendance at school. Without being at school, they disconnect from the flow of learning, lose 
valuable opportunities to participate in learning, engage in social interactions and develop important skills needed to become a successful 
student. Our previous efforts have not been enough to combat the steady increase in student absenteeism which is happening across San 
Diego County, the state of California and the nation. . Although our numbers remain lower than San Diego Unified, we recognize the 
significant decline in attendance since before the pandemic.  We hope to inspire students to be present at school, educate parents and staff 
members about the importance of attendance and address absenteeism promptly, firmly and supportively.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               4.1 Percentage of parents 
who open ParentSquare 
communications 
regarding absences.        

100% of parents are 
contactable via 
ParentSquareO 
 
 

99.5% of parents 
were contactable. 

 100% of parents 
are contactable. 

+99.5% because 
we are now 
tracking this 
information. 

4.2 Percentage of students 
attending 96% of school 
days        

84.8% of students 
attended 96% or more 
of school days in 2023-
24 

Our P-2 ADA for 
24-25 had 
increased from 
94.6% in the 

 95% of students 
attend 96% of 
school days. 

+.5% Our 
attendance P-2 
rate increased 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 31 of 80 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               previous year to 
95.1% for 24-25 

4.3 Percentage of students 
who are chronically 
absent (defined as 
missing 10%        

11.7% of students were 
considered chronically 
absent during the 2022-
2023 school year - will 
update final 
percentages of the 
2023-24 school year 
once the year has 
ended. 
2023-24 = 13%) 
 

13% of students 
were considered 
chronically absent 
in the 23-24 school 
year. We will 
update this 
number for 24-25 
at the close of the 
year. 

 5% of students 
considered 
chronically absent 

-1.3%. This was an 
increase in chronic 
absenteeism. 

4.4 Number of students 
attending make up time 
per week        

new action and metric, 
no baseline 
chronic absenteeism at 
13% at the end of 23-24 
school year. 
 

On average 15% 
of students (68) 
were assigned to 
do Monday make 
up work. 

 Data will show a 
decrease in 
students assigned 
to make up work 
overtime as 
absenteeism as 
chronic 
absenteeism goes 
from 11%- 5% 

-3%. Chronic 
absenteeism is a 
growing issue from 
22-23 school year 
to 23-24 school 
year. 

4.5 Percentage of staff 
attending 96% of school 
days        

63% of staff attended 
96% or more school 
days in 2023-24 

87.5% of teaches 
attended 96% or 
more of school 
days. 

 75% of staff attend 
96% or more 
school days 

an improvement of 
24% in teacher 
absence metric. 

 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

We were not successful in this goal. Our chronic absenteeism rose for the 23-24 school year. We communicated with every family that had 
not called in on the second day of absence. Deeper, more exploratory communication with parents was difficult to implement. We need to 
reinforce our efforts to communicate often with parents about absences in a way that helps them see the impact of the absence on their child 
and the class community and build commitment to school in our parent community.         

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 32 of 80 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

This goal focuses on attendance. We expended a larger amount on staff absences than anticipated but it was an error to calculate an 
expense on substitutes at only $1000. We will have a larger expenditure for the coming school year with the adoption of a new software.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

4.1 The action may still possibly work but we did not implement with fidelity to a depth that would have made a difference. Parents are using 
sickness as a reason even when it is obvious (such as an absence the same day every week) that this is not the reason. We will increase our 
commitment to this action such that we will attempt accountability. 4.2 We did not follow up as often as would be helpful to determine if this 
communication would make a difference. It is hard to hold meetings that parents will attend. 4.3 We did provide Monday make up time for 
students who had been absent the previous week, but parents decreased their use of short term independent study when going on trips, 
which may have countered the benefit by increasing our chronic absenteeism rate. We don't have dashboard info to know the exact data shift 
yet. 4.4 We received information from our families that the Feb vacation time was valued and used for vacations. We received positive 
feedback, as well, from staff. 4.5 Staff absences early in the year seemed to improve but due to the state changes in mandatory absence 
days as PTO, we saw an uptick in absences in the spring among staff. We continue to stress the fact that staff has built in time off throughout 
the year, unlike other professions.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

4.1 We are acquiring a software platform that will improve the flow of communication for staff and parents. We hope this helps us manage 
absences in a way that allows us to differentiate between legitimate illness and chronic absences.  4.2 We will attempt to find ways that hold 
accountability for students and parents. We would like parents to take more ownership of their attendance choices and ask for help when 
needed. 4.3 We will continue with Monday make up and give students academic support to complete unfinished work. 4.4 We will continue to 
celebrate teachers and also provide a week during "off peak travel" for families to take those vacations they seek.         

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             4.1 Whole School 

Absence 
Communication        

2024-25 We will be sharing absence data weekly with families so they can 
stay informed about the trends we are seeing in regards to absences. This 
will include weekly communication through Parent Square as well as using 
a sign visible in the drop off and pick up line to share percentages of 
students attending school each day. Teachers will share information about 
absence percentages in their weekly communication to families. The 

$73,000.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 33 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             associated costs with this might include ParentSquare, and any costs 

associated with the upkeep of the sign board. 
2025-26 We will set up a software to help us manage school absence 
awareness. We will place access to independent study contracts and the 
impact of absences online, easily accessible to parents. We will 
communicate via Sunday whole school messages about the absence 
levels as well as inform parents weekly about number of absences during 
the week. 
 
 
 

4.2 Absence Follow Up        2024-25 We will create a communication and follow up protocol for any 
student that is absent each week, as well as students who fall within the 
threshold of being chronically absent at any point in the year. Each week, 
we will call families of absent students who neglect to notify the school. 
Once a student crosses the threshold of chronic absenteeism, the director 
will call to emphasize the importance of attendance. Once that phone call 
has been made, we will monitor their attendance. We will hold quarterly 
mandatory meetings for all families of chronically absent students to 
attend. The associated cost with this action item might include staff 
salaries who are helping with communication and meetings as well as 
possible software for monitoring attendance. 
2025-26 We will continue to modify and improve our communication with 
individual families about absences. We will continue to institute a required 
make up time on Monday for students who are absent to complete missed 
work. 
 
 
 

$8,000.00 No      
X 
 

4.3 Absent Student 
Support        

2024-25 We will closely monitor student absences weekly and provide 
mandatory make up work and a time during the school day when the work 
will be completed. We will select specific times for make up work such as 
Monday electives, end of the day and other flexible schedule times for 
students with recent absences. The associated costs with this action item 
might include educational software such as ST Math, Reading Eggs, 
Reflex Math, etc. 

$6,700.00 No      
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 34 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             2025-26 Teachers will provide a mandatory make up time on Mondays for 

students who were absent and missed work. Teachers will post work in a 
way that is accessible to parents for completion of make up work at home. 
 
 
 

4.4 Teacher/ Staff 
Attendance        

2024-25 We will alter our calendar adding one extra vacation week and 
days in front of winter break to allot for staff travel as requested by 
teachers. Our goal is for teachers to focus their days off on regularly 
scheduled breaks. Additionally we will shorten August professional 
development to lengthen summer break based on teacher input. We will 
also include more opportunities through out the year to appreciate staff 
with coffee, treats, and activities. We will be using one staff meeting a 
month to create team building activities for staff. The associated costs with 
this action item might include food, drinks, supplies and other materials. 
2025-26 We will continue with our calendar changes from last year. We will 
continue to find ways to celebrate our teachers. We will track attendance 
and share the costs to our school of teacher absences. We will continue to 
educate our teachers about the paid time off included in the vacations 
during the school year. 
 
 
 

$18,000.00 No      
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 35 of 80 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
5 Provide multiple engagement opportunities for parents through effective communication tools, 

parent participation opportunities and parent education. 
 
         

Maintenance of Progress 
Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

We believe that parents are the primary educators of their children. We strongly believe in providing parents and families the opportunity to 
participate in the school side of that education. We have an open door campus policy, encourage chaperoning field trips, working with 
classes as expert speakers, helping with school wide or classroom events and fundraising. We also understand that parents have full lives 
outside of our school communities and that their primary life responsibility is to care for their children. Our goal is to incorporate parent 
education and information sharing during school events that have the highest historical parental/caregiver attendance. We have low 
parental/caregiver engagement at stand alone meetings focused on one topic so we will combine events with information that is valuable and 
important to our community stakeholders.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               5.1 Weekly director 
communications and 
weekly teacher 
communications  with 
parent education, 
financial information and 
school event information        

In the 2023-24 school 
year 42 director 
messages were sent. 
50% contained parent 
education, 100% 
contained school 
information and 0% 
contained financial 
information 

In the 24-25 school 
year, 44 messages 
will go out. 75% 
contained parent 
education, 100% 
contained school 
information and 
1co message 
contained financial 
information. 

 One message per 
week of school, 
75% contain 
education, 100% 
contain school 
information and 3 
messages contain 
financial updates 

+2 messages sent 
to parents, +25% 
increase in parent 
education, 
maintained school 
information, +1 
message with 
financial 
information 
messages. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 36 of 80 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               5.2 Number of school 
trainings for parents on 
academic and social 
emotional initiatives        

A parent education 
seminar was included 
as part of our Parent 
Advisory meeting in 
which 10 different 
options were offered to 
parents for sessions 
pertaining to IA 
philosophy and 
curriculum and open to 
100% of IA families. 
Babysitting was free. 
2 sets of 10 sessions 
each were offered free 
of charge for parents to 
participate in the 
S.P.A.C.E. program 
during the 23-24 school 
year. One Positive 
Discipline seminar was 
offered. 
 

Two parent 
advisory meetings 
were held that 
were tagged onto 
the Parent 
Connection 
Meetings. One 
invite for Parent 
Advisory was sent 
with 16 responses. 
Those 16 people 
gave meaningful 
responses to 
questions about 
school needs. 
Positive Discipline 
class (11/19/24) 
aligned with our 
school practices 
was offered one 
time during the 
school year. 
 

 An annual 
combined parent 
advisory, LCAP 
and parent 
education seminar 
will be held. One 
parent education 
opportunity will be 
offered regarding 
parenting. 

We did not hold a 
large parent 
advisory but opted 
to hold advisory 
via survey method. 
We offered a 
parent education 
class but it was 
cancelled due to 
low enrollment. 

5.3 Parent Connection 
meetings        

5 Parent Connections 
meetings are scheduled 
for this school year 
remotely. 5 meetings 
are scheduled this year 
in person. They take 
place every other 
month. 

Seven Parent 
Connection 
meetings were 
held this year. 
100% had remote 
options. Parents 
had a minimum of 
10 opportunities to 
volunteer. 

 A minimum of five 
Parent Connection 
meetings will be 
held yearly. 
Parents will be 
given at least three 
opportunities to 
volunteer. 

+2 meetings of the 
Parent 
Connection. +20 
minimum of 
opportunities to 
volunteer. 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 37 of 80 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

The actions were fully implemented. We did not have challenges doing so. Our Parent Connection leader was strong. We offered everything 
we set out to offer. We have a large amount of volunteers between field trip drivers, chaperones, parents who support performing arts 
productions, volunteers for school events, classroom volunteers and parents who participate in fundraisers.         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

We were able to spend less on this goal than anticipated, principally due to not holding an all parent advisory meeting.         
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

We are effective at meeting this goal. We would like parents to feel educated about the philosophy of the school, which may be an area we 
take on more.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

No changes to this goal or the actions are needed.         
 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             5.1 Parent 

Communication        
2024-25 The director's weekly messages through our school platform 
(ParentSquare) will be organized in a predictable and consistent format. 
Messages will include quarterly updates on LCAP including spending and 
additionally provide information on fundraising events. This communication 
will also highlight any important school wide events and upcoming 
deadlines pertinent to families plus provide parent education on how to 
support their child at home. Teachers will also share a weekly 
communication update similarly with a predictable format and timing that 
includes information on deadlines, family events, classroom subject matter 

$13,000.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 38 of 80 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             being covered and recommendations for how families can support their 

student. The associated costs with this action will include the 
ParentSquare fee for subscribing as all family communication takes place 
through parent square. 
2025-26 Continue with the actions from the previous year. Include a 
regular item about LCAP and attendance. Help families integrate to our 
new software that helps streamline communication and workflow. Teachers 
will continue to follow a specific template for sharing information about 
weekly about the learning in their classroom including actions parents can 
take to support their child academically. 
 
 
 

5.2 Parent Engagement 
through Education        

2024-25 Two Exhibition Nights will be held which will coincide with student 
portfolio work reviews, one at the end of first semester and the other just 
before spring break. Parent education in the form of how to review portfolio 
work will be provided. Parents will have access to student portfolios 
throughout the year.  We will also utilize Open House as a time for parents 
to both view classrooms and participate in educational opportunities. For 
additional parent education, we will offer S.P.A.C.E. training for parents of 
anxious children and 2 Positive Discipline classes. The associated costs 
for this might include salaries for staff to help with babysitting, leading 
topics, as well as purchasing food and drinks for the events. 
2025-26 We will provide parent education on support to improve 
numeracy, literacy, read report cards, the school protocols for completing 
make up work and Positive Discipline. 
 
 
 

$9,000.00 No      
X 
 

5.3 Parent Connection        2024-25 IA staff will work closely with the Parent Connection (our parent 
organization) throughout the year to consistently increase parent 
participation. We will work with the Parent Connection to create a school 
calendar with events that serve our family population. Meeting times and 
agenda will be shared with all families ahead of time while also including 
other ways for families to get involved other than going to a meeting. 
 
 

 No      
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 39 of 80 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2025-26] 
 
Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant 
$$275,095 $0 
 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

6.377% 0.000% $0.00 6.377% 
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated 
student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being 
provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the 
unduplicated student group(s). 
 
Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

1.3 Action: 
Data Analysis, Reflection and Tracking 
 
Need: 
There is an identified need for improvement on 
math assessment scores in both MAP and 
CAASPP assessments. 
 
Scope: 

In order to identify the students most needing 
intervention, the entire population will be assessed 
and have work collected. Ultimately it will be 
beneficial to all students to have had their data 
analyzed, but the actions will ultimately target 
those most in need. Additionally, our Title 1 and 
EL coordinator will be specifically supporting 
teachers to identify needs in that community. 
Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant will be 
used to improve test scores by funding 
intervention tools, analysis tools and to provide 

improved scores on MAP 
and CAASPP 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions1


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 40 of 80 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

XSchoolwide        
 

teachers with intervention for non or slow 
progressing students with a focus on 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students who 
had a more serious decline in test scores. 
 

1.4 Action: 
Intervention Plans 
 
Need: 
Intervention plans are a solid way to track 
progress and provide unique support to 
students with unique situations. The monthly 
tracking of students will provide staff with an 
ongoing focus. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

Interventions are provided on a schoolwide basis 
because it is the only way to identify specific 
students based on data. Otherwise it would be a 
subjective review and a student could be missed. 
For math interventions, a study of the CAASPP 
scores shows that the most significant populations 
with declining scores were socioeconomically 
disadvantaged, English language learners and 
Hispanic students. We will therefore look more 
closely at these populations while creating 
intervention plans and continue to involve the ELL 
coordinator and Title 1 coordinator to look at non 
just ELA progress but math progress. 
 

improved scores on MAP 
and CAASPP 

2.4 Action: 
Professional Development 
 
Need: 
Unduplicated pupils have a higher need for 
highly qualified teachers. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

This is provided as a schoolwide/LEA wide action 
because truly all students benefit when teachers 
are provided professional development, even 
when the training is specific towards the needs of 
unduplicated students. 
Using designated LREBG funds, our teachers will 
be provided professional development to notice 
and own their areas of challenge as teachers and 
then be provided support and monitoring to 
improve in those areas. We will focus on all areas 
where ELA and math are being learned, including 
project development and implementation. 
 

The continued inclusion of 
students with disabilities in 
the classroom and 
increased engagement, 
connectedness and 
decreased suspension 
rates. 

3.2 Action: 
Students will access field trips, guest experts 
and quality enrichment classes 

Parents are provided the amount it costs for a field 
trip and they contribute voluntarily. Unduplicated 
students more often do not have the funds to pay 

100% of students will have 
access to field trips with no 
barriers. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 41 of 80 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

 
Need: 
financially costly, field trips would outprice a 
financially challenged family if not provided by 
the school. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

for field trips and so the school provides them 
these learning opportunities. The trips are offered 
and provided to all students, so it is still addressed 
schoolwide. 
LREBG funds will be used to help pay for learning 
experiences outside the classroom, especially for 
our TItle1/SED students. 
 

 
Limited Actions 
For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) 
of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the 
effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured. 
 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) are Designed to Address 

Need(s) 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    
 
For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable. 
 

Providing additional academic support (Goal 1 Action 3) will support our low-income students who traditionally cannot afford after school 
enrichment programs. When enrolling students in extended day or year tutoring that may be offered, first priority for enrollment will be given 
to foster youth, EL students and financially challenged families. This explicit and individualized academic support will help our low-income 
and English learner students make progress on their assessments as stated in Goal 1. Encouraging all students to participate in field trips 
and ensuring low income families understand that there is no mandatory cost for participation will benefit those students academically and by 
increasing engagement. Providing a bus supports access to field trips for all students equally. 
We will utilize LRBEG funding for goals 1.3, 1.4, 2.4, 3.2, with a focus on academic scores for our lowest scoring students who have been 
identified to be our socioeconomically disadvantaged students, and our ELL students, especially in the area of math where we will focus our 
efforts on assessment analysis, intervention strategies and preparation of teachers to provoke progress for them. 
         

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions2


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 42 of 80 

Additional Concentration Grant Funding 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
 

We will be adding training for our instructional assistants in managing behaviors in a non behaviorist environment and using supportive 
questioning techniques to provoke independence and deeper thinking for students.  In our outreach for new teachers, we seek experienced 
teachers and apply funds to hiring these more expensive teachers. Additionally, we are maintaining our education specialist caseload and 
targeting each one to a reasonable grade level span. We are providing professional development for a lead education specialist to support 
the team.         

 
Staff-to-student ratios by 
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

1:40                  

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

1:17                  

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#AddCGF


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 43 of 80 

2025-26 Total Planned Expenditures Table 
 

LCAP Year 
1. Projected LCFF Base 

Grant 
(Input Dollar Amount) 

2. Projected LCFF 
Supplemental and/or 
Concentration Grants 
(Input  Dollar Amount) 

3. Projected Percentage 
to Increase or Improve 

Services for the Coming 
School Year 

(2 divided by 1) 

LCFF Carryover —  
Percentage 

(Input Percentage from 
Prior Year) 

Total Percentage to 
Increase or Improve 

Services for the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover %) 
Totals          $4,313,726 $275,095 6.377% 0.000% 6.377% 

 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 

Totals          $3,239,200.00         $0.00 $0.00 $52,700.00 $3,291,900.00 $2,931,600.00 $360,300.00 

 
                 

Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 
to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
1 1.1 Streamlined Assessment 

Plan        
All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $9,500.00 $7,000.00 $14,500.00 
  

$2,000.00 $16,500.
00 

0 

1 1.2 Support for Academic 
Instruction        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $47,500.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 
  

$2,500.00 $47,500.
00 

0 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection 
and Tracking        

English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $12,200.00 $0.00 $7,200.00 
  

$5,000.00 $12,200.
00 

 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans        English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $21,200.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 
  

$7,200.00 $21,200.
00 

 

2 2.1 Incident Tracking 
Program        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $5,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 
  

$5,000.00 $14,500.
00 

 

2 2.2 Monitoring Student Work        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $20,000.00 $15,000.00 $35,000.00 
   

$35,000.
00 

5% 

2 2.3 Middle School Redesign        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $3,000.00 $0.00 
   

$3,000.00 $3,000.0
0 

10 

2 2.4 Professional 
Development        

English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $55,000.00 $2,800.00 $53,300.00 
  

$4,500.00 $57,800.
00 

10% 

3 3.1 High Quality Curriculum 
Resources        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $1,500.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 
  

$1,500.00 $21,500.
00 

 

3 3.2 Students will access field 
trips, guest experts and 
quality enrichment 
classes        

Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $10,000.00 $44,000.00 $50,000.00 
  

$4,000.00 $54,000.
00 

 

3 3.3 Facility Costs        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $113,000.0
0 

$250,000.00 $363,000.00 
   

$363,000
.00 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 44 of 80 

                 
Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 

to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
3 3.4 Social and Emotional 

Curriculum        
All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

   
     

10 

3 3.5 Teacher Salaries and 
Benefits        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $2,518,000
.00 

$0.00 $2,500,000.00 
  

$18,000.00 $2,518,0
00.00 

 

4 4.1 Whole School Absence 
Communication        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $73,000.00 $0.00 $73,000.00 
   

$73,000.
00 

 

4 4.2 Absence Follow Up        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 
   

$8,000.0
0 

0 

4 4.3 Absent Student Support        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $6,700.00 $0.00 $6,700.00 
   

$6,700.0
0 

 

4 4.4 Teacher/ Staff 
Attendance        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $18,000.00 $0.00 $18,000.00 
   

$18,000.
00 

 

5 5.1 Parent Communication        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $13,000.00 
   

$13,000.
00 

 

5 5.2 Parent Engagement 
through Education        

All    X 
English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

No      
X 
 

 English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $0.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 
   

$9,000.0
0 

0 

5 5.3 Parent Connection        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

   
     

 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 45 of 80 

2025-26 Contributing Actions Table 
 

1. Projected 
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by 
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

                  
$4,313,726 $275,095 6.377% 0.000% 6.377% $124,500.00 35.000% 37.886 % Total:         $124,500.00 

        LEA-wide 
Total:         $0.00 

        Limited Total:         $0.00 
        Schoolwide 

Total:         $124,500.00 
 

         

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

1 1.2 Support for Academic 
Instruction 

 
  

XAll Schools         $45,000.00 0 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection 
and Tracking 

XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $7,200.00 
 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $14,000.00 
 

2 2.2 Monitoring Student Work  
  

XAll Schools         $35,000.00 5% 
2 2.4 Professional Development XYes     

 
XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        

XLow Income         
XAll Schools         $53,300.00 10% 

3 3.2 Students will access field 
trips, guest experts and 
quality enrichment classes 

XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XLow Income         XAll Schools         $50,000.00 
 

5 5.2 Parent Engagement through 
Education 

 
 

XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $9,000.00 0 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 46 of 80 

2024-25 Annual Update Table 
 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Totals          $6,062,625.00 $3,363,957.85 

 
      Last Year's 

Goal # 
Last Year's Action 

# 
Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 

or Improved Services? 
Last Year's Planned 

Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 Streamlined Assessment Plan        No      

X 
 

$9,000.00 26,666.00 

1 1.2 Support for Academic Instruction        No      
X 
 

$17,000.00 82,114.00 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection and 
Tracking        

Yes     
X 
 

$81,000.00 80,508.00 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans        Yes     
X 
 

$111,000.00 1,882.00 

2 2.1 Incident Tracking Program        No      
X 
 

$19,000.00 11,581.00 

2 2.2 Monitoring Student Work        No      
XX 

 

$25,000.00 1,332.00 

2 2.3 Middle School Redesign        No      
X 
 

$15,000.00 54,928.00 

2 2.4 Professional Development        Yes     
X 
 

$42,000.00 33,770.00 

3 3.1 High Quality Curriculum Resources        No      
X 
 

$30,500.00 17,259.00 

3 3.2 Students will access field trips, 
guest experts and quality 
enrichment classes        

Yes     
X 
 

$62,000.00 64,950.00 

3 3.3 Facility Costs        No      $3,097,000.00 247,008.00 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 47 of 80 

      Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
X 
 

3 3.4 Social and Emotional Curriculum        No      
X 
 

$15,000.00 $6014.85 

3 3.5 Teacher Salaries and Benefits        No      
X 
 

$2,500,000.00 2,700,000.00 

4 4.1 Whole School Absence 
Communication        

No      
X 
 

$5,125.00 229.00 

4 4.2 Absence Follow Up        No      
X 
 

$8,000.00 $5,000.00 

4 4.3 Absent Student Support        No      
X 
 

$5,000.00 $2000.00 

4 4.4 Teacher/ Staff Attendance        No      
X 
 

$1,000.00 $18,622.00 

5 5.1 Parent Communication        No      
X 
 

 8504.00 

5 5.2 Parent Engagement through 
Education        

No      
X 
 

$20,000.00 1590.00 

5 5.3 Parent Connection        No      
X 
 

0 0 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 48 of 80 

2024-25 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
 

6. Estimated  
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from 
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services 

(Subtract 5 from 
8) 

371,064.         $279,000.00         $179,228.00         $99,772.00         28.000%         28.000%         0.000%         
 

        
Last 

Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services 
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection and 
Tracking 

XYes     
 

$75,000.00  5% 5% 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans XYes     
 

$105,000.00 80,508.00 10% 10% 

2 2.4 Professional Development XYes     
 

$41,000.00 33770.00 3% 3% 

3 3.2 Students will access field trips, 
guest experts and quality 
enrichment classes 

XYes     
 

$58,000.00 64,950.00 10% 10% 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 49 of 80 

2024-25 LCFF Carryover Table 
 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF Carryover 
—  Percentage 

(Percentage 
from Prior Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for the 
Current School 

Year 
(6 divided by 9 + 

Carryover %) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved 
Services 

(7 divided by 9, 
plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover — 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11 
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 

(12 divided by 9) 

5,075,222. 371,064. 0 7.311% $179,228.00 28.000% 31.531% $0.00 0.000% 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 50 of 80 

Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, please 
contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, 
by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education. 

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions: 

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning, 
particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through 
meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs 
and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be 
included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because the nature of some LCAP template sections 
require LEAs to show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and 
low-income students in proportion to the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC sections 
52064[b][1] and [2]). 

▪ NOTE: As specified in EC Section 62064(b)(1), the LCAP must provide a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and each 
subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to EC Section 52052, to be achieved for each of the state priorities. Beginning in 2023–24, EC 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 51 of 80 

Section 52052 identifies long-term English learners as a separate and distinct pupil subgroup with a numerical significance at 15 
students. 

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

o Ensuring that all increases attributable to supplemental and concentration grant calculations, including concentration grant add-on funding 
and/or LCFF carryover, are reflected in the LCAP (EC sections 52064[b][6], [8], and [11]). 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which must: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce 
disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), (b) through 
meaningful engagement with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections 
included within the LCAP template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a 
tool for engaging educational partners. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of the 
school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted 
and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2024–25, 2025–26, and 2026–27 school years reflects statutory changes made through Senate Bill 114 
(Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review), Chapter 48, Statutes of 2023 and Senate Bill 153, Chapter 38, Statues of 2024. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions: 

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the Dashboard, how is the LEA using its budgetary resources 
to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its obligation to increase 
or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions which, based on research, experience, and input gathered from educational 
partners, the LEA believes will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students. 

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP document. Additionally, the beginning of each template section includes information 
emphasizing the purpose that section serves. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 52 of 80 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to present a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included throughout each subsequent section of the 
LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information  
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. LEAs may also provide 
information about their strategic plan, vision, etc. 
Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. 

• For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information the LEA may wish to include can enable a reader to more fully understand the LEA’s LCAP. 

• LEAs may also provide information about their strategic plan, vision, etc. 

• As part of this response, identify all schools within the LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funding.  

Reflections: Annual Performance  
A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
Reflect on the LEA’s annual performance on the Dashboard and local data. This may include both successes and challenges identified by the 
LEA during the development process.  

LEAs are encouraged to highlight how they are addressing the identified needs of student groups, and/or schools within the LCAP as part of 
this response. 

As part of this response, the LEA must identify the following, which will remain unchanged during the three-year LCAP cycle: 

• Any school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard;  

• Any student group within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard; 
and/or  

• Any student group within a school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 
Dashboard. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 53 of 80 

EC Section 52064.4 requires that an LEA that has unexpended Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (LREBG) funds must include one or 
more actions funded with LREBG funds within the 2025-26, 2026-27 and 2027-28 LCAPs, as applicable to the LEA. To implement the 
requirements of EC Section 52064.4, all LEAs must do the following: 

• For the 2025–26, 2026–27, and 2027–28 LCAP years, identify whether or not the LEA has unexpended LREBG funds for the applicable 
LCAP year.  

o If the LEA has unexpended LREBG funds the LEA must provide the following: 

▪ The goal and action number for each action that will be funded, either in whole or in part, with LREBG funds; and  

▪ An explanation of the rationale for selecting each action funded with LREBG funds. This explanation must include:  

• An explanation of how the action is aligned with the allowable uses of funds identified in EC Section 32526(c)(2); 
and 

• An explanation of how the action is expected to address the area(s) of need of students and schools identified in the 
needs assessment required by EC Section 32526(d). 

o For information related to the allowable uses of funds and the required needs assessment, please see the 
Program Information tab on the LREBG Program Information web page. 

• Actions may be grouped together for purposes of these explanations.  

• The LEA may provide these explanations as part of the action description rather than as part of the Reflections: 
Annual Performance. 

o If the LEA does not have unexpended LREBG funds, the LEA is not required to conduct the needs assessment required by EC 
Section 32526(d), to provide the information identified above or to include actions funded with LREBG funds within the 2025-26, 
2026-27 and 2027-28 LCAPs. 

Reflections: Technical Assistance  
As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance. 
Annually identify the reason(s) the LEA is eligible for or has requested technical assistance consistent with EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 
52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, and provide a summary of the work underway as part of receiving technical assistance. The most common form of 
this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance, however this also includes LEAs that have requested technical 
assistance from their COE. 

• If the LEA is not eligible for or receiving technical assistance, the LEA may respond to this prompt as “Not Applicable.” 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ca/lrebgpgminfo.asp


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 54 of 80 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every Student Succeeds Act must 
respond to the following prompts: 

Schools Identified  
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 

• Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

Support for Identified Schools  
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 

• Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-
based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 

• Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes 
between student groups indicated by the Dashboard, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally identified priorities 
(EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process. 

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public to understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this 
section. 

Requirements 
Requirements 
School districts and COEs: EC Section 52060(g) and EC Section 52066(g) specify the educational partners that must be consulted when 
developing the LCAP:  

• Teachers,  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52060.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52066.


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 55 of 80 

• Principals,  
• Administrators,  
• Other school personnel,  
• Local bargaining units of the LEA,  
• Parents, and  
• Students 
A school district or COE receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier 
funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  

Before adopting the LCAP, school districts and COEs must share it with the applicable committees, as identified below under Requirements and 
Instructions. The superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts 
and COEs must also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Charter schools: EC Section 47606.5(d) requires that the following educational partners be consulted with when developing the LCAP:  

• Teachers,  
• Principals,  
• Administrators,  
• Other school personnel,  
• Parents, and  
• Students  
A charter school receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at the school generating Equity Multiplier funds 
in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for the school. 

The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite 
councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals. 
Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the CDE's LCAP webpage. 

Before the governing board/body of an LEA considers the adoption of the LCAP, the LEA must meet the following legal requirements: 

• For school districts, see Education Code Section 52062; 

o Note: Charter schools using the LCAP as the School Plan for Student Achievement must meet the requirements of EC Section 
52062(a). 

• For COEs, see Education Code Section 52068; and  

• For charter schools, see Education Code Section 47606.5. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47606.5.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52062.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52068.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47606.5.&lawCode=EDC


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 56 of 80 

• NOTE: As a reminder, the superintendent of a school district or COE must respond, in writing, to comments received by the applicable 
committees identified in the Education Code sections listed above. This includes the parent advisory committee and may include the 
English learner parent advisory committee and, as of July 1, 2024, the student advisory committee, as applicable. 

Instructions 
Respond to the prompts as follows: 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP. 
School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP. 
Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the 
development of the LCAP. 
An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the 
development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  
Complete the table as follows: 

Educational Partners 

Identify the applicable educational partner(s) or group(s) that were engaged in the development of the LCAP. 

Process for Engagement 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve the identified educational partner(s) in the development of the LCAP. At a 
minimum, the LEA must describe how it met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners, as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  

• A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other 
engagement strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to 
engaging its educational partners.  

• An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also include a summary of how it consulted with educational partners at schools 
generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each 
applicable school.  

A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners. 

Describe any goals, metrics, actions, or budgeted expenditures in the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in response to the 
educational partner feedback. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 57 of 80 

• A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the 
engagement process influenced the development of the LCAP. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized requests of 
educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP.  

• An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must include a description of how the consultation with educational partners at schools 
generating Equity Multiplier funds influenced the development of the adopted LCAP.  

• For the purposes of this prompt, this may also include, but is not necessarily limited to: 
• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the target outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 
• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated students 
• Analysis of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Analysis of material differences in expenditures 
• Analysis of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Analysis of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal must be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their student 
groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
must consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that are 
included in the Dashboard, in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. As previously stated, strategic planning that 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 58 of 80 

is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices 
they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all 
students, and to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the Dashboard. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure 
improvement. A Focus Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

o All Equity Multiplier goals must be developed as focus goals. For additional information, see Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs 
Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding below. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of 
metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and 
allows an LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

Requirement to Address the LCFF State Priorities 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics articulated in EC sections 52060(d) and 52066(d), as 
applicable to the LEA. The LCFF State Priorities Summary provides a summary of EC sections 52060(d) and 52066(d) to aid in the 
development of the LCAP.  

Respond to the following prompts, as applicable: 

Focus Goal(s) 
Description  

The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound.  

• An LEA develops a Focus Goal to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach.  

• The Focus Goal can explicitly reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to 
which the LEA expects to achieve the goal. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Focus Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lcffprioritiessummary.docx


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 59 of 80 

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.  

• An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.  

• LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.  

• LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding 
Description 

LEAs receiving Equity Multiplier funding must include one or more focus goals for each school generating Equity Multiplier funding. In addition 
to addressing the focus goal requirements described above, LEAs must adhere to the following requirements. 

Focus goals for Equity Multiplier schoolsites must address the following: 

(A) All student groups that have the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard, and 

(B) Any underlying issues in the credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators, if applicable. 

• Focus Goals for each and every Equity Multiplier schoolsite must identify specific metrics for each identified student group, as applicable. 

• An LEA may create a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites if those schoolsites have the same student group(s) performing 
at the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard or, experience similar issues in the credentialing, 
subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators.  

o When creating a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites, the goal must identify the student groups and the 
performance levels on the Dashboard that the Focus Goal is addressing; or, 

o The common issues the schoolsites are experiencing in credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s 
educators, if applicable. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as an Equity Multiplier Focus Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 60 of 80 

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.  

• An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.  

• LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.  

• LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

• In addition to this information, the LEA must also identify: 

o The school or schools to which the goal applies 

LEAs are encouraged to approach an Equity Multiplier goal from a wholistic standpoint, considering how the goal might maximize student 
outcomes through the use of LCFF and other funding in addition to Equity Multiplier funds. 

• Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for purposes of the 
LCFF, the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P), the Literacy Coaches and Reading Specialists (LCRS) Grant 
Program, and/or the California Community Schools Partnership Program (CCSPP).  

• This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise 
receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to 
implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. 

Note: EC Section 42238.024(b)(1) requires that Equity Multiplier funds be used for the provision of evidence-based services and supports for 
students. Evidence-based services and supports are based on objective evidence that has informed the design of the service or support and/or 
guides the modification of those services and supports. Evidence-based supports and strategies are most commonly based on educational 
research and/or metrics of LEA, school, and/or student performance. 

 

Broad Goal 
Description  

Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal.  

• The description of a broad goal will be clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42238.024.


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 61 of 80 

• The goal description organizes the actions and expected outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner.  

• A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a 
focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for measuring progress toward the goal. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Broad Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Description  

Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals in the LCAP.  

• Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP.  

• The state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the 
LCAP. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Maintenance of Progress Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 62 of 80 

For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes.  

• LEAs must identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that address and reduce disparities 
in outcomes between student groups.  

• The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year, as applicable to the type of LEA.  

• To the extent a state priority does not specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance 
standards), the LEA must identify a metric to use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based 
on or reported through the relevant local indicator self-reflection tools within the Dashboard. 

• Required metrics for LEA-wide actions: For each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve 
services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an 
LEA-wide basis, the LEA must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures.   

o These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services 
section, however the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the 
action(s) that the metric(s) apply to. 

• Required metrics for Equity Multiplier goals: For each Equity Multiplier goal, the LEA must identify: 

o The specific metrics for each identified student group at each specific schoolsite, as applicable, to measure the progress toward the 
goal, and/or 

o The specific metrics used to measure progress in meeting the goal related to credentialing, subject matter preparation, or educator 
retention at each specific schoolsite.  

• Required metrics for actions supported by LREBG funds: To implement the requirements of EC Section 52064.4, LEAs with 
unexpended LREBG funds must include at least one metric to monitor the impact of each action funded with LREBG funds included in the 
goal.  

o The metrics being used to monitor the impact of each action funded with LREBG funds are not required to be new metrics; they 
may be metrics that are already being used to measure progress towards goals and actions included in the LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Metric # 

• Enter the metric number.  
Metric  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 63 of 80 

• Identify the standard of measure being used to determine progress towards the goal and/or to measure the effectiveness of one or more 
actions associated with the goal.  

Baseline  

• Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2024–25.  

o Use the most recent data associated with the metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-
year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2023 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available data (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

o Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal 
Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS.  

o Indicate the school year to which the baseline data applies. 

o The baseline data must remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP.  

▪ This requirement is not intended to prevent LEAs from revising the baseline data if it is necessary to do so. For example, if 
an LEA identifies that its data collection practices for a particular metric are leading to inaccurate data and revises its 
practice to obtain accurate data, it would also be appropriate for the LEA to revise the baseline data to align with the more 
accurate data process and report its results using the accurate data.  

▪ If an LEA chooses to revise its baseline data, then, at a minimum, it must clearly identify the change as part of its response 
to the description of changes prompt in the Goal Analysis for the goal. LEAs are also strongly encouraged to involve their 
educational partners in the decision of whether or not to revise a baseline and to communicate the proposed change to 
their educational partners. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a new baseline each year, as 
applicable. 

Year 1 Outcome  

• When completing the LCAP for 2025–26, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may provide the Year 1 Outcome when completing the 
LCAP for both 2025–26 and 2026–27 or may provide the Year 1 Outcome for 2025–26 and provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–
27.  

Year 2 Outcome  

• When completing the LCAP for 2026–27, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 64 of 80 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may identify the Year 2 Outcome as not applicable when 
completing the LCAP for 2026–27 or may provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–27. 

Target for Year 3 Outcome  

• When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the target outcome for the relevant metric the LEA expects to achieve by the end of 
the three-year LCAP cycle. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a Target for Year 1 or Target for Year 
2, as applicable. 

Current Difference from Baseline 

• When completing the LCAP for 2025–26 and 2026–27, enter the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome, as 
applicable. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP will identify the current difference between the 
baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 1 and/or the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 2, 
as applicable. 

Timeline for school districts and COEs for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome  Year 2 Outcome  
Target for Year 3 

Outcome 
Current Difference 

from Baseline 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2025–26. Leave 
blank until then. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2026–27. Leave 
blank until then. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2025–26 and 
2026–27. Leave blank 
until then. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective towards 
achieving the goal. “Effective” means the degree to which the planned actions were successful in producing the target result. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed. 

Note: When completing the 2024–25 LCAP, use the 2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan Annual Update template to complete the 
Goal Analysis and identify the Goal Analysis prompts in the 2024–25 LCAP as “Not Applicable.” 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 65 of 80 

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal, including relevant challenges and successes 
experienced with implementation.  

o Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation process.  

o This discussion must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned action or implemented a planned action in 
a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in expenditures or 
percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
● Describe the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. “Effectiveness” means 

the degree to which the actions were successful in producing the target result and “ineffectiveness” means that the actions did not 
produce any significant or targeted result. 

o In some cases, not all actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal.  

o When responding to this prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the 
context of performance on a single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping 
actions with metrics will allow for more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics 
is working and increase transparency for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include 
multiple actions and metrics that are not closely associated. 

o Beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a three-
year period.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

o As noted above, beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven 
effective over a three-year period. For actions that have been identified as ineffective, the LEA must identify the ineffective action 
and must include a description of the following: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 66 of 80 

▪ The reasons for the ineffectiveness, and  

▪ How changes to the action will result in a new or strengthened approach. 

Actions:  
Complete the table as follows. Add additional rows as necessary.  

Action # 

• Enter the action number.  
Title 

• Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables.  
Description 

• Provide a brief description of the action.  

o For actions that contribute to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA may include an explanation of 
how each action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA's goals for unduplicated students, as described in 
the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section. 

o As previously noted, for each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve services for foster 
youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an LEA-wide 
basis, the LEA must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures. 

o These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services 
section; however, the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the 
action(s) that the metric(s) apply to. 

Total Funds 

• Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided in 
the action tables.  

Contributing 

• Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or 
Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No.  

o Note: for each such contributing action, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Services 
section to address the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496 in the Increased or Improved 
Services section of the LCAP. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 67 of 80 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant foster youth student subgroup are 
encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to foster youth students. 

Required Actions 
For English Learners and Long-Term English Learners 

• LEAs with 30 or more English learners and/or 15 or more long-term English learners must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, 
at a minimum:  

o Language acquisition programs, as defined in EC Section 306, provided to students, and  

o Professional development for teachers.  

o If an LEA has both 30 or more English learners and 15 or more long-term English learners, the LEA must include actions for both 
English learners and long-term English learners. 

For Technical Assistance 
• LEAs eligible for technical assistance pursuant to EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, must include specific 

actions within the LCAP related to its implementation of the work underway as part of technical assistance. The most common form of 
this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance. 

For Lowest Performing Dashboard Indicators 
• LEAs that have Red Dashboard indicators for (1) a school within the LEA, (2) a student group within the LEA, and/or (3) a student group 

within any school within the LEA must include one or more specific actions within the LCAP: 

o The specific action(s) must be directed towards the identified student group(s) and/or school(s) and must address the identified 
state indicator(s) for which the student group or school received the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard. Each 
student group and/or school that receives the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard must be addressed by one or 
more actions.  

o These required actions will be effective for the three-year LCAP cycle. 

For LEAs With Unexpended LREBG Funds 
• To implement the requirements of EC Section 52064.4, LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include one or more actions 

supported with LREBG funds within the 2025–26, 2026–27, and 2027–28 LCAPs, as applicable to the LEA. Actions funded with LREBG 
funds must remain in the LCAP until the LEA has expended the remainder of its LREBG funds, after which time the actions may be 
removed from the LCAP.  

o Prior to identifying the actions included in the LCAP the LEA is required to conduct a needs assessment pursuant to EC Section 
32526(d). For information related to the required needs assessment please see the Program Information tab on the LREBG 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ca/lrebgpgminfo.asp


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 68 of 80 

Program Information web page. Additional information about the needs assessment and evidence-based resources for the 
LREBG may be found on the California Statewide System of Support LREBG Resources web page. The required LREBG needs 
assessment may be part of the LEAs regular needs assessment for the LCAP if it meets the requirements of EC Section 
32526(d). 

o School districts receiving technical assistance and COEs providing technical assistance are encouraged to use the technical 
assistance process to support the school district in conducting the required needs assessment, the selection of actions funded by 
the LREBG and/or the evaluation of implementation of the actions required as part of the LCAP annual update process.  

o As a reminder, LREBG funds must be used to implement one or more of the purposes articulated in EC Section 32526(c)(2). 

o LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include one or more actions supported by LREBG funds within the LCAP. For each 
action supported by LREBG funding the action description must: 

▪ Identify the action as an LREBG action; 

▪ Include an explanation of how research supports the selected action; 

▪ Identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the impact of the action; and 

▪ Identify the amount of LREBG funds being used to support the action.  

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income 
Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students as defined in EC Section 42238.02 in 
grades TK–12 as compared to all students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose 
meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader 
understanding of educational partners to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions 
included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.  

Please Note: For the purpose of meeting the Increased or Improved Services requirement and consistent with EC Section 42238.02, long-term 
English learners are included in the English learner student group. 

Statutory Requirements 
An LEA is required to demonstrate in its LCAP how it is increasing or improving services for its students who are foster youth, English learners, 
and/or low-income, collectively referred to as unduplicated students, as compared to the services provided to all students in proportion to the 
increase in funding it receives based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the LEA (EC Section 42238.07[a][1], EC 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ca/lrebgpgminfo.asp
https://systemofsupport.org/posts/2024/09/lrebg/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 69 of 80 

Section 52064[b][8][B]; 5 CCR Section 15496[a]). This proportionality percentage is also known as the “minimum proportionality percentage” or 
“MPP.” The manner in which an LEA demonstrates it is meeting its MPP is two-fold: (1) through the expenditure of LCFF funds or through the 
identification of a Planned Percentage of Improved Services as documented in the Contributing Actions Table, and (2) through the explanations 
provided in the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section. 

To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or 
improved by those actions in the LCAP that are identified in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services 
requirement, whether they are provided across the entire LEA (LEA-wide action), provided to an entire school (Schoolwide action), or solely 
provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s) (Limited action).  

Therefore, for any action contributing to meet the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA must include an explanation of: 

• How the action is increasing or improving services for the unduplicated student group(s) (Identified Needs and Action Design), and  
• How the action meets the LEA's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas (Measurement of Effectiveness). 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
In addition to the above required explanations, LEAs must provide a justification for why an LEA-wide or Schoolwide action is being provided to 
all students and how the action is intended to improve outcomes for unduplicated student group(s) as compared to all students.  

• Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further 
explanation as to how, are not sufficient.  

• Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased 
or improved services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For School Districts Only 
Actions provided on an LEA-wide basis at school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent must also 
include a description of how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state 
and any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting 
research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions provided on a Schoolwide basis for schools with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils must also include a 
description of how these actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and 
any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting 
research, experience, or educational theory. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Complete the tables as follows: 

Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 70 of 80 

• Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on 
the number and concentration of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. This amount includes the Additional 15 percent 
LCFF Concentration Grant. 

Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant  

• Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates 
it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year  

• Specify the estimated percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services 
provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage  

• Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF 
Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar  

• Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not identified in the LCFF 
Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year  

• Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required 
Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEA’s percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be 
increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 
15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated 
student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being 
provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the 
unduplicated student group(s). 
If the LEA has provided this required description in the Action Descriptions, state as such within the table. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Identified Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of the unique identified need(s) of the LEA’s unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed.  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 71 of 80 

An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards an unduplicated student group(s) when the LEA explains the need(s), 
condition(s), or circumstance(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) identified through a needs assessment and how the action addresses 
them. A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner 
feedback. 

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 

Provide an explanation of how the action as designed will address the unique identified need(s) of the LEA’s unduplicated student group(s) for 
whom the action is principally directed and the rationale for why the action is being provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis. 

• As stated above, conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection 
or further explanation as to how, are not sufficient.  

• Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased 
or improved services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness 

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s). 

Note for COEs and Charter Schools: In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

Limited Actions 

For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) 
of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the 
effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured.  

If the LEA has provided the required descriptions in the Action Descriptions, state as such. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Identified Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of the unique need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served identified through the LEA’s needs assessment. 
A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner feedback. 

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of how the action is designed to address the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being 
served. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 72 of 80 

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness 

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s). 

For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable. 

• For each action with an identified Planned Percentage of Improved Services, identify the goal and action number and describe the 
methodology that was used. 

• When identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the 
contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the 
amount of LCFF funding that the LEA estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

• For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning providers 
know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring additional staff 
to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA’s current pay scale, the LEA estimates 
would cost $165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are 
foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional 
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated cost of 
$165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Total Planned Expenditures Table and then convert the quotient to a 
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

Additional Concentration Grant Funding 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff and/or 
classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 

• An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 73 of 80 

• Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the 
number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 
percent.  

• An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as a 
single-school LEA or an LEA that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must 
describe how it is using the funds to increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who 
provide direct services to students at selected schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing 
support. 

• In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a 
school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to 
retain staff providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that 
is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration 
of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.  

o The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA.  

o The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff and the number of enrolled students as 
counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a 
concentration of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.  

o The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA.  

o The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on the first 
Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Total Planned Expenditures Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate 
the other Action Tables. Information is only entered into the Total Planned Expenditures Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing 
Actions Annual Update Table, and the LCFF Carryover Table. The word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying the 
column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 74 of 80 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2024–25 LCAP, 2024–25 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2023–24 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Total Planned Expenditures Table 
In the Total Planned Expenditures Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount estimated LCFF entitlement for the coming school year, excluding the 
supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, the former 
Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). 
Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic Recovery Target 
allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. 

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement 
calculations.  

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants estimated on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared 
to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior LCAP 
year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 75 of 80 

Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to 
the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by entering 
a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services requirement; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades the 
entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time for 
which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 76 of 80 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement, it must include some measure 
of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action contributes to 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

o Note: Equity Multiplier funds must be included in the “Other State Funds” category, not in the “LCFF Funds” category. As a 
reminder, Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for 
purposes of the LCFF, the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to 
replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LEA’s 
LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the 
CCSPP. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to unduplicated 
students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for the action as 
a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English learners, 
and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring 
additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA’s current pay scale, 
the LEA estimates would cost $165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating 
to students who are foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services 
provided by instructional assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would 
divide the estimated cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the 
quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 77 of 80 

Contributing Actions Table 
As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in the 
LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and 
concentration grants estimated based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to 
implement this action, if any. 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis 
only to unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality 
improvement anticipated for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example 
implements the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and 
determines that the action was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA 
reviews the original estimated cost for the action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data 
and to coordinate supports for students that estimated actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living 
adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data 
Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of estimated LCFF Target Entitlement for the current school year, 

excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 78 of 80 

the former Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 
15496(a)(8). Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic 
Recovery Target allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 
42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement calculations. 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the 
prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services 
provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column. 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), 
converting the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental 
and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) 
and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is equal to or greater 
than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual 
Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 79 of 80 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on the 
number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds). 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds). 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned 
Contributing Expenditures (4). 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of 
Improved Services (8). 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 plus Carryover %) 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual 
LCFF Base Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year.  

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then 
converting the quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 80 of 80 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to 
Increase or Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) 
from the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Base Grant (9). This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the 
coming LCAP year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
November 2024 
 
 



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

School Year 
2025-26         

 

Date of Board Approval 
06/17/2025         

 

LEA Name 
Innovations Academy         

 

CDS Code: 
37683380118083         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 
https://innovationsacademy.org/finance/ 

For which ESSA programs apply to your 
LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        

X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

https://innovationsacademy.org/finance/


 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the opportunity to 
meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California Department of Education 
(CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP Federal Addendum annually with their 
LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic planning.  
 
The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  
 
Each provision for each program must be addressed unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  
 
In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the LCAP Federal 
Addendum Template.  
 
Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA provision aligns 
with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions may already be addressed in 
the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state priorities. 
 
The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds are 
supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged to 
integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of 
all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the 
LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to 
clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
This template is designed to be used by LEAs who already have completed their LCAP Federal Addendum 
and received approval from CDE. This template will support LEAs with the review of their LCAP Federal 
Addendum and revision. 
 
The review and revision of the LCAP Federal Addendum do not need to be submitted to CDE for approval.   
However, an LEA should have their local Board approve any revisions.  
 
Even if the LEA plans to transfer all of its title funds, it must still address all of the provisions of the 
title from which it is transferring its funds. The LEA must first meet the application requirements of 
those funds before it can elect to transfer those funds to another title. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in support of 
underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity to document their 
approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. 
 
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF).  
 
LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in order to 
achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports continuous cycles of 
action, reflection, and improvement.  
 
Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making the best use 
of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as described in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with 
state funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of 
federal funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
Our ongoing goal at Innovations Academy is to follow our mission: to help students learn to create their lives through 
self-expression, compassionate connection and purposeful learning. This primary goal is addressed in a variety of ways 
through our five LCAP goals. The three pronged mission leads us to support students social-emotionally and 
academically. We first assess students academically using multiple measures: CAASPP scores (state assessment), the 
Developmental Reading Assessment (DRA) or Dibels reading test and the NWEA Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) 
as well as a writing sample assessment, spelling assessment, math facts assessments and a social emotional 
assessment. The DRA/Dibels and MAP are given in the first month of school, providing data for teachers who need it 
immediately. Teachers also review assessment data from previous years of continuing students. We assess students' 
social emotional health through observations, a school designed survey, data from previous years for continuing 
students and social emotional observations and formative assessments. Once assessed we determine who is in need of 
academic support and who is in need of social-emotional support. Then we engage the following programs. 
 
For social emotional support we train all of our teachers on the pedagogy of social awareness skills development such 
as teambuilding, conflict resolution, relationship based teaching. We add to that self-awareness skills development such 
as solution-seeking strategies, growth mindset, self-regulation and mindfulness, how the brain works and levels of moral 
development. We provide time in the day and support for teachers to embed social emotional learning in their instruction. 
We also have a full time Associate MFT who provides support to staff, parents and students. Additionally, we provide 
training and supervision for our AMFT as needed. Our classrooms have teacher assistants that are trained in Positive 
Discipline strategies for conflict resolution, self-regulation, problem solving with students and minimally invasive 
classroom strategies. Intervention groups are designed to address specific social -emotional needs. 
 
For academic intervention, our teachers are provided access to MAP specific interventions based on student 
assessments and use DRA/ Dibels to place children in their zone of proximal development, supporting growth in reading 
skills. Teachers are encouraged to use reflection as a tool for instructional improvement. Teachers are also provided 
coaching regarding teaching strategies, time for collaboration with other professionals, and given quality feedback and 
accountability. Throughout the year our teachers are observed and provided effective feedback and participate in a 
variety of staff development designed to improve instruction. 
 
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 
Innovations Academy, a single charter school site, works with integrity to align all of our program goals with ESSA 
provisions, integrating our funds into our LCAP goals We also create alignment with our charter and WASC goals. We 
achieve that by maintaining our dual focus of supporting students to grow socially, emotionally and academically through 
the actions listed above. 
 
The use of federal funds through Title I A, Title II A and Title IV A will support the funding of these programs to meet our 
five LCAP goals which all support academic and social emotional improvement. 
LCAP Goal #1 Use academic assessment data to improve instruction for all students and provide targeted intervention 
for struggling students. 
LCAP Goal #2 All students will be engaged in academically challenging, inquiry-based learning within classrooms 
effectively managed by highly qualified teachers using intentionally designed behavioral interventions and supports. 
LCAP Goal #3 Provide high-quality, standards-aligned materials, resources and a facility to students and teachers to 
support their intellectual, physical, emotional and social well-being. 
LCAP Goal #4 Provide ongoing analysis, accountability and intervention support for chronically absent and tardy 
students and their families. 



LCAP Goal #5 Provide multiple engagement opportunities for parents through effective communication tools, parent 
participation opportunities and parent education.. 
 
We carefully select materials that meet the parameters of funding so there is alignment and connection throughout our 
funding. Our school team, which includes our business manager, administration, special education and general 
education teachers and our SELPA, discuss ESSA and LCAP goals to find these connections develop continuity in our 
collaboration and continuously strive to improve instruction for children. We receive feedback from students through our 
morning meeting and class council process and from parents through surveys, email and meetings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP, it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 



(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 



TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
As a charter school, our attendance boundaries are set in our charter as having boundaries to accept any student 
equally from San Diego County. Additionally, we check the housing status of all of our students in order to provide any 
necessary supports for homeless students and students in foster care. A housing questionnaire is completed by families. 
We stay in close contact with all parents and guardians regarding attendance. 
 
 
 



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs, the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this 
addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate 
the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to 
clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) – Not Applicable to Charters and Single School Districts. 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
NOTE: In this section, LEAs must identify and address disparities. Tools on the CDEs website 
(https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/peat.asp)  can help with this process. LEAs are required to specifically address the 
following at comparable sites: 
 

1. What # and % of teachers at sites are inexperienced, misassigned, or out-of-field in relation to: 
a. Number of low-income students 
b. Number of minority students 

2. Does the LEA have an educator equity gap –  
a. If yes, must create a plan which must include root cause analysis of the disparity 
b. A plan must be created with meaningful educational partner engagement.  

 
Educator Equity Data Tables available here. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
As a small single charter school we are managing a small number of teachers and we ensure that all our teachers have 
preliminary, clear or intern credentials. When assignments change at all, we work closely with the county education 
office to acquire appropriate permits and waivers. All intern credentialed teachers in self-contained classrooms work with 
the support of a mentor teacher who meets with them weekly. We have 21 classroom teachers on our staff. Teachers do 
not select their students each year but have a say in the class formation of their current students for the following year to 
avoid bias. We balance our classes for gender, special education needs, social emotional skills and academic levels so 
that all classes are heterogeneous. All of our teachers are given ongoing support throughout the school year to work with 
a diverse group of children. A teaching coach is assigned to spend a larger percentage of time with newer and less 
experienced teachers. We do not use tracked classrooms thereby creating a full integration of our diverse student 
population. 
 
 

 
On November 6, 2019, the SBE approved updated definitions for “ineffective” and “out-of-field” teachers to be included in 
the amended California ESSA Consolidated State Plan. 
 

Term Definition 

Ineffective teacher An ineffective teacher is any of the following: 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/peat.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/documents/edequitydata.xlsx


• An individual whose assignment is legally authorized by an emergency permit that 
does not require possession of a full teaching license; or 

• A teacher who holds a teaching credential but does not possess a permit or 
authorization that temporarily allows them to teach outside of their credentialed area 
(misassigned) 

• An individual who holds no credential, permit, or authorization to teach in California. 

Under this definition, teachers with the following limited emergency permits would be 
considered ineffective: 

• Provisional Internship Permits, 
• Short-Term Staff Permits 
• Variable Term Waivers 

Substitute permits or Teaching Permits for Statutory Leave (TSPL) holders serving as 
the teacher of record 

Out-of-field teacher A credentialed out-of-field teacher is: A credentialed teacher who has not yet demonstrated 
subject matter competence in the subject area(s) or for the student population to which he or 
she is assigned. Under this definition, the following limited permits will be considered out of the 
field: 

• General Education Limited Assignment Permit (GELAP) 
• Special Education Limited Assignment Permit (SELAP) 
• Short-Term Waivers 
• Emergency English Learner or Bilingual Authorization Permits 

Local Assignment Options (except for those made pursuant to the California Code of 
Regulations, Title 5, Section 80005[b]) 

Inexperienced Teacher A teacher who has two or fewer years of teaching experience. 

Minority Student A student who is American Indian/Alaska Native, Asian, African American, Filipino, Native 
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, Hispanic, or Two or More Races Not Hispanic. 

Low-Income Student A student who is eligible to receive Free or Reduced-Price Meals 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(3) and 1112(b)(7) 
 
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
Parents are included through surveys, parent meetings and the review of drafts of documents pertaining to school 
improvement. The director speaks both Spanish and English fluently and is able to communicate directly with parents of 
both languages. We have an EL coordinator who connects directly with students of English language learners. 
 
 

 
To meet this requirement, LEAs must provide a description of the following: 
 
ESSA Section 1112(b)(3): how the LEA will carry out its responsibilities under paragraphs (1) and (2) of Section 1111(d); 
 

1. How the LEA will involve parents and family members at identified schools in jointly developing Comprehensive 
Support and Improvement plans 

2. How the LEA will involve parents and family members in identified schools in jointly developing the Targeted 
Support and Improvement plans 

3. In the absence of the identification of any schools for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or any 
schools for Targeted Assistance and Intervention (TSI), the LEA may write N/A. This provision will not be 
reviewed. 

 



ESSA Section 1112(b)(7): the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under 
Section 1116; shall include how the LEA and its schools will build capacity for parent and family engagement by: 
 

1. Describe the LEA parent and family engagement policy, and how it was developed jointly with, agree on with, and 
distribute to, parents and family members of participating children a written parent and family engagement policy 
(ESSA Section 1116(a)). 

2. Describe how the LEA will provide assistance to parents of children served by the school or local educational 
agency, as appropriate, in understanding such topics as the challenging State academic standards, State and 
local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child’s progress and work with 
educators to improve the achievement of their children; (ESSA Section 1116(e)(1)) 

3. Describe how the LEA will provide materials and training to help parents to work with their children to improve 
their children’s achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including education about the harms 
of copyright piracy), as appropriate, to foster parental involvement; (ESSA Section 1116(e)(2)) 

4. Describe how the LEA will educate teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, other school 
leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in 
how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate 
parent programs, and build ties between parents and the school; (ESSA Section 1116(e)(3)) 

5. Describe how the LEA will to the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate parent involvement 
programs and activities with other Federal, State, and local programs, including public preschool programs, and 
conduct other activities, such as parent resource centers, that encourage and support parents in more fully 
participating in the education of their children; (ESSA Section 1116(e)(4)) 

6. Describe how the LEA will ensure that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other 
activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the 
parents can understand (ESSA Section 1116(e)(5)) 

7. Describe how the LEA will provide such other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents 
may request (ESSA Section 1116(e)(14). 

8. Describe how the LEA will provide opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members 
(including parents and family members who have limited English proficiency, parents and family members with 
disabilities, and parents and family members of migratory children), including providing information and school 
reports in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language, such parents understand (ESSA Section 1116(f)). 

 
Also, include how the LEA will align parent involvement required in Section 1116 with the LCAP educational partner 
engagement process. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Parent engagement is central to our mission and our practices. Family, extended family and guardians are encouraged 
to participate in a variety of ways on campus. Innovations Academy LCAP goal 5 addresses continued encouragement 
of parent engagement strategies including the following ways: 
Engagement through awareness of academic and social-emotional progress 
Engagement through a variety of volunteer opportunities 
Engagement through attendance in parent education experiences 
Engagement through whole school events held throughout the school year 
Direct outreach from school based counselor to parents of the most challenging students or families experiencing 
extreme situations to offer family support and education. 
 
-Families are provided a variety of means to volunteer and participate actively in school events and daily school life. 
Some examples include volunteering in classrooms, in support of school and classroom events (such as parties, dances, 
performances), as guest speakers in class, driving on field trips and participating in the Parent Association. 
-We purchase a parent communication platform (Parent Square) to facilitate seamless communication with our families 
in their preferred format. Communication goes out from teachers about class topics of study and other class events on a 
weekly basis. Communication from the director also occurs on a weekly basis in both English and Spanish and all 
ParentSquare communications are easily received in a variety of preferred translations for parents. 
-We provide opportunities for parent education that involve regular meetings with our director (at a minimum monthly), 
online Zoom meetings in person or to be viewed at a time convenient for parents, sessions with our counselor, articles 
shared monthly with parents and meetings with teachers. 
-We invite parent input via an open door policy with the director, various surveys throughout the year, LCAP meetings 
offered at a variety of times and feedback forms after school events. 
-We believe that parents are primary educators of their children and the most important people in a child's life, need to 
be informed of progress. All parents receive assessment information in writing at least twice per year in addition to the 
report card. 
-We have a permanent board position designated for a parent. 



 
 
 
 

 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent 
Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 
and, where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
N/A 
 
 

 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and 
specialized instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 
1115, will identify the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We do not receive targeted assistance, however, Innovations Academy has a permanent full time staff member 
designated for mental health support. This position is in addition to our school psychologist. This position provides 
additional support to those in need, including any students who may be placed in living situations out-of-home. In 
addition, teachers are trained to observe and take note of student behaviors that may be indicative of the need for 
intervention and support. Families may also reach out to us and request services. Our non-punitive, relationship based 
learning program teaches communication skills, conflict resolution skills and self-regulation skills. These supports create 
relationships that encourage communication to support students in crisis. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Eligible students are identified through the enrollment process and through close connection and relationships with 
families throughout the year. In accordance with the federal McKinney-Vento Act, Innovations Academy has a policy for 
homeless children and youth and a school liaison is designated each year to ensure that homeless students are 
identified and receive appropriate opportunities to enroll and participate fully in their education at our school. 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
N/A 
 
 

 



Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) through coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) through increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, 

or career counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
As a K-8 school we encounter two different types of transitions. The first is from elementary to middle school and the 
second is from middle to high school (as they leave our school). The transition within our school is seamless as the 
program stays very similar. We provide the opportunity for our 6th graders to speak with our 7th and 8th graders about 
what to expect. Each year, we celebrate our 8th grade students by providing learning opportunities about the upcoming 
transition they will encounter moving on to high school. Their teachers hold instructional time to discuss fears and typical 
differences between middle and high school. Our students are currently coming from a variety of neighborhoods in 
multiple school districts and their choices include both charter and a variety of high schools in those different districts. 
We hold a "high school night" during which our graduated students who have attended a variety of high schools return to 
talk about those schools and the challenges they faced. We invite a variety of high schools to share about their schools 
with our students and their parents. We provide parents with a list of options for high school. We take students on tours 
of high schools. We invite transition teams for our special needs students at a final IEP meeting, so they can be 
connected with their new team moving forward. 
 
 

 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the 
LEA determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
At Innovations Academy inquiry instruction is the primary method utilized by teachers and is one of the most 
recommended strategies for work in GATE programs. Inquiry instruction involves project and hands on learning and 
collaborative explorations and is accessible to the entire student population. This pedagogy lends itself to naturally 
differentiated instruction allowing students who are seeking more challenge to take on a project in a deeper or distinct 
way, allowing them to address academic material in their own way. Teachers receive training in this type of instruction 
and learn to differentiate within classrooms to meet the needs of all students. When students are assessed, academic 
plans specific to a students' need are made for those who are excelling in any area. 
 
We have and will continue to have one-to-one chromebooks in our 2nd through 8th grade classrooms, ipads for students 
in grades K-1 and to promote digital literacy in our classrooms. We also teach robotics and coding to all grade levels as 
an enrichment class with a specific teacher who is training in STEM, robotics and coding. Our students access and 
produce multimedia content and have access to leveled libraries within classrooms, digital text via software and literacy 
sites such as Newsela. They are allowed to check books out from school to take home. Every class is required to be 
reading novels as a whole class in addition to the books they read individually and as research for their projects. 
 
 
 
 



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the  

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 



 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or 
youth, including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, 
parenting and child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community 
resources, and scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to 
facilitate postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as 
through participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, 
participation in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how the program will involve parents and family members in efforts to improve the 
educational achievement of their children, assist in dropout prevention activities, and prevent the involvement of their 
children in delinquent activities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 



Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 
Prevention Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children 
and youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Not applicable to Innovations Academy Charter School. Innovations Academy Charter School does not receive Title I, 
Part D funds 
 
 



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Address these questions: 

1. Please provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement for teachers, 
principals, and other school leaders.  

2. Please address principals, teachers, and other school leaders separately.  
3. Please explain how the systems promote professional growth and ensure improvement, including how the LEA 

measures growth and improvement  
4. Please describe how the systems support principals, teachers, and other school leaders from the beginning of 

their careers, throughout their careers, and through advancement opportunities  
5. Please describe how the LEA evaluates its systems of professional growth and improvement and makes 

adjustments to ensure continuous improvement within these systems. 
 
Innovations Academy provides a variety of professional development opportunities for teachers and school leaders. 
Teacher Coaching: All teachers are provided coaching both via peer observations and observations by administration 
and a teacher coach. Through these observations they are provided feedback, support and information throughout the 
year. 
School Based Professional Development: All teachers participate in professional development related to the current 
goals as stated in our accountability plans. These opportunities are often with experts in specific fields that provide 
training. All teachers meet weekly on teacher teams of various configurations including: staff meetings, grade level 
partner teachers, team level meetings, analyzing student work. 
Teacher Observations: All teachers leave campus to observe at other schools of their choice during the school year. All 
teachers observe a peer within the school setting several times per year. 
External Professional Development: Innovations Academy provides funding for teachers and school staff to attend 
external professional development opportunities. All teachers new to our program are provided trainings to support their 
implementation of pedagogical strategies aligned with our charter and LCAP. 
Induction: Innovations Academy provides financial support to teachers enrolled in multiple induction programs. 
Innovations Academy provides mentors to teachers as needed. 
School leaders participate in collaboration on campus at least one time each month during which they evaluate 
observation techniques and feedback, discuss areas of particular interest for professional growth and analyze input. 
School leaders participate in external professional development at least 1x per semester. 
School leaders collaborate with other school leaders at least 1x per semester. 
We recognize the skills of our current employees by encouraging leadership from within as evidenced by current 
employee positions. We have multiple teachers who have started as teacher assistants, then became intern teachers 
and were ultimately hired as full time teachers. Our current director is the founder of our school. Our lead Education 
Specialist started as a teacher assistant, achieved her credential and received special training in dyslexia. Two of our 
Education Specialists started in other positions at our school and moved vertically to their current position. Our Assistant 
Director position has been filled by a former teacher three different times and our current Nature Studies teacher started 
as a teacher assistant. Four current teachers started at teacher assistants. Current staff take on roles during the school 
year that include 504 coordinator, intern placement coordinator, staff activities coordinator, Board Secretary and mentor 
teachers. 
Additionally, we continually evaluate our professional development opportunities by seeking input from staff through 
surveys and meeting discussions. We look at programs that have grown due to teacher learning. We ask teachers to 
evaluate external PD so that we can send more teachers or change directions. 
 
 
 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 



Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 
1111(d) and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 
Address these questions: 

1. Please describe the LEA’s process for determining Title II, Part A funding among the schools it serves.  
2. Please describe how the LEA determines funding that prioritizes CSI and TSI schools and schools serving the 

highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
3. Please describe how CSI and TSI schools and schools that have the highest percentage of children counted 

under Section 1124(c)  that the LEA serves receive priority in Title II, Part A funding decisions compared to other 
schools the LEA serves. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
As a single school, our funds are utilized and targeted to support growth in the areas of literacy, mathematics and social 
emotional skills. 
 
We are focused on improving math instruction by increasing the amount of time for math instruction, providing a variety 
of access points to math understanding and providing additional push in support during math times. We have integrated 
conceptual math (through STMATH, Math Solutions activities and Jo Boaler activities) with algorithm practice using a 
spiral approach and we utilize student talk aloud problem solving approaches. Our students work from concept to 
algorithm and we believe in math practice repetition as well as concept development (Mountain Math, Marcy Cook, ST 
Math). We are participating in a pilot program with the Art of Problem Solving organization and their Beast Academy 
curriculum. They provide teachers who work alongside our teachers collaboratively. Our middle school curriculum is 
teacher selected. and a team of teachers will receive special training to support other teachers to implement it with 
fidelity. 
 
We are focused on improving literacy through a variety of strategies which can include the use of readers and writers 
workshops that involve mini-lessons, conferring with students individually and in small groups, both guided and shared 
reading, the use of close reading strategies in non-fiction and primary source texts and explicit vocabulary instruction. 
We engage in literacy work in conjunction with parents in which we provide the education and materials to parents. We 
work on the mechanics of writing in a variety of ways and have resources readily available for teachers  For struggling 
students we use interventions such as Signs for Sounds, Lindamood-Bell programs (Seeing Stars, Lips), Orton-
Gillingham and Wilson strategies and one-on-one support. In our K-2 all teachers use explicit phonics instruction in small 
groups and class lessons daily. 
 
Our social emotional program involves training all of our teachers in Positive Discipline (by Jane Nelsen) strategies. We 
use collaborative problem solving and teach children how our brain works, communication skills, conflict resolution skills, 
mindfulness and other self-regulation techniques and we actively institute positive culture and relationship building 
through the Responsive Classroom program. We also have the goal of decreasing absences and tardies specifically 
focusing on students that have chronic situations by offering support and connecting with them more often. Increasing 
their attendance will improve their learning. 
 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Address these questions: 

1. Please explain how the LEA coordinates its Title II, Part A activities with other related strategies, programs, and 
activities.  

2. Please describe how the LEA uses data to continually update and improve activities supported under Title II, Part 
A.  

3. Please describe how the LEA uses ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually update 
and improve activities supported under Title II, Part A.  



4. Please describe the sources of data the LEA monitors to evaluate Title II, Part A activities and how often it 
analyzes this data.  

5. Please describe the ways in which the LEA meaningfully consults with the following educational partners to 
update and improve Title II, Part A-funded activities:  

a. Teachers  
b. Principals and other school leaders 
c. Paraprofessionals (including organizations representing such individuals)  
d. Specialized instructional support personnel  
e. Charter school leaders (in a local educational agency that has charter schools)  
f. Parents  
g. Community partners  
h. Organizations or partners with relevant and demonstrated expertise in programs and activities 

6. Please explain how often the LEA meaningfully consults with these educational partners. 
 
As a single small school, continuous improvement methodology is our practice. Ongoing evaluations using data from our 
beginning and end of year assessments (NWEA MAP, DRA/Dibels, CAASPP, writing assessment, social emotional 
assessment). The MAP specifically allows us to break down skill areas for specific instructional improvement based on 
individual or subgroup weaknesses. The CAASPP now provides mini assessments that can be used during the school 
year to gauge student progress. We utilize formative assessments such as our Exhibitions, student lead conferences 
and portfolio review of student work samples as well as ongoing observation and notes. 
 
Throughout the year we engage with experts who consult with us on the data. These include MAP training designed to 
help us analyze data, access to a software that houses all student data, our own parent and student input through 
surveys at least one time per semester. Teachers review student work during scheduled collaborative times and give 
their own input about program design and progress. Paraprofessionals are consulted during weekly meetings. 
 
 
 

 



 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and 
other school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
Complete responses will: 
 
Address professional development activities specific to English learners/Title III purposes that are: 
 

1. designed to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners; 
2. designed to enhance the ability of such teachers, principals, and other school leaders to understand and 

implement curricula, assessment practices and measures, and instructional strategies for English learners; 
3. effective in increasing children's English language proficiency or substantially increasing the subject matter 

knowledge, teaching knowledge, and teaching skills of such teachers; 
4. of sufficient intensity and duration (which shall not include activities such as one-day or short-term workshops and 

conferences) to have a positive and lasting impact on the teachers' performance in the classroom; and 
5. supplemental to all other funding sources for which the LEA is eligible. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
Complete responses will: 
 

1. Describe the activities implemented, supplemental to all other funding sources for which the LEA is eligible, that 
provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
Complete responses will: 

1. Address the effective language instruction programs specific to English learners. 
2. Address Title III activities that: 

o are focused on English learners and consistent with the purposes of Title III; 
o enhance the core program; and 
o are supplemental to all other funding sources for which the LEA is eligible. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 



N/A 
 
 

 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 

(A) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

(B) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 
Complete responses will: 
 

1. Address how sites will be held accountable for meeting English acquisition progress and achievement goals for 
English learners. 

2. Address site activities that are supplemental to all other funding sources for which the LEA is eligible. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 



 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Each LEA, or consortium of LEAs, shall conduct the Title IV needs assessment once every 3 years. (see below) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities 
under this subpart;  

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 
4107;  

(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 
4108; 

(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 
under Section 4109; and 

(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 
such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 

 
NOTE: If the LEA received more than $30,000 in Title IV, Part A funding and did not transfer the allocation, the LEA must: 
 

1. use not less than 20 percent of Title IV, Part A funds to support one or more safe and healthy student activities; 
2. use not less than 20 percent of Title IV, Part A funds to support one or more well-rounded education activities; 
3. use a portion of Title IV, Part A funds to support one or more effective use of technology activities; and 

a) 15 percent max cap on effective use of technology for purchasing technology infrastructure. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Innovations Academy utilizes Title IV, Part A funds to support STEAM instruction as part of a well-rounded education 
program for its students.  The STEAM program (called Explorations) has clearly defined objectives and student 
outcomes are reviewed and revised on a regular basis through staff meetings, monthly special education meetings, 
parent meetings, and governance board meetings. The designated teachers collaborate with classroom teachers. 
 
Innovations Academy provides a well-rounded education program for its students.  Innovations Academy employs a full-
time Engineering teacher who teaches robotics, coding and engineering, a full time environmental science teacher, a full 
time performing arts teacher and two full-time art teachers to support the school’s STEAM program. The STEAM 
program offers each student in grades K-8  instruction in robotics, fine arts, performing arts, and nature 
studies/gardening on a weekly basis. In addition, students in grades K-2 rotate through each area while students in 
grades 3-8 select one as an elective for more in-depth instruction one day per week. 
 
The objectives of our STEAM program are to provide students the opportunity to be exposed to a variety of subjects 
(media arts, performing arts, robotics and programming, fine arts and life science through outdoor experience) and be 
able to express their learning in science, math, art and engineering through a variety of mediums (art, coding, media, 
performance).  One of our charter goals is “100% of students will demonstrate an understanding of specific concepts at 
the closing of each project on a project rubric.” In our STEAM program, students demonstrate learning through a variety 
of assessments including class created rubrics, presentations of learning, portfolios and two exhibitions. We expect that 
students will be able to write and speak about the STEAM concepts that they have demonstrated as an outcome of their 
work. 
 
Innovations Academy partners with many nonprofit organizations for the implementation of our program. Through these 
partnerships, our students are provided guidance, information and mentors while they explore academic content through 
an applied approach. Our students interacted with 50 guest speakers representing community organizations and 
nonprofits during the 2024-25 school year.  Innovations Academy also utilizes nonprofits and community groups to bring 
in a variety of instruction such as dance, music and media arts. Each class has the assignment of participation in field 
study experience monthly, often to State and National Parks, museums, community based/non profits (such as the food 
bank, homeless shelter) where they practice academic skills or participate in service learning. In the 24-25 school year 
our students attended a total of 108 field trip experiences. Technology is one way to connect with outside organizations. 



Students send emails, remote interviews and presentations, make podcasts and listen to them, research etc. Funds that 
are designated for technology and platforms that allow students to safely access the internet are important to our 
program. Students at Innovations Academy also utilize multiple online curricular resources for their learning. 
 
All of these resources mentioned are effective in meeting our charter goals and LCAP goals as well as the objectives 
required in Title IV and they all provide high quality, well-rounded educational experiences for students. 
 
 
 
 



 
Title IV, Part A Needs Assessment 
 
According to the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), all local educational agencies (LEAs) receiving at least $30,000 
must conduct a needs assessment specific to Title IV, Part A (ESSA Section 4106[f]). Each LEA, or consortium of LEAs, 
shall conduct the needs assessment once every three year (ESSA Section 4106[d][3]). 
 
Well-rounded Education Opportunities (ESSA Section 4107) 
 
Identify any indicators, or measures/data points to examine needs for improvement of the Title IV, Part A priority content 
areas. 
   

What activities will be included within the support for a well-rounded education? 
   

How will the activities be evaluated for the effectiveness of strategies and activities funded under Title IV, Part A. Include 
the indicators, or measures/data points used to determine future program planning? 
   
Safe and Healthy Students (ESSA Section 4108) 
 
Identify any indicators, or measures/data points to examine needs for improvement of the Title IV, Part A priority content 
areas. 
   

What activities will be included within the support for safety and health of students? 
   

How will the activities be evaluated for the effectiveness of strategies and activities funded under Title IV, Part A. Include 
the indicators, or measures/data points used to determine future program planning? 
   
Effective Use of Technology (ESSA Section 4109) 
 
Identify any indicators, or measures/data points to examine needs for improvement of the Title IV, Part A priority content 
areas. 
   

What activities will be included within the support of effective use of technology? Note: No more than 15 percent on 
technology infrastructure (ESSA Section 4109[b]) 
   

How will the activities be evaluated for the effectiveness of strategies and activities funded under Title IV, Part A. Include 
the indicators, or measures/data points used to determine future program planning? 
   

o Note: All planned activities must meet the authorized use of funds criteria located on the Title IV, Part A 
Authorized Use of Funds web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/st/tivpaauthuseoffunds.asp. 

 
Date of LEA’s last conducted needs assessment: 
   

Title IV, Part A Program 
Rural Education and Student Support Office 

California Department of Education 
Email: TitleIV@cde.ca.gov Web site: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/st/ 

 
California Department of Education 
February 2022 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/st/tivpaauthuseoffunds.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/st/


INNOVATIONS ACADEMY

2025-26  School Year Calendar
Not Board Approved

Month M T W TH F Reg Min Notes

August 11 12 13 14 15 August 14 Open House, 5:00-7:30 pm

18 19 20 21 22 August 18 First Day of School 

25 26 27 28 29 8 2

September 1 2 3 4 5 9/1 Labor Day-No school

8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26

29 30 16 5

October 1 2 3 9/29, 9/30 and 10/1 Student Led Conferences (early dismissal 12:30)

6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 31 18 523

3 4 5 6 7

November 10 11 12 13 14 11/10-11/11 Veteran's Day plus one

17 18 19 20 21

24 25 26 27 28 11/24-11/28 Thanksgiving Break

11 2

December 1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12 12/11 1st semester Exhibition Night + Portfolio Review

15 16 17 18 19 12/17Report Card Distribution 

22 23 24 25 26 12/18-1/5 Winter Break

29 30 31 10 3

1 2 1/5 Staff Development Day- No School

January 5 6 7 8 9 1/6 Students return from Winter Break

12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 1/19-Martin Luther King, Jr- No school

26 27 28 29 30 16 2

2 3 4 5 6

February 9 10 11 12 13

16 17 18 19 20 2/16-2/20 Patriot Week/Lincoln, President's Day No School

23 24 25 26 27

12 3

2 3 4 5 6

March 9 10 11 12 13

16 17 18 19 20

23 24 25 26 27 3/26 Second Exhibition Night

30 31 16 4

1 2 3 3/30-4/3 Spring Break- no school

April 6 7 8 9 10 4/6 Students Return to School

13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 15 4

May 1

4 5 6 7 8

11 12 13 14 15

18 19 20 21 22  Presentations of Learning throughout the month of May

25 26 27 28 29 17 3 5/25 Memorial Day-No school     

1 2 3 4 5 6/5 Last Day of School (minimum day)

June 9 10 11 12 13 3 2

144 142 35 177 days



INNOVATIONS ACADEMY 

2025-2026 Annual Instructional Minutes Schedule

Minimum Requirements:

School Innovations Academy Kindergarten (including recess) 36,000

Location 377 Grades 1-3 (not including recess) 50,400        

Track T Grades 4-8 (not including recess) 54,000

Modified Day Mondays 

Grade(s) Schedule Start Time Ending Time

Total 

minutes 

per day

Minus 

minutes of 

recess

Minus 

minutes of 

lunch

Instructional 

minutes per 

day

Instructional 

minutes per 

week

Number of 

days per 

year

Instructional 

minutes per 

year

Excess or 

(shortage)

2 Day 

Average

Kindergarten Regular Day 08:30 AM 02:00 PM 330 40 45 265 1,060 142 37,630

Min/Modified Day 08:30 AM 12:30 PM 240 15 0 225 225 35 7,875

177 45,505 9,505

Grade Schedule Start Time Ending Time

Total 

minutes 

per day

Minus 

minutes of 

recess

Minus 

minutes of 

lunch

Instructional 

minutes per 

day

Instructional 

minutes per 

week

Number of 

days per 

year

Instructional 

minutes per 

year

Excess or 

(shortage)

1-3 Regular Day 08:30 AM 03:00 PM 390 30 45 315 1,260 142 44,730

Min/Mod Day 08:30 AM 12:30 PM 240 15 0 225 225 35 7,875

1,485 177 52,605 2,205

Grade(s) Schedule Start Time Ending Time

Total 

minutes 

per day

Minus 

minutes of 

recess

Minus 

minutes of 

lunch

Instructional 

minutes per 

day

Instructional 

minutes per 

week

Number of 

days per 

year

Instructional 

minutes per 

year

Excess or 

(shortage)

4 - 8 Regular Day 08:30 AM 03:00 PM 390 30 30 330 1,320 142 46,860

Min/Mod Day 08:30 AM 12:30 PM 240 15 0 225 225 35 7,875

1,545 177 54,735 735

8/18/25 Mon 10/27/2025 3/2/2026

8/25/25 Mon 11/3/2025 394/2026

I verify that the above is the correct schedule for the 2025-26 school year. Dates: Min. Days 9/8/25 Mon 11/17/2025 3/16/2026

9/15/25 Mon 12/1/2025 3/23/2026

9/22/25 Mon 12/8/2025 4/6/2026

9/29/25 Mon 12/15/2025 4/13/2026

9/30/25 Tue 1/12/2026 4/20/2027

Christine Kuglen 10/1/25 Wed 1/26/2026 4/27/2026

6/17/2025 10/6/25 Mon 2/2/2026 5/4/2026

10/13/25 Mon 2/9/2026 5/11/2026

10/20/25 Mon 2/23/2026 5/18/2026

25-26 Innovations AcademyInstructionalMinutes.xls, 6/13/2025



Innovations Academy Two-Year Director 
Succession Plan 

San Diego Unified Charter School – Board Governance Best Practices 

Purpose 
To ensure a smooth, mission-aligned transition of school leadership, this plan outlines steps 

and responsibilities for the board in the event of the retirement of the current School 

Director. This supports continuity of operations, maintains compliance with charter and 

district expectations, and preserves organizational culture and momentum. 

Phase 1: Preparation (Months 0–6) 

Goal: Open dialogue, early planning, and role definition 

Timeline Action Item Responsible Party 

Month 0 Private board-chair-to-

director conversation on 

retirement intent and 

preferences 

Board Chair 

Month 1 Director provides 

retirement window (e.g., 

June–Dec 2027) 

Director 

Month 1–2 Form a Succession Planning 

Committee (can be subset of 

board) 

Board 

Month 2 Review and update current 

Director Job Description, 

charter goals, and 

performance evaluation 

criteria 

Committee & Director 

Month 4-6 Hold stakeholder meetings: 

parents, teachers, staff Q&A 

Board Chair 

Month 4–6 Begin documenting 

Director’s core 

responsibilities, 

relationships, systems 

Director & Admin 



access, and institutional 

knowledge 

Phase 2: Public Planning & Internal Development (Months 6–12) 

Goal: Explore leadership pipeline and prepare recruitment approach 

Timeline Action Item Responsible Party 

Month 6 Confirm a firm retirement 

date (e.g., June 30, 2027) 

Director & Board 

Month 7 Inform key stakeholders 

(SDUSD, authorizer, faculty 

leadership) of upcoming 

change 

Board Chair 

Month 8–9 Assess internal candidates 

for leadership development 

potential 

Committee 

Month 9–10 Offer mentoring, 

shadowing, or leadership 

development support for 

internal candidates 

Director 

Month 11–12 Draft and approve 

Recruitment Plan: job 

posting, outreach, interview 

committee 

Committee 

Phase 3: Recruitment and Selection (Months 13–18) 

Goal: Identify, vet, and appoint a qualified successor 

Timeline Action Item Responsible Party 

Month 13 Post Director position (60–

90 day application window) 

Committee 

Month 14–15 Screen candidates, conduct 

interviews, and check 

references 

Interview Panel 

Month 16 Select final candidate and 

vote for appointment 

Full Board 



Month 17 Public announcement to 

community; welcome event 

or introduction 

Board Chair 

Month 18 Finalize contract and 

onboarding plan 

Board & Legal Counsel 

Phase 4: Transition and Handoff (Months 19–24) 

Goal: Knowledge transfer, stability, and continuity 

Timeline Action Item Responsible Party 

Month 19–20 Director conducts 

orientation, shadowing, and 

joint planning with 

successor 

Director & Incoming 

Director 

Month 21 Hold stakeholder meetings: 

parents, teachers, staff Q&A 

with successor 

Incoming Director 

Month 22 Evaluate transition 

effectiveness and make 

real-time adjustments 

Board 

Month 24 Formal hand-off and 

Director retirement (e.g., 

June 30, 2027) 

Director 

Key Governance Practices to Follow 
- Update charter renewal documentation and inform SDUSD of leadership change. 

- Maintain documentation: agendas, evaluations, job description, contracts. 

- Ensure employee and community morale through consistent messaging. 

- Create a crisis plan for emergency/early departure. 



Board Trainings Agenda Item Details 

Brown Act Training (for new Board Members) 
https://www.chartercenter.org/support/leadership-trainings 

While the Brown Act training is not explicitly required by California law, this training is a 
practical necessity for all governing board members and school leaders and many charter 
schools have committed to such training as a condition of their school’s charter or other 
agreements. 

Charter leaders who view the five Brown Act modules and pass the required assessment 
will receive a certificate of completion that may be used to verify training; the certificate is 
considered to be valid for up to two years. 

Please send the a copy of the certificate to Christine 

 

Mandatory Board Ethics Training 
https://www.chartercenter.org/support/leadership-trainings/governance-ethics-webinar-
series 

In California, charter school board members are required to complete at least two hours of 
ethics training by January 1, 2026, and then every two years thereafter. This requirement, 
mandated by Assembly Bill 2158 (AB 2158), applies to all charter school governing board 
members, regardless of whether they receive compensation 

Each IA Board Member has a login for the CSDC (Charter School Development Center) 
website. Check your email for the account establishment email sent to you. If you can’t find 
it, let Christine@innovationsacademy.org know and she will resend it. 

Please send the a copy of the certificate to Christine 

 

https://www.chartercenter.org/support/leadership-trainings
https://www.chartercenter.org/support/leadership-trainings/governance-ethics-webinar-series
https://www.chartercenter.org/support/leadership-trainings/governance-ethics-webinar-series
mailto:Christine@innovationsacademy.org

	Board Agenda_ 6_17_25.pdf
	Board Meeting Minutes 5_13_25
	Innovations Academy 6.17 Board Narrative
	2024-25 Estimated Actuals and 2025-26 Preliminary Budget - Innovations (Presentation Template)
	25-26 Preliminary Budget - Innovations (DISTRICT TEMPLATE)
	Prelim Budget Template
	PY Est. Actuals vs CY Budget
	LCFF Calculation
	Cash Flow
	Budget MYP

	2024-25 and 25-26 EPA Resolution Innovations
	2025-26 CONAPP Innovations
	IA-ERC Refund Spreadsheet
	Sheet1

	Local Indicator Description for Board Agenda Item
	2025_Local_Control_and_Accountability_Plan_Innovations_Academy
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2025-26 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2025-26 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2024-25

	Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2025-26]
	General Information
	Reflections: Annual Performance
	Reflections: Technical Assistance
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2025-26]
	Required Descriptions
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	Limited Actions
	Additional Concentration Grant Funding


	2025-26 Total Planned Expenditures Table
	2025-26 Contributing Actions Table
	2024-25 Annual Update Table
	2024-25 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2024-25 LCFF Carryover Table

	Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	General Information
	Reflections: Annual Performance
	Reflections: Technical Assistance
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness



	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements
	Requirements
	Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:
	Actions:
	Required Actions
	For English Learners and Long-Term English Learners
	For Technical Assistance
	For Lowest Performing Dashboard Indicators
	For LEAs With Unexpended LREBG Funds



	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Statutory Requirements
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	For School Districts Only

	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Total Planned Expenditures Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table





	2025_LCAP_Federal_Addendum_Innovations_Academy
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities

	TITLE III, PART A
	Parent, Family, and Community Engagement


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement

	TITLE III, PART A
	Title III Professional Development
	Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
	Title III Programs and Activities
	English Proficiency and Academic Achievement

	TITLE IV, PART A
	Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs

	Title IV, Part A Needs Assessment

	2025-26 Student Attendance CalendarFirst DraftNOEVENTS
	25-26 Innovations AcademyInstructionalMinutes
	IA First Draft_Director_Succession_Plan Board Review 
	Board Training Board Item Details
	Blank Page
	Realigned 25-26 Preliminary Budget - Innovations (DISTRICT TEMPLATE).pdf
	Prelim Budget Template
	PY Est. Actuals vs CY Budget
	LCFF Calculation
	Cash Flow
	Budget MYP




